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BEFORE THE HEARING EXAMINER 

CITY OF SEATTLE 
 

In the matter of the Appeal of: 
 
BAJA CONCRETE USA CORP., ROBERTO 
CONTRERAS, NEWWAY FORMING INC., 
and ANTONIO MACHADO 
 
from a Final Order of the Decision issued by  
the Director, Seattle Office of Labor Standards 
________________________________________ 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Hearing Examiner File:  
No.: LS-21-002, LS-21-003, LS-21-004 

 
DECLARATION OF LORNA S. 
SYLVESTER IN SUPPORT OF 
RESPONDENT CITY OF SEATTLE’S 
RESPONSE TO APPELLANT BAJA 
CONCRETE USA CORP.’S MOTION 
FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT    

 
 I, Lorna S. Sylvester, hereby declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
Washington, that the following is true and correct to the best of my knowledge: 

 
1. I am one of the Assistant City Attorneys appearing for Respondents, the City of Seattle and 

the Seattle Office of Labor Standards (“OLS”), in the above-captioned matter.  I am over the 
age of 18 and make this declaration based on personal knowledge.  I am competent to testify 
as to the matters stated below.  
 

2. The attached documents are true and correct copies of the following: 
 

a. Relevant excerpts from the transcript of the Deposition of Kwynne Forler-Grant, on 
behalf of Newway Forming pursuant to CR 30(b)(6), taken on Thursday, May 5, 
2022.  This document is attached as Exhibit A.  
 

b. Relevant excerpts from the transcript of the Deposition of Mercedes de Armas, on 
behalf of Baja Concrete USA pursuant to CR 30(b)(6), taken on Tuesday, April 26, 
2022.  This document is attached as Exhibit B. 

 
c. Relevant excerpts from the transcript of the Individual Deposition of Mercedes de 

Armas, taken on Wednesday, May 11, 2022.  This document is attached as Exhibit 
C. 
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d. Email correspondence from Mercedes De Armas to Ashley Harrison and Daron 

Williams, dated July 31, 2020.  This email is attached as Exhibit D.  
 
e. Email correspondence from Mercedes De Armas to Daron Williams and Ashley 

Harrison, dated December 7, 2020.  This email is attached as Exhibit E.  
 
 

   
 Signed this 3rd day of August, 2022, in Kent, Washington.   
 

  
       /s/ Lorna S. Sylvester    

       LORNA S. SYLVESTER 
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             BEFORE THE HEARING EXAMINER

                OF THE CITY OF SEATTLE

______________________________________________________

In the Matter of the Appeal of:    )

Baja Concrete USA Corp., Newway    )

Forming and Antonio Machado,       )

                                   ) No. LS-21-002, 003, 004

From a Final Order of the Decision )

issued by the Director, Seattle    )

Office of Labor Standards.         )

------------------------------------------------------

        ZOOM DEPOSITION UPON ORAL EXAMINATION

                          OF

             KWYNNE FORLER-GRANT 30(b)(6)

______________________________________________________

                      9:00 a.m.

                     May 5, 2022

REPORTED BY:  Pat Lessard, CCR #2104
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1                 A P P E A R A N C E S
2 FOR BAJA CONCRETE USA CORP:
3         MR. ALEX LARKIN
4         MDK Law Associates
5         777 108th Avenue NE, Suite 2000
6         Bellevue, WA 98004
7         425.455.9610
8         alarkin@mdklaw.com
9

10 FOR CITY OF SEATTLE OFFICE OF LABOR STANDARDS:
11         MS. ERICA FRANKLIN
12         MS. LORNA SYLVESTER
13         Seattle City Attorney
14         701 Fifth Ave., Suite 2050
15         Seattle, WA 98104
16         206.684.8200
17         erica.franklin@seattle.gov
18

19 FOR NEWWAY FORMING, INC:
20         MR. JASON WANDLER
21         Oles Morrison Rinker & Baker
22         701 Pike Street, Suite 1700
23         Seattle, WA 98101
24         206.682.6254
25         wandler@oles.com
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1                 E X A M I N A T I O N
2 ATTORNEY                                        PAGE
3 BY MR. LARKIN:                                     6
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5 BY MR. WANDLER:                                  109
6 BY MR. LARKIN:                                   112
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8 BY MS. FRANKLIN:                                 119
9                E X H I B I T  I N D E X

10 No.                  DESCRIPTION                PAGE
11 Exhibit 1   City of Seattle and Baja Concrete      9
12             USA Corp. Notice of Rule 30(b)(6)
13             Deposition to Newway Forming, Inc.
14 Exhibit 2   Newway Organizational Chart 1120      10
15             Denny Way.
16 Exhibit 3   Time Cards.                           16
17 Exhibit 4   Time Cards.                           17
18 Exhibit 5   Baja invoices.                        19
19 Exhibit 6   Newway Crane and/or Rigging           28
20             Accident/Incident Notification.
21 Exhibit 7   Baja billing backup for invoices.     35
22 Exhibit 8   1120 Denny Way Baja Concrete          39
23             billing to Newway Forming.
24
25
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1                 A P P E A R A N C E S
2
3 FOR ANTONIO MACHADO:
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3 Exhibit 9   5/33/20 letter from Seattle Office    40
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5             Machado and others re Seattle
6             Labor Standing Ordinances
7             violation.
8 Exhibit 10  Summary invoices sept/oct 2020        99
9 Exhibit 11  Kwynne Grant email to Nancy Chin     100

10             re Baja and PNW Shotcrete.
11 Exhibit 12  9/17/19 email from Kwynne Grant to   102
12             Tom Grant re meeting new supers.
13 Exhibit 13  9/18/19 email from Kwynne Grant re   104
14             new supers/managers.
15 Exhibit 14  1/14/21 email from Kwynne Grant to   106
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17             forwarding Labor and Industry
18             Claims.
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1 KWYNNE FORLER-GRANT,      being duly sworn, testified
2                            upon oath, as follows:
3                 E X A M I N A T I O N
4 BY MR. LARKIN:
5      Q.   So Ms. Grant, I'm Alex Larkin.  I'm one of
6 the lawyers for Baja Concrete USA in this case.
7           Just a few basic ground rules for the
8 deposition.  We have to be careful -- keep in mind
9 you're under oath so when responding to questions keep
10 that in mind.
11           We both need to be careful to avoid talking
12 over each other, even if it seems obvious what it's
13 going to be.  When you're answering a question I have
14 to be careful not to talk over you and that's so the
15 court reporter can get a good clear transcript of
16 this.
17           Try to answer with a clear "Yes" or "No"
18 where appropriate rather than, you know, "Uh-huh" or
19 something like that.  Again, so the record can be made
20 clear.
21           We can take breaks anytime except when there
22 is a question pending.  So if I've asked a question
23 then you do need to respond to the question before
24 taking a break.  But other than that, anytime you want
25 to take a break we can do that.

Page 8

1 border, moving equipment to the jobsites, trucking off
2 the jobsites.  Oh, gosh.
3           All paperwork, insurance, workers comp,
4 everything.  All the superintendents report to me,
5 call me when they need things.
6           Basically take care of the subcontractors on
7 the sites, anything they need.
8      Q.   So are you familiar with the project jobsite
9 at 1120 Denny Way in Seattle?

10      A.   Yes.
11      Q.   Are you familiar with the project site at
12 707 Terry Avenue in Seattle?
13      A.   Yes.
14      Q.   And one more.  Are you familiar with the
15 jobsite at 2014 Fairview Avenue in Seattle?
16      A.   Yes.
17      Q.   And you're generally familiar with or are
18 you familiar with the work that Baja Concrete USA, the
19 service they may have provided at those project sites?
20      A.   Yes.
21      Q.   We'll get into that a little bit more later.
22           And those three project sites, are those
23 projects all complete?  As far as construction are
24 those properties complete?
25      A.   Not 707 Terry.

Page 7

1           Let's see here.  I'm supposed to ask this
2 question -- I don't like it -- but are you on any
3 medications or have any medical conditions that might
4 impair your ability to answer questions today?
5      A.   No.
6      Q.   Would you please provide your full name and
7 spell it.  And your business address or work address.
8      A.   Okay.  It's Kwynne, K W Y N N E, Forler, F O
9 R L E R, hyphenated Grant, G R A N T.  133 164th

10 Street Southwest, Suite 204, Lynnwood, 98087.
11      Q.   And have you ever been deposed before in a
12 civil case?
13      A.   No.
14      Q.   So what is your position or relationship
15 with Newway Forming, Inc.?
16      A.   Senior manager.
17      Q.   And how long have you been in that position?
18      A.   I've moved up since receptionist, 22 years.
19      Q.   You've been with the company for 27 years?
20      A.   Twenty-two years, yes.
21      Q.   How long have you been a senior manager?
22      A.   Probably the last ten.
23      Q.   Describe, if you would, your typical job
24 duties, just a summary.
25      A.   Everything.  Shipping back orders over the

Page 9

1      Q.   Okay.
2      A.   Very close.
3      Q.   But the other two are complete?
4      A.   Yes.
5      Q.   So a bit of an off-the-wall question, to
6 your knowledge has Newway Forming, Inc. ever been the
7 subject of a wage claim prior to this case?
8      A.   No.
9      Q.   So I'm going to introduce the first exhibit.
10 I'll share screen.  Just give me a moment here.
11                (Marked Deposition Exhibit No. 1.)
12      Q.   (By Mr. Larkin)  Okay.  Do you see this
13 document, Ms. Grant?
14      A.   Yes.
15      Q.   Have you seen this before?
16      A.   Yes.
17      Q.   I'll scroll through.  It's four pages.
18           So on the third page where it says Exhibit A
19 and it lists items one through eight, have you read
20 over that list prior to this deposition?
21      A.   Yes.
22      Q.   Okay.  Can you confirm that you are prepared
23 to answer questions about each of those topics that
24 are listed on this page of the document?
25      A.   Yes.
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1      Q.   And looking at that same page it looks like
2 we see some kind of approval down at the bottom of the
3 page.
4      A.   Yes.
5      Q.   Now is that Newway Forming's approval of
6 that invoice so it can be paid?
7      A.   That's our in-house coding to be paid.
8      Q.   Okay.  And do you know whose initials or
9 signature that is on there?

10      A.   Tom Grant.
11      Q.   Okay.  Scrolling down again.  We're moving
12 right along today.
13           So tell me about Baja Concrete USA Coup.
14 Are you familiar with that business?
15      A.   Yes.
16      Q.   And how are you familiar with it?
17      A.   They are a subcontractor of Newway Forming,
18 Inc.
19      Q.   Well, so they were a subcontractor of Newway
20 Forming for the three project sites during the
21 relevant time period we've been talking about,
22 correct?
23      A.   Yes.
24      Q.   And how would you describe their scope of
25 services that they provided to Newway Forming on those

Page 24

1 needs of the site --
2      Q.   Okay.
3      A.   -- where we were working.
4      Q.   So how did Baja Concrete know how many
5 workers or laborers to send to the site on a daily
6 basis?
7      A.   They would discuss that with Roberto.  It
8 would probably be Tom Grant.
9      Q.   Tom Grant would decide how many laborers,

10 how many cement finishers were needed today for this
11 work, something like that?
12      A.   Yes.  He was most familiar with the
13 schedule.
14      Q.   And then he would inform -- just trying to
15 be consistent -- Mr. Roberto Soto, correct?
16      A.   Yes.
17      Q.   And then when the Baja Concrete laborers
18 would come to the worksite do you happen to know how
19 they arrived?  Did someone give them a ride or did
20 they have their own transportation, do you recall?
21      A.   I didn't find out until later but I guess
22 they came in a van.
23      Q.   But that's something you learned later, not
24 during the relevant time period?
25      A.   No.  When the investigation began.

Page 23

1 projects?
2      A.   They were hired for cement finishing.
3      Q.   And anything else?
4      A.   Not until later.
5      Q.   Later being beyond what we're calling the
6 relevant time period?
7      A.   No, within the time period.
8      Q.   Okay.  So what else were they hired for
9 later during the time period?

10      A.   Labor, laborers.
11      Q.   Okay.  But even when they were hired as
12 cement finishers, that's also a laborer, right?
13      A.   General labor and cement finishing, cement
14 finishing is more of a skilled trade.
15      Q.   Okay.
16      A.   Patching, grinding.
17      Q.   And roughly, if you can recall, how many
18 laborers were onsite -- let's just kind of focus on
19 the Denny Way project site.  How many laborers
20 provided by Baja Concrete would typically be working
21 at that 1120 Denny Way site?
22      A.   About the scope, I guess, six to twelve.
23      Q.   Six to twelve pretty much every day that
24 work was going on?
25      A.   It could have varied.  It depends on the

Page 25

1      Q.   Okay.  So Baja Concrete laborers that worked
2 onsite, who would direct their actual work activities
3 day to day?
4      A.   Our lead would go to Roberto and inform them
5 where they needed to be.
6      Q.   I didn't quite catch it.  Who would go to
7 Roberto?
8      A.   Our lead.
9      Q.   Okay.  Gotcha.  So Newway Forming's lead

10 would inform Roberto of how many laborers, how many
11 cement finishers they needed?
12      A.   Yes.
13      Q.   So then when the Baja Concrete laborers were
14 onsite at the project sites who would actually direct
15 their work?
16      A.   They were in constant contact with Roberto.
17 I think everything pretty much went through him.
18      Q.   To your memory, to your knowledge, did Tony
19 Machado direct the work of Baja Concrete?
20      A.   Tony was way above, right?  I don't think he
21 would do the lower end instructing.
22      Q.   So who would decide when the laborers would
23 take a break or, you know, have their lunch?  Who
24 would make those decisions?
25      A.   Roberto would make the breaks and the lunch,
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1 time period, shouldn't we expect to see Baja Concrete
2 listed as the company for some of those dates?
3           MR. WANDLER:  I'm going to object. It
4 assumes facts not in evidence.  We can't see all those
5 sign-in sheets so we don't know if they signed in as
6 Baja.
7           But you can go ahead and answer.
8      A.   They should have signed in as Baja for the
9 weekly safety meetings.  I don't know why they were

10 signing in as Newway.  I had two verbal conversations
11 with Roberto and three emails questioning this.
12      Q.   (By Mr. Larkin)  Okay.  Does Newway Forming,
13 you know, whether it's maintained here or in Canada,
14 do they have these sign-in sheets stored somewhere for
15 other meetings, whether it's a safety --
16      A.   Yes.
17      Q.   Sorry.  Go ahead.
18      A.   Yes, we do.
19      Q.   Where are they stored?
20      A.   1133 Lynnwood office.
21      Q.   Here in Lynnwood, Washington?
22      A.   Yes.
23      Q.   Okay.
24           MR. LARKIN:  I'm sure we requested these in
25 discovery and I don't recall seeing more than what

Page 36

1 Grant and Roberto Soto, correct?
2      A.   I don't know if it was so much the hours or
3 we were questioning the people.  And that's why they
4 started going through these invoices a little more
5 stringently.
6      Q.   Let me scroll through this first before I
7 ask any more.  It's about four pages.  Newway
8 Bates stamp 2158, I think that is, 2159.  Yeah, 22 --
9 2213, sorry.  2195.

10           Would you look at the third page of this
11 Exhibit 7.  It looks like there's a signature at the
12 bottom.
13           Do you see that?
14      A.   Yes.
15      Q.   Whose signature is that, if you know?
16      A.   No, I do not recognize that signature.
17      Q.   And again, this document, if I understood
18 correctly, is a summary of laborers and how many hours
19 were reported to have been worked on different days of
20 the week, right?
21      A.   Uh-huh. Yes.
22      Q.   Thank you.  And you just said a moment ago
23 something interesting.
24           At some point Newway was questioning the
25 workers as opposed to hours, am I right?

Page 35

1 we've just looked at here.
2           MR. WANDLER:  I believe that they all have
3 been produced and I believe the email I sent you last
4 week directing you to where those are will show you
5 where those are at.
6           MR. LARKIN:  Thanks, Jason.  I'll take
7 another look at that.
8           MR. WANDLER:  And just a heads up, I think
9 they're scattered throughout a bunch of documents

10 because they're attached to different documents and
11 stuff so it's a little convoluted finding them.
12           MR. LARKIN:  All right.  I'm going to move
13 on to Exhibit 7.
14                (Marked Deposition Exhibit No. 7.)
15      Q.   (By Mr. Larkin)  Again, it's in a goofy
16 order but do you recognize this document?
17      A.   Yes.
18      Q.   What is this document?
19      A.   This is Baja's billing backup, their
20 invoice.
21      Q.   Would this have been prepared by Mr. Roberto
22 Soto?
23      A.   Yes.
24      Q.   And that would have been prepared, as you've
25 testified earlier, based on the meetings between Tom

Page 37

1      A.   Employees, yes.
2      Q.   What do you mean by that?  What was Newway
3 Forming questioning?
4      A.   Tom Grant was questioning "How do I know
5 who's onsite?"  It's actually two twin towers, 44
6 floors.  "So how do I know who's actually here?"  That
7 was when he started.
8           And so we asked Roberto Soto for a list of
9 his employees, and I noticed right off the bat that we

10 were missing at least three and questioned him on it.
11      Q.   Okay.  Meaning for at least three employees
12 or workers you're saying that names were appearing on
13 these summaries for which you did not have timecards,
14 is that correct?
15      A.   This was earlier on.  The timecards weren't
16 in the picture, I think, until Tom took over in mid
17 2019.  This is from 2018.
18      Q.   So prior to the timecards, gosh, how would
19 you have verified whether each of these people on
20 these summaries had actually been onsite on the days
21 recorded?  How would you have done that?
22      A.   I would say that up until about mid 2019
23 until Tom Grant took over I don't think these were
24 looked at closely.
25      Q.   Okay.  So it wasn't until the company



Kwynne Forler-Grant 30(b)(6) May 5, 2022

www.seadep.com 206.622.6661 * 800.657.1110 FAX: 206.622.6236
SEATTLE DEPOSITION REPORTERS, LLC

11 (Pages 38 to 41)

Page 38

1 started using the time clock -- that was the moment in
2 time, I guess, or point in time where the company
3 began to verify whether each of the employees were
4 actually onsite, correct?
5      A.   Yes.
6      Q.   Scrolling down to the last page of this
7 Exhibit 7, is this also -- it's kind of hard to see
8 but do you recognize this as also being a shorter
9 summary of hours?

10      A.   I don't -- it looks like maybe a
11 supplemental form, maybe somebody they missed or
12 something.  I'm not sure why there would just be one.
13      Q.   Do you recognize who apparently signed it at
14 the bottom?
15      A.   I don't recognize the top signature but the
16 superintendent at the time was Craig Kuchel.
17      Q.   Okay.  The superintendent employed by Newway
18 Forming, correct?
19      A.   Yes.
20      Q.   At the top of this page, the fourth page of
21 Exhibit 7, clearly it says "Baja Concrete USA
22 Timesheet,"  right?
23      A.   Yes.  It looks like something might have
24 been supplemented; maybe they missed billing us for
25 somebody.  This doesn't look right with just one

Page 40

1      A.   Yes.
2      Q.   And approved -- it looks like, again,
3 there's a kind of stamp here in the middle of the
4 page.  There's an approval there, correct?
5      A.   Yes.
6      Q.   And that's Newway Forming's approval so that
7 it will pay that invoice, correct?
8      A.   Yes.
9      Q.   I'm going to stop the share screen.  I don't

10 think I need Exhibit 9.
11           What was Exhibit 9?  Since we have it let's
12 just take a quick look at Exhibit 9.
13                (Marked Deposition Exhibit No. 9.)
14      Q.   (By Mr. Larkin)  I'll scroll through it.
15           Let's go back to the first page of
16 Exhibit 9.  Do you recognize this document?
17      A.   Yes.
18           MR. WANDLER:  Just to interject, I'm going
19 to object again on the grounds this is outside the
20 scope of the 30(b)(6).
21           You can certainly answer questions, but I
22 just want everybody to be aware this may be personal
23 knowledge and not actually the knowledge of the
24 company.
25           MR. LARKIN:  Okay.

Page 39

1 person on it.
2      Q.   Okay.
3      A.   It may be why Craig had to approve it.
4      Q.   Okay.  I'll pull up Exhibit 8.
5                (Marked Deposition Exhibit No. 8.)
6      Q.   (By Mr. Larkin)  It looks like this is just
7 one page, Exhibit 8.
8           Do you recognize this document?
9      A.   Yes.
10      Q.   That was "Yes"?
11      A.   Yes.
12      Q.   I'm sorry.  And again, I think we've seen
13 some before but describe what this document is.
14      A.   This is Baja's billing to Newway.
15      Q.   Okay.  And for this particular -- again,
16 this is only a one-page exhibit -- on this particular
17 invoice it looks like it relates to the 1120 Denny Way
18 project, correct?
19      A.   Yes.
20      Q.   So the date -- there's a couple different
21 dates but it looks like May 26, 2020, correct?
22      A.   Uh-huh.  Yes.
23      Q.   Again, this would have been a summary --
24 well, based on the summary of hours prepared by or
25 agreed to between Tom Grant and Roberto Soto, correct?

Page 41

1      Q.   (By Mr. Larkin)  So on page one of this
2 Exhibit 9, what is this letter?  What's your
3 understanding of what this is, this document?
4      A.   This is when the City brought up this
5 investigation.
6      Q.   Okay.  And is it correct that this letter --
7 I'll click the first page of this document which is
8 the beginning of a letter and it's addressed to
9 several individuals but also to Newway Forming, Inc.,

10 correct?
11      A.   Yes.
12      Q.   I guess just based on your knowledge, why
13 would the City -- well, again, I'm not being very
14 careful here.  So let me scroll down to the third page
15 of this exhibit which has a title of it or a section
16 of it called "Notice of Investigation," correct?
17      A.   Yes.
18      Q.   So is it your understanding that this was
19 the City of Seattle's notice to all of the parties
20 listed at the top of page three that it was
21 undertaking an investigation in this matter?
22      A.   Yes.
23      Q.   And then scrolling down to the next page,
24 the fourth page, do you see a section titled "Initial
25 Request for Information"?
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1 Tony Machado and Roberto Soto by which money was
2 flowing out between those two individuals?
3           MS. KINCAID:  I'll object to the form of the
4 question as outside the scope of the 30(b)(6).
5           MR. WANDLER:  Join in that objection.
6           MR. LARKIN:  Join the objection.
7           MR. WANDLER:  And it's already been asked
8 and answered.
9      Q.   (By Ms. Franklin)  You can still answer that

10 one.
11           Was there a relationship with money flowing
12 between Tony Machado and Roberto Soto?
13      A.   No.
14      Q.   Okay.  You mentioned that after the first
15 year and a half of the project Newway started tracking
16 time for the workers on Baja's payroll, correct?
17      A.   Yes.
18      Q.   And can you just tell me approximately what
19 date that was, like when was the year and a half?
20      A.   September 2019.
21      Q.   So I want to know more about something you
22 said before about Newway started tracking time because
23 it needed to ensure that the people on the timesheets
24 were actually working on the site, is that correct?
25      A.   Yes.

Page 56

1 Baja was injured and Roberto took him to the doctor.
2 And they recorded that he worked for Newway which was
3 an untruth.
4           So they sent me -- L&I sent me this incident
5 report and I went "Well, where is this guy on your
6 list of employees that you've been billing us for
7 him?"
8           So just those kind of questions we started
9 having.

10      Q.   Okay.  Beyond tracking hours itself, did
11 Newway do anything else to, I guess, to keep a closer
12 eye on Roberto after you identified these initial
13 irregularities?
14      A.   That's why they started going through the
15 timesheets together.  It wasn't the hours, it was Tom
16 wanted to know who was onsite when.
17           And he thought by asking our office to
18 provide the time clock we had was to make sure
19 physically they were clocking in and clocking out in
20 our office.
21      Q.   Okay.  Just to clarify, when they were
22 clocking in and clocking out could Newway see how many
23 hours that a given worker was working from those
24 records?
25      A.   It would be my guess at the end of the week
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1      Q.   And when did Newway first become aware that
2 there might be people listed who weren't on the site?
3      A.   I don't think that's where it started.  It
4 was just some irregularities that started showing up
5 and that's when it was decided to ask Roberto Soto his
6 list of employees.
7           And then when we cross-referenced the bills
8 and people that we were getting billed for they were
9 not on his list.

10      Q.   Okay.  And when you said irregularities, can
11 you tell me what those irregularities were?
12      A.   Somebody working two days and then leaving
13 and the card was whited out and handed to another
14 employee.
15      Q.   And how much time passed between when you
16 became aware of the irregularities and when you
17 started tracking time yourself for Newway?
18      A.   A couple weeks.
19      Q.   Were there any other irregularities?
20      A.   Gosh, I can't remember if -- there was
21 three.  I apologize.
22      Q.   That's okay.
23      A.   People that were on the timesheet and the
24 employees that were unaccounted for, and I knew about
25 one.  That's how I caught it because this employee of
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1 Roberto and Tom Grant.
2      Q.   So maybe I can just ask the question a
3 little differently.
4           So did Newway -- once it started tracking
5 hours of workers on Baja's payroll, did Newway have
6 its own records showing how many hours each worker
7 worked?
8      A.   I see what you're saying.  No.
9      Q.   But wouldn't the time clock records show

10 that information?
11      A.   It's just a manual that you put in there and
12 it punches it.  And then they go off the cards but the
13 cards pretty much stayed down on the site.
14      Q.   I'm sorry.  They stayed where?
15      A.   Down onsite.
16      Q.   And what does that mean?
17      A.   The jobsite.
18      Q.   Oh, okay.  So from the timecards did that
19 show how much a given worker was working?
20      A.   Yes.  They would punch in and punch out.
21      Q.   Did workers who were working on Baja
22 Concrete's payroll use the same punch in/punch out
23 procedure as other workers working on the Newway
24 sites?
25      A.   On Newway, are you asking specifically how
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1 Newway employees?
2      Q.   Yes.
3      A.   Newway employees we use a third party and
4 they clock in and out on their phones.
5      Q.   So was the clock, the time clock, was that
6 just for the employees on Baja's payroll?
7      A.   Yes.
8      Q.   And what about the timecards?
9      A.   Yes.

10      Q.   What about for other subcontractors?  Did
11 Newway keep track of their time?
12      A.   We didn't have any irregularities that we
13 caught and no.
14      Q.   So when Tom Grant would sit down with
15 Roberto to give him information so Roberto could make
16 the invoices, what information did Tom Grant provide
17 to Roberto?
18      A.   Roberto already came with his own
19 information.  I think that was reported back offsite.
20           I don't think there was ever really a
21 question about the hours, it was just the people.
22      Q.   How did Baja know -- how did Newway know
23 that there was no question about the hours if it
24 wasn't checking the hours?
25      A.   Would you rephrase, say that again?
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1      Q.   So if Roberto had a problem he wasn't sure
2 exactly how many hours were used, were worked by his
3 workers, could he look to Newway's time clock or
4 timecard references to check?
5      A.   Yes.
6      Q.   Okay.  So Newway did maintain records, its
7 own records that you could check against of how many
8 hours people worked?
9      A.   I mean -- I don't know.  I guess I don't

10 understand the question.
11      Q.   So I would assume that if Roberto was able
12 to use Newway's timecards and time clock records to
13 check how many hours a given worker worked, then those
14 time clock and timecard hours in fact showed how many
15 hours workers worked, is that correct?
16           MR. WANDLER:  I'm going to object.  It
17 mischaracterized the testimony as to what Roberto was
18 using the time cards for.
19      Q.   (By Ms. Franklin)  Okay.  Maybe we should
20 back up a step.
21           What was Roberto using the timecards for?
22      A.   He wasn't using the time -- he always had
23 his own billings, this whole time he had his own
24 billings.  He was keeping track somehow.  And that's a
25 question for them.  I don't know.
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1      Q.   So you just stated that there was never
2 really any question as to whether the hours that Baja
3 reported were correct, right?
4      A.   Yes.
5      Q.   But did you also state that Newway was not
6 independently tracking the hours of workers on Baja's
7 payroll?
8      A.   No.  Not independently, no.
9      Q.   So if Newway was not independently tracking

10 that how did Newway know that the hours that Roberto
11 was reporting were correct?
12      A.   Once Tom and he, Roberto, went through it
13 the billing was submitted.  And there was no questions
14 once Tom and he reviewed it.
15      Q.   So tell me about the scope of that review.
16 What exactly were he and Tom reviewing together?
17      A.   The timecards and the people.
18      Q.   Did Tom and Roberto use the timecards to
19 verify that the number of hours on the Baja invoices
20 were correct?
21      A.   Roberto typically had his own information.
22 We just used -- we just used that, I think, to
23 cross-reference.  They could have had an issue with
24 some hours here and there.  That wasn't the
25 implementation, the reasoning for the time clock.
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1      Q.   But you mentioned before that Roberto and
2 Tom would look at the time clock and timecard records
3 in going over things, right?
4      A.   After Roberto would bring down his invoices
5 then Tom would -- they would cross-reference and make
6 sure they matched what we had.  But he's always kept
7 his own records.
8      Q.   Okay.
9      A.   How they got that information I don't know.

10 That's a question for them.
11      Q.   When Baja submitted timesheets with its
12 invoices, did somebody at Newway sign off on those
13 timesheets?
14      A.   Every superintendent has to sign off on
15 invoices or they won't be paid.  We have to approve
16 those.
17      Q.   And what does the superintendent do to
18 determine whether or not to sign off?
19      A.   Peruses them.  I don't know how they get
20 into them.
21      Q.   Do they check the hours against Newway's own
22 records of worker hours?
23      A.   We didn't keep track of their hours other
24 than these time clock sheets that -- you know, Roberto
25 would do his invoice and Tom would just cross
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1           Did you say that Newway or Baja was
2 providing both labor and concrete finishing, is that
3 correct?
4      A.   Yes.
5      Q.   Were some of the workers -- go ahead.
6      A.   They supplied whoever they had.
7      Q.   Were some workers laborers and other ones
8 concrete finishers?
9      A.   Yes.

10      Q.   Did Newway need a certain amount of laborers
11 and a certain amount of concrete finishers?
12      A.   No.
13      Q.   Did it need any other skillsets in Baja
14 workers?
15      A.   They were hired for cement finishing.  And
16 then Roberto just offered that he had more people and
17 they could labor for us if they needed to.  And they
18 were already site-oriented so it made more sense then
19 going to PeopleReady.
20      Q.   Did Newway and Roberto have ongoing
21 conversations about hiring workers to work on the
22 site?
23      A.   I'm sorry.  Can you repeat the first name?
24 I didn't hear it.
25      Q.   Sure.  Did Newway and Roberto have ongoing

Page 88

1      Q.   Skillset.
2      A.   Oh, skillset, maybe.
3      Q.   And then could Newway accept or reject the
4 offer of additional people?
5      A.   Yes.
6      Q.   Is there a type of worker who would not be a
7 good fit for the relevant worksite in the relevant
8 time period?
9           MR. WANDLER:  I'm going to object to the

10 form of the question.
11      Q.   (By Ms. Franklin)  You can still answer.
12      A.   Would you repeat that again?
13      Q.   Was there a type of worker who would not be
14 a desirable worker to have on the site?
15      A.   At that point I think anybody -- they would
16 have hired anybody.
17      Q.   They just needed bodies?
18      A.   Yeah, they needed bodies.  And then it's up
19 to them working.  Even with the union, when we'd bring
20 in the union people, it would be up to that foreman to
21 see if they have the correct skillset.  That's for
22 Newway.
23      Q.   But when Baja brought on people did anyone
24 at Newway ever determine whether the people Baja was
25 bringing on had the skillset that was needed?
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1 conversations about getting workers to work on the
2 site?
3      A.   No.
4      Q.   Was it a one-time conversation?
5      A.   Roberto would just say he's got somebody and
6 then they'd bring them to the site.
7      Q.   What would prompt Roberto to tell Newway
8 that he had somebody?
9      A.   They wanted to use more people.

10      Q.   So would Newway communicate to Roberto that
11 they needed more people?
12      A.   I don't believe it was ever that way.  It
13 was the opposite way.
14      Q.   Can you specify what you mean by that?
15      A.   Baja -- Roberto would say he has people,
16 they need work and they'd go to Newway.
17      Q.   How did Roberto know that more workers were
18 needed?
19      A.   He didn't.  We can go out and hire
20 anybody -- Newway can go hire anybody we want to.
21 Roberto would say he has people and they need work
22 and we hired them.  He hired them to bring them on.
23      Q.   When he did that did he give any information
24 to Newway about the people he had?
25      A.   Like?
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1      A.   If it was noticed -- any subcontractor, if
2 it's noted that somebody doesn't have the skillset
3 then it would be reported to their supervisor, super.
4 In this case Roberto Soto.
5      Q.   Okay.  Were Baja workers on the relevant
6 worksites ever fired during the relevant time period?
7      A.   I wouldn't know that.  You'd have to ask
8 Baja.
9      Q.   Did Newway play any role in firing workers?

10      A.   For Baja?
11      Q.   Yes.
12      A.   No.
13      Q.   But Newway might notice that a worker did
14 not have the right qualifications and inform the
15 subcontractor's lead person, right?
16      A.   Right.  But they didn't directly hire or
17 fire anybody.  A lot of times if we get a carpenter
18 that doesn't have the skillset they are moved to labor
19 because the union took them in improperly.  They
20 weren't the level that they should have been.
21           I don't know what Baja did with somebody
22 that the foreman said that they didn't have the
23 skillset.  I'm not sure.
24      Q.   I'm going to ask you generally about all
25 workers.  How were workers on the relevant worksites
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1 disciplined?
2      A.   Two writeups, on a third, termination.
3      Q.   And what about Baja workers, was that the
4 same process?
5      A.   We didn't have any control over their
6 workers for hiring or firing.
7      Q.   If a Baja worker needed a writeup, would
8 someone from Newway communicate that to Roberto?
9      A.   I suppose so.  It would be Roberto.
10      Q.   If Roberto fired a worker would Newway be
11 notified?
12      A.   No.
13      Q.   What about -- I'm sorry, I didn't mean to
14 talk over you.  Go ahead and finish.
15      A.   No, go ahead.
16      Q.   If Roberto disciplined a worker would anyone
17 at Newway be notified?
18      A.   No.
19      Q.   Okay.  So now I want to step back a little
20 bit and ask you about the work that was being done on
21 this worksite.  And again you're going to have to
22 excuse me because I don't know much about construction
23 work.
24           So what was Newway brought on to the
25 relevant worksites to do?
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1 see if I can rephrase that.
2           So you said that -- so Baja was the
3 subcontractor of Newway, correct?
4      A.   Yes.
5      Q.   What was Baja's role in helping Newway with
6 the tasks that it was doing for Onni?
7      A.   Concrete finishing.
8           MR. WANDLER:  I don't think she got the
9 answer.

10      A.   Cement finishing, concrete finishing.
11      Q.   (By Ms. Franklin)  Okay.  Can you just
12 explain again -- I'm just not really understanding
13 construction -- how did cement finishing fit into the
14 job that Newway was being asked to do?
15      A.   We poured the concrete and they patch it,
16 sand it, that kind of thing, build forms to pour the
17 concrete in.  And then that would be labor force ends
18 up finishing.
19      Q.   Okay.  Could Newway have done its job for
20 Onni without somebody fulfilling the role that Baja
21 was playing?
22      A.   We have cement finishers on staff.
23      Q.   But is cement finishing essential to
24 Newway's task?
25      A.   Cement finishing, yes.
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1      A.   We're concrete highrise subcontractors.
2      Q.   So what does that mean?  What are the
3 responsibilities associated with that?
4      A.   All the concrete to build the building.
5 Seaco was in charge of the slabs and we're in charge
6 of the vertical.
7      Q.   Anything else?
8      A.   No.  We're a concrete subcontractor.
9      Q.   And did Newway have a contract with Onni

10 requiring it to do these things?
11      A.   Yes.
12           MR. WANDLER:  Just to clarify, the contract
13 with Onni we're only talking about the Denny site.
14           MS. FRANKLIN:  Okay.  Thank you for the
15 clarification.
16      Q.   (By Ms. Franklin)  Did Newway have any
17 contracts for the other two site?
18      A.   Yes.
19      Q.   Who were those with?
20      A.   Graham at 707 Terry and Axiom is 2014
21 Fairview.
22      Q.   Okay.  Thanks for that clarification.
23           So let's go piece by piece, so let's talk
24 about 1120 Denny.
25           What was Baja's role relative to -- let me
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1      Q.   Okay.  Now let's talk about the other
2 worksites.
3           So for the 707 Terry, was Newway's role the
4 same in its contract there?
5      A.   Yes.
6      Q.   And was Baja's role the same?
7      A.   They were only brought on for one week, but
8 yeah.
9      Q.   And what were they brought on to do in that

10 one week?
11      A.   I believe labor, which would be setting up
12 the forms to pour the concrete in.
13      Q.   Okay.  Is that something that needed to
14 happen in order for Newway to complete its tasks at
15 707 Terry?
16      A.   Yes, but we can hire out of the union.  We
17 can hire PeopleReady.  It wasn't imperative that we
18 have Baja.
19      Q.   Okay.  And what about 2014 Fairview Avenue,
20 was Newway's contractual task the same?
21      A.   Yes.
22      Q.   And what about Baja's?
23      A.   Yes.
24      Q.   How did it come to be that Baja workers were
25 dispatched to 707 Terry?
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1      A.   I think Tony talked to Roberto and Roberto
2 said that he could send a crew over.
3      Q.   And how were -- you mentioned these tasks
4 could be done by many different companies.
5           Why did Tony Machado select Baja?
6      A.   I'm not sure.  I mean I could be incorrect,
7 it could be the opposite way.  I'm just not sure.
8      Q.   And how were workers dispatched to 2014
9 Terry?  How did that come to be Baja workers?

10      A.   Roberto.
11      Q.   And do you know why Baja selected them?
12      A.   He just offered staff.
13      Q.   Were there other subcontractors in the same
14 business as Baja?
15      A.   Not cement finishing.  Do you mean for
16 Newway?
17      Q.   Or just in the Seattle area, were there
18 other cement -- could they have hired other cement
19 finishers besides Baja?
20      A.   Yeah.  We can go to the hall.
21      Q.   Why did Newway choose Baja over going to the
22 hall?
23      A.   It's just going back to the agreement that
24 they had, the oral agreement in Canada.
25      Q.   Did the oral agreement encompass all three
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1      A.   I visited but I was not down there every
2 day.
3      Q.   Okay.  So when you said that Roberto was
4 usually there, how do you know that?
5      A.   Because he was avoiding me but I know the
6 day he was there.
7      Q.   How do you know that specifically?
8      A.   I had been asking for insurance since 2019
9 with us being a lienholder.  And I couldn't get any

10 response from Claudia Mercedes and so I started
11 hounding Roberto.
12           And their workers comp expired so I went
13 after them for that.  And I would just ask "Are you
14 guys talking to him?"
15           And they're like "Oh, yeah, he answers our
16 calls."  But I couldn't get ahold of him.
17      Q.   So do you know that he was in contact with
18 them or that he was physically on the site all day?
19      A.   I can't clarify between the two.  I'm not
20 sure.
21      Q.   Okay.  And how do you know who was in charge
22 when Roberto was not there?
23      A.   They would just tell me because I was
24 looking for him.
25      Q.   They would tell you that Rios was in charge?
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1 worksites?
2      A.   I'm not sure how that came about.
3      Q.   Okay.  Just a minute.
4           MS. FRANKLIN:  Let's take a five-minute
5 break, if we could.
6           Can we come back on the record at, I guess
7 we'll say 11:47?
8           MR. WANDLER:  Could we do 11:50, just to
9 round up?

10           MS. FRANKLIN:  We can do 11:50 to round up.
11                (Recess.).
12      Q.   (By Ms. Franklin)  I just have a couple more
13 questions and then some exhibits.
14           Did Newway have a physical office at 1120
15 Denny Way?
16      A.   Yes.
17      Q.   Did workers who were on Baja's payroll use
18 Newway's equipment to perform their day-to-day work?
19      A.   Everybody brings their own tools, so maybe a
20 hammer.  Any large equipment is Newway's equipment.
21      Q.   Did Baja supply any of the equipment itself?
22      A.   I'm not sure.
23      Q.   Okay.  You mentioned previously that you
24 personally were not really on the worksite at 1120
25 Denny Way, correct?

Page 97

1      A.   Somebody was in charge, Noyes Rios.
2      Q.   Did they ever tell you that anyone else was
3 in charge?
4      A.   I believe there was.  I don't know their
5 names.
6      Q.   How often did you come to a worksite in the
7 relevant period?
8      A.   It used to be every week until about 2019,
9 later in 2019.

10      Q.   And after that through August 2020 how often
11 was it?
12      A.   I didn't go down.
13      Q.   Sorry?
14      A.   I didn't go down to the site.
15      Q.   Okay.  So after late 2019 you were never
16 there?
17      A.   Actually, I apologize.  Maybe once, I did go
18 down once.
19      Q.   Okay.  What is the source of knowledge
20 about -- your source of knowledge -- I know you're
21 testifying today on behalf of Newway.  Where did you
22 get your information about breaks and who set those
23 breaks?
24      A.   That was the one question I asked Tom Grant.
25      Q.   Okay.  Did you discuss breaks other than
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1                       BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday,
2      April 26, 2022, at 9:03 a.m., before Michelle D.
3      Elam, Certified Court Reporter, RPR, appeared via
4      Zoom, MERCEDES Z. DE ARMAS, the witness herein;
5                       WHEREUPON, the following
6      proceedings were had remotely:
7
8                        <<<<<< >>>>>>
9

10      MERCEDES Z. DE ARMAS,  having been first duly
11                             sworn by the Certified
12                             Court Reporter, testified
13                             as follows:
14
15                         EXAMINATION
16      BY MS. FRANKLIN:
17 Q    Good morning, Ms. De Armas.
18           Could you please state your full name, spelling
19      your first and last name.
20 A    Mercedes Z. De Armas.  First name is Mercedes,
21      M-e-r-c-e-d-e-s.  Last name De Armas, is D-e, space
22      A-r-m-a-s.
23 Q    Thank you.  And my name is Erica Franklin, and I am an
24      attorney for the City of Seattle, and I will be taking
25      your deposition today.
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1           I am here today to take your deposition in the
2      Appeal of Baja Concrete USA Corp., Roberto Contreras,
3      Newway Forming, Incorporated, and Antonio Machado,
4      before the Hearing Examiner, in Case Number LS-21-002,
5      003, and 004.
6           Is there any reason, such as unusual stress or a
7      physical or mental condition or the influence of
8      substances that would prevent you from giving truthful
9      testimony today?

10 A    Preventing me from what?  I'm sorry.
11 Q    From providing truthful and complete testimony today?
12      From answering the questions truthfully?
13 A    No, other than the fact that in 35 years in the United
14      States, it's the first time I'm involved or I'm in a
15      deposition.  So I have no idea what this is.  I guess
16      that's what it is.
17 Q    That's okay.  I'm about to give you some ground rules
18      that will hopefully help you understand this process.
19           I see that Mr. Larkin is in the room where you're
20      seated today.
21           Is anyone else present with you today?
22 A    No.
23 Q    Thank you.
24           Have you ever testified in an official
25      proceeding, such as a court proceeding?
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1      If you don't know the answer to a question, you
2 need to indicate that you don't know.
3      And if you need to give an estimate rather than a
4 precise answer, you can do that, but you need to
5 indicate that you're just providing that as an
6 estimate.
7      If you don't understand a question, you will need
8 to ask me for clarification because I will assume that
9 if you answer a question without asking for

10 clarification, then you understood my question.
11      I realize we're on Zoom today, and sometimes
12 there can be technical issues.  If you have a
13 technical problem or for some other reason you miss a
14 part of my question, please let me know and I'll
15 repeat the question.  I will assume that if you answer
16 a question, you have heard the entire question.
17      This might be a long day, and we can take breaks
18 as needed, and you can certainly request a break.  But
19 I just ask that we don't take a break while a question
20 is pending.  So if I've asked a question, you need to
21 answer that question and then we can take a break.
22      If your attorney, Mr. Larkin, makes an objection,
23 you still need to answer my question, unless he
24 explicitly instructs you not to answer the question.
25      Did all of that make sense to you?
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1 A    No, never.
2 Q    So let me just give you basic understanding of how a
3      deposition works.
4           Basically I will ask you a question and you will
5      need to provide a direct and nonevasive answer to that
6      question.
7           You need to provide a complete answer to every
8      question.
9           And as you recall, you were put under oath just a

10      few minutes ago, which means that you're required to
11      provide truthful answers to all of my questions.
12           And there are a few things that make a deposition
13      a little bit different than a regular conversation.
14           The court reporter is transcribing this
15      deposition today, which means it's very important that
16      we take turns speaking and that we not speak over one
17      another or interrupt because it's very hard to
18      transcribe a conversation when there are two people
19      talking at once.
20           You also need to provide audible answers.  So you
21      need -- for yes-or-no questions, it's better to say:
22      "Yes" or "no" rather than "uh-huh" or "huh-uh" or
23      shaking your head or nodding your head because those
24      types of responses won't come through in the
25      transcript.
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1 A    Yes, it does.
2 Q    Thank you.
3           Do you have any questions about this process?
4 A    I just want you guys to know that even though I have
5      been in the country for a long, long time, English is
6      my second language.  And in the legal field -- I mean,
7      there are some questions that I may not understand.
8           But I'm so glad, Erica, that you said that I can
9      ask for classifications if I really don't understand

10      your question or if there is a question that is not
11      clear.
12 Q    Absolutely.  And please feel free to do so.
13 A    Okay.
14 Q    So I want to talk to you a little bit about today's
15      deposition, which is a 30(b)(6) deposition.
16                        MS. FRANKLIN:  And I would like to
17      mark as the first exhibit the deposition notice for
18      today's 30(b)(6) deposition, which I originally
19      labeled as Exhibit L, but I would like to mark that as
20      Exhibit 1 for today's deposition.
21                        MR. LARKIN:  Erica, did you send the
22      exhibits out?
23                        MS. FRANKLIN:  No, I did not.  I
24      just gave them to the court reporter.
25                        THE WITNESS:  What is the 30(b)(6)?
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1      this information to Baja?
2 A    What information Roberto -- could you clarify?
3 Q    How did it -- how did this arrangement whereby Roberto
4      provided information on worker hours to Baja, how did
5      that arrangement come to be?
6 A    So you're saying that -- how the agreement -- you're
7      saying that there was an agreement between Roberto and
8      Baja to provide the workers?
9 Q    Was there an agreement?

10 A    I don't understand the question.  Could you repeat it,
11      please?  I cannot hear well.
12 Q    Sure.  Let me try to clarify for you.
13           Was there an arrangement in which Roberto
14      provided information on the hours that workers worked
15      to Baja.
16 A    Oh, you're asking me if Roberto had an arrangement
17      with Baja Concrete --
18 Q    Yes.
19 A    -- for that?
20           I don't know.  I always saw that independently.
21 Q    At some point in time, did Baja talk to Roberto and
22      agree that Roberto would provide the service to Baja?
23 A    Oh, I guess that was all part of the agreement, yeah,
24      when the company was organized.
25 Q    Okay.  Can you tell me about that agreement?
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1                        THE WITNESS:  You mean, when I was
2      talking about, to me, the agreement happened in Canada
3      between Newway, Machado, Carlos, and Roberto?
4           That's what I understand.  Everything was there.
5      Then the company was open in the USA, and then Roberto
6      Contreras will come from Canada to take care of all of
7      the labors and the workers and everything.
8 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Okay.  We'll talk a little bit more
9      about -- I have some more questions for you about

10      Roberto and his relationship with Baja, which I'll
11      return to later.  But I want to talk to you more about
12      recording of hours and tracking hours that the workers
13      worked.
14           Let's pull up -- this will be Exhibit 2 for
15      today's deposition.  It's marked H.
16                               (Exhibit No. 2 marked for
17                               identification.)
18                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Ed, would you mind
19      just scrolling through so that the witness can see the
20      full document.
21           Thank you.
22 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  I know it's a bit tedious, and I'll
23      ask you about specific pages.  I just wanted you to
24      know what the whole document was.
25                        MR. LARKIN:  Erica, is this
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1 A    All I know is that Roberto was in charge of all of the
2      workers, all of the hiring, all the communication.
3      Everything was directly to Roberto Contreras to the
4      workers.
5 Q    And who put Roberto in charge of all of those things?
6 A    I think Roberto and Carlos from Canada.  The company
7      in Canada is also Carlos, the owner of the company in
8      Canada.
9           I don't know exactly the agreement in Canada with

10      them or the company or what it does, but I know that
11      was when they made the agreement to open the company
12      here in the USA, and it's coming from the agreement.
13      And Machado, Newway Forming and Canada -- I mean,
14      everything to me, the origin is Canada.  Baja Concrete
15      was open, and then he came from Canada, that's where
16      he came, from Canada, to really take of all of the
17      labor, to hire them, and to do everything.
18 Q    Okay.  But --
19 A    (Inaudible.)
20                               (Court Reporter requested
21                               clarification.)
22                        THE WITNESS:  Repeat what?
23                        THE COURT REPORTER:  The last
24      comment you just made.  I did not hear the complete
25      answer.
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1      Exhibit A, you said?
2                        MS. FRANKLIN:  It is Exhibit 2 for
3      this deposition.
4                        MR. LARKIN:  Exhibit 2.
5                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Okay.  Thank you, Ed.
6      I appreciate you scrolling through.
7 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Let's turn to the second page of --
8      actually -- I'm sorry.  Let's turn to -- the second
9      page will actually work.

10           It's marked Bates -- it ends in 0186.  I don't
11      know if you can see on your screen, but, yeah, the
12      second page of that PDF.
13           Ms. De Armas, have you seen this document or
14      anything like this before?
15 A    Yes, I have.
16 Q    And can you tell me what it is?
17 A    Those are the invoices Roberto Contreras prepared for
18      Newway Forming.  And I believe -- the attachment, I
19      believe, is the hours that he was going to bill.  And
20      so there was a congruency between those hours and the
21      hours that he would bill to the company for the
22      workers.
23           To me, that's not a time card at all.  It's just
24      something that he was using to bill, that's my
25      understanding, and put it on the invoice.  And those
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1      invoices are handwritten by Roberto.

2           He would prepare the whole thing, and he will

3      communicate with Newway Forming, Kwynne.  There was a

4      person there in the whole time -- I'm sorry.  I have

5      to understand that I am Baja Concrete, and sometimes I

6      go through accounting because they were needed for

7      financials, you know, to see the amount of

8      receivables.  But anyway, they were prepared by

9      Roberto and given to Newway Forming.

10 Q    Okay.  So this -- I'm referring to just the part that

11      you can see on the screen.  So Page 2 of this PDF, and

12      it's on the top, which is the side of the screen.  It

13      says, "Baja Concrete USA Time Sheet."

14           Who prepared that time sheet?  So I'm just asking

15      about this particular time sheet.

16 A    Roberto Contreras did.

17 Q    Do you know whose signature is on the upper right?

18 A    I believe he had to get that approved by Newway

19      Forming.  And Newway Forming will approve that.  That

20      needed to be together with the invoice to be able to

21      get paid.

22 Q    Okay.

23 A    I don't recognize the signature because I never on the

24      site.  I was never on the site, so I don't know the

25      people on the site.
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1 A    I think just to let her know because he was the one on
2      the field, he was the one with the workers, he was the
3      one taking care of all of the labor, and he was also
4      preparing the invoices for her.  And I think he needed
5      to let her know that that was the amount of
6      receivables or invoices.
7 Q    Did Baja -- did anyone at Baja have any input into the
8      content of the invoices?
9 A    I believe that was Claudia.

10 Q    And what kind of input did she provide?
11 A    I think it's just to let her know.
12 Q    Did anyone --
13 A    You know, Claudia lives in Florida, in Miami.
14 Q    Okay.  Did anyone at Baja verify that these time
15      sheets were correct?
16 A    Did anyone in Baja verify that that time sheet was
17      correct?
18 Q    Yeah.
19 A    Well, I'm going to tell you, Roberto will -- I believe
20      Roberto will do that.  He was the only one because
21      Claudia is in Miami.
22           So -- and I guess the signature of Newway
23      Forming, you are very fine, that that is correct.
24      Newway Forming is saying there, that is correct.  They
25      are signing that.
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1 Q    Okay.  But you're prepared today to speak on behalf of
2      Baja?
3 A    Yeah.
4 Q    Okay.
5 A    But Roberto was the one on the site, and Roberto is
6      not part of Baja, even though he put there Baja, I
7      guess he's trying to charge, you know, for the labor
8      because we needed to process -- I have no idea.  We
9      needed to process the payroll for those workers.

10           I mean, this is the invoices Roberto Contreras
11      did to collect -- to invoice Newway Forming.  I mean,
12      when you see the first page, it says the project that
13      they were -- that he was billing and the amount of
14      hours and the amount of things.  So this is, like, the
15      backup that Newway Forming requested to be attached to
16      the invoice.  And so that signature belongs to Newway
17      Forming.
18 Q    Okay.  Who provided the invoice to Newway?
19 A    Baja -- Roberto Contreras emailed directly to Kwynne
20      and -- the invoices.  And, of course, Claudia was in
21      the emails.
22 Q    Okay.  Did someone at Baja have any role in the
23      generating of the invoice?
24 A    I think he would talk to Claudia regarding this.
25 Q    What would they talk about?
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1           So I noticed in the document that they are all
2      signed.  So they were saying that that was correct,
3      somebody Newway Forming, because they are all approved
4      by Newway Forming.
5 Q    Did Baja do anything to assure itself that Roberto was

6      recording hours correctly?

7 A    Well, I'm telling you, as I understand -- I think
8      Claudia knew about it.  Claudia has no way to really
9      verify because she's not on the site.  There was

10      nobody on the site but Roberto.  That's why I was
11      saying, he acted totally independently.  And that's
12      part of the agreement that they made, probably.
13 Q    Probably or do you know for sure about the agreement,

14      just to clarify?

15 A    Well, you know, it's an agreement but it's not in
16      writing, so it's difficult when things are not in
17      writing.  So -- and I'm just an agent.  I wasn't
18      there.  But I can see the document and I can testify
19      that that is Newway Forming approving, and I see the
20      handwriting of Roberto on the invoices, and I know he
21      was doing all of this.  And then he was charging to
22      get paid for the company.
23           So it looks like part of the agreement is that
24      Roberto will also bill on behalf of Baja Concrete
25      these things.  So he was doing that job, I guess.
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1 Q    Okay.  How are the time cards created?
2 A    Well, Roberto -- apparently, what I heard, it was that
3      they needed to copy from Newway time cards and they
4      needed to put it in that simple thing and that kind of
5      way for this invoice.  And they prepare a summary for
6      the payroll and to put the hours and to put the amount
7      of exactly how much the workers were going to get
8      paid, according to the hours or whatever.
9           I never seen a time card for Baja Concrete.

10      Never.  A time card, what is a time card?  No.  But I
11      know that some of the -- a worker said -- that came to
12      the office said that -- dropping the summaries when
13      Roberto couldn't, he said that he was taking the
14      summary from Newway time cards.
15           I was -- I'm just telling you what I -- I don't
16      know if this is okay to say that somebody told me
17      that, but I'm telling the truth.
18           He said he will copy everything from the Newway
19      time cards because they will not allow them out of the
20      site, so he needed to prepare a summary.
21           And, you know, Mercedes Accounting as a payroll
22      company, they don't request any time cards.  You just
23      need to give them a summary or whatever because the
24      company is the one -- Baja Concrete were the ones.
25           But the workers were not -- the workers were on
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1      worked -- the workers on its payroll worked?
2 A    We only have the summaries that Roberto will provide.
3      He will take that summary from Newway time cards.  He
4      will -- the workers were at Newway Forming.  So ...
5 Q    Okay.
6 A    I never seen a time card of Newway Forming, though.  I
7      always seen the summary that Roberto will prepare for
8      the time cards that were signed by Newway Forming.
9                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Let's turn to the

10      second page of this exhibit, again, if we can.
11           Thank you.
12 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Is this what you mean by the
13      summary that Roberto would prepare?
14 A    No, that's not a summary.  There was a very detailed
15      summary that listed every employee, the hours, and
16      there was any details.  There were some tools,
17      whatever to deduct.  Then the total net, because --
18      the total net that they supposed to be paid.
19           So it was a big -- a detail of every employee,
20      total hours and everything.  A summary that will
21      say -- to be able for payroll to do it.  And payroll
22      only needed the name of the employee, the hours, and
23      he will include the net that needed to be paid to each
24      employee because some of the employees, the agreement
25      was to pay them a net amount.  Workers -- you know, I
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1      Newway Forming, right, on the site of Newway Forming's
2      projects.  So who knew that was Roberto, if he was
3      there, and the Newway Forming project managers and the
4      people who was there.  So they know.
5 Q    Okay.  So I just -- I want to refer you back to this
6      topic, which part of the topic is the method of
7      determining the wages owed to workers.
8           And Baja paid workers' wages; right?
9 A    Yes.

10 Q    Okay.  So are you prepared to testify today as to the
11      method for determining how much money was owed to
12      these workers in wages?
13 A    Yes.
14 Q    Okay.  Did Mr. -- did Roberto -- were there any
15      differences between the hours shown on the time cards
16      and the hours in the summary that Roberto prepared?
17 A    Well, I have never done any checking on that, but to
18      me, this is -- what is attached here is not a time
19      card.  It's a summary of hours to bill Newway Forming.
20      If there is any difference -- I don't know if there is
21      any difference.
22 Q    Okay.  But does Baja have any documentation of the
23      hours that workers worked?
24 A    You mean the summary?
25 Q    Any documentation showing how many hours workers
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1      don't know if all of them.  Don't recall.  But they
2      wanted to --
3                        MR. LARKIN:  Mercedes, it's best if
4      you just answer the question directly --
5                        THE WITNESS:  Okay.
6                        MR. LARKIN:  -- and not go on.
7                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah, yeah, yeah,
8      you're right.
9           So could you clarify the question again, Erica?

10 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  So let's just switch gears a little
11      bit.
12           Did the summary that -- the summaries that
13      Roberto would prepare, did those accurately reflect
14      the hours that the workers worked?
15 A    Well, I always thought those were for billing, and I
16      never check anything.  But the detailed summary was
17      the correct hours.
18 Q    And, again, for you in this case, that would be Baja.
19      So you're speaking on behalf of Baja.
20           To Baja's knowledge, were the payroll summaries
21      an accurate reflection of the hours that the workers
22      truly worked?
23 A    Well, you see, Roberto was the one who did the
24      summary.  So if Roberto says those were the hours,
25      those were the hours.  He was on the site.  He was
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1      Roberto said that he was -- he was taking from Newway,
2      but Newway would not give to him.  I understand that
3      is the property of Newway Forming.  So they were
4      taking this summary from those time cards.
5           So actually, we didn't need it.  We didn't need
6      it.  Why we needed the time cards for Newway Forming?
7      We needed the amounts, and we trust the amounts were
8      right, and they were to the payroll processing.
9                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Okay.  Now let's turn

10      to another exhibit.  This one was originally marked A.
11           And, Ms. Elam, are we on Exhibit 4?
12                        THE COURT REPORTER:  Yes.
13                        MS. FRANKLIN:  So let's mark this as
14      Exhibit 4, please.
15                               (Exhibit No. 4 marked for
16                               identification.)
17                        MS. FRANKLIN:  And, Ed, could you
18      just scroll through so the witness can see the full
19      document, please.
20 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Okay.  Ms. De Armas, do you
21      recognize this document?
22 A    Oh, yeah, those pay stubs.  Yeah, I've seen this
23      document.
24 Q    Okay.  Who generated this document?
25 A    That is Mercedes Accounting, the payroll processor.
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1           Just show me the one you want me to see.  It's
2      okay.  We can go with this one because they are all
3      the same.
4 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Okay.  Can we talk about the one
5      we're looking at?
6 A    Okay.
7 Q    For the record, it says 12/07/2018.
8 A    Oh, okay.
9 Q    So how was this employee paid, based on this pay stub?

10 A    Show me the bottom.
11                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Okay.  Ed, could you
12      go down a bit.
13                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  For instance,
14      this employee, in the summary, was that he needed to
15      get a net pay for 856.00.  If you review some of the
16      pay stubs, you will see they are all even numbers.
17      They don't have any decimals because he wanted to get
18      paid $856.  And then the hours were put in the summary
19      by Roberto; right?  And there is a bonus there because
20      that's rent he was paid to be able to accomplish the
21      $856 that the employee is supposed to get paid,
22      according to Roberto's summary.
23           So he will say in that summary, net pay 856 for
24      this one.  And these are the hours, and, you know --
25      usually the rate will not show.  That's why I was
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1      Those are the pay stubs.
2 Q    And were they paid from Baja Concrete's payroll?
3 A    Yeah, Baja Concrete's payroll.
4 Q    And was Mercedes Accounting working on behalf of Baja
5      in producing these pay stubs?
6 A    No.  Mercedes Accounting is not working on behalf of
7      Baja.  Maybe I don't understand the question.
8           This is Baja Concrete reporting the hours and
9      Mercedes Accounting is processing the payroll for them

10      and giving the pay stubs to them, according to the
11      summary hours that Roberto reported.
12                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Okay.  Let's look at
13      the second page of this PDF, if we could, please.  I
14      know it's kind of hard to see.  Actually, let's scroll
15      down just to -- there we go.
16 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  So was this employee paid on an
17      hourly basis?
18 A    No, not really.  Well, it's hard to tell because --
19      could you show the net pay at the bottom?
20                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Can you scroll down a
21      bit?  Oh, is it up above where it says "Net Pay"?
22                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Yeah.  This
23      is -- this is -- if I see this -- could you go to the
24      first page or a little bit up.  It doesn't matter
25      which one, or you want to see a particular one?

Page 53

1      asking you to go through others.  So in this case,
2      they put the rate.  I don't know.  Usually
3      sometimes -- this is a regular pay, you know, so he
4      had -- maybe this employee had a different agreement
5      with Roberto.  I don't know.  But the bonus that you
6      see there is just a bonus to be able to come up with
7      856.
8 Q    When you talk about an agreement with Roberto, are you
9      talking about a verbal agreement or a written

10      agreement?
11 A    An agreement with what?  Roberto?
12 Q    You said the worker had an agreement with Roberto.
13           What kind of agreement are you talking about?
14 A    Yeah.  Roberto always said, these are the agreement
15      with the workers.  And how he has it with them, I
16      don't know.  I don't know if it was verbal or written
17      or he took notes.  I have no idea.
18           But he -- in the report, he will say this guy was
19      72 hours and he's supposed to be 156 and that's it.
20      And then the rate -- consider the rate will be 20 in
21      this case.  So anyway.
22 Q    Was Baja willing to take it on faith that the
23      employees -- that workers were paid the amount that
24      they agreed upon?
25 A    I'm sorry.  Could you repeat the question?
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1 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  I'm going to turn to -- if you look
2      towards the bottom, there are tax amounts on this
3      document.
4           How did Baja determine the appropriate amount of
5      taxes to withhold?
6 A    You mean how the calculation was made to pay the
7      taxes?
8 Q    Yeah.  How did it determine what amount it should
9      withhold for each of these taxes listed here?

10 A    What do you mean, "withhold"?  The withholding are
11      done by law, right, by regulation.  They have to be
12      done what it is.
13           And all the difference is that we were giving the
14      workers the money to cover those things.  And at the
15      same time they will have a net pay that they will
16      want.  Because the agreement with them -- with Roberto
17      was the net pay, it was 785.
18           If this is this way, it's because Roberto put in
19      the summary that that is the way it was going to be.
20 Q    Okay.  I'm going to ask a slightly different question
21      about -- while we're talking about payments to workers
22      listed on Attachment B.
23           Did they make less than workers who worked for
24      Newway but were not on Baja's payroll?
25 A    Are you saying that the workers for Baja were paid
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1 A    That is somebody requested that from the payroll
2      department -- from the payroll.
3 Q    And if you look at the second-to-last column, it looks
4      like -- do pay rates vary from employee to employee?
5 A    Yeah.
6 Q    And why was that?
7 A    You know, if a worker works 80 hours or a hundred
8      hours or whatever it is and they are paid a net, the
9      way to get how much -- the rate that he's paying is

10      dividing, you know, the total that he's receiving by
11      the hours and then you get the regular rate.  And, you
12      know, in the system, that's done automatically in the
13      case of the peace work.
14           So -- and also, I remember -- if this is 2019 and
15      '18 -- this is 2020.  This was done in -- because
16      Roberto will give the rate the employee was getting
17      paid.
18           I remember he mentioned every employee -- suppose
19      they were helpers, suppose they were finishers,
20      suppose they -- have more experience than another.  So
21      it's normal that the rates are different.
22 Q    Okay.  Would these pay rates be reflected in the
23      invoices that Baja sent to Newway?
24 A    No.  As you recall, the invoice has a different hourly
25      rate.  It's a little bit more than that.  And I cannot
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1      less money than Newway?
2 Q    Did they receive less money than workers who were
3      working for Newway but were not on Baja's payroll?
4                        MR. LARKIN:  I'm going to object to
5      that too.  I don't think --
6                        THE WITNESS:  No, we have no idea.
7                        MR. LARKIN:  Mercedes isn't here to
8      testify as to Newway.
9                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Okay.  Just a moment

10      here.
11           I'm figuring out the next line of questioning.
12           Okay.  If we could pull up another exhibit,
13      please.  This one is marked E, and I believe we're on
14      Exhibit 6 for this deposition.
15                               (Exhibit No. 6 marked for
16                               identification.)
17                        MS. FRANKLIN:  And if you could just
18      scroll down, if you wouldn't mind, so she can see the
19      full document.
20 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Okay.  Ms. De Armas, can you see
21      this okay?
22 A    Yeah.
23 Q    Okay.  And are you familiar with this document?
24 A    It's a payroll detail -- employee information.
25 Q    Okay.  And who generated this document?
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1      say that it would be the same because the rate will
2      change, Roberto will increase sometimes the rate to
3      some employees.  You know what I mean?  There will be
4      sometimes changes on that.
5           At the moment this was printed, that was probably
6      the case in 2019 and '20.  But after that, it's
7      probably higher.
8 Q    So if an invoice has reflected a higher amount of
9      pay -- a higher rate of pay than the actual rate,

10      where did the difference go?
11 A    Well, you know, the difference goes to all of the
12      government, to the IRS.  You know, the company pays
13      50 percent of all of the FICA, social -- all of the
14      FICA that needs to be paid.  So the difference goes to
15      expenses.
16 Q    When --
17 A    That's what I'm telling you, it's not a good deal for
18      Baja.  It never was.
19 Q    When Baja billed Newway for the amount due its
20      workers, did it account for payroll taxes?
21 A    I'm sorry.  Could you repeat, Erica?
22 Q    Sure.
23           When Baja billed Newway, did those invoices
24      account for payroll taxes that Baja would need to pay?
25 A    It should be.  It should have been included
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1      everything, yes.
2 Q    So --
3 A    It should have included everything.
4 Q    So can you help me understand what you mean, then,
5      when you said -- I was asking if the invoice amount
6      pay rate is higher than the actual pay rate.  I think
7      you said a minute ago the difference goes to taxes.
8      But you're also saying that the --
9 A    Taxes and expenses.

10 Q    But you're saying the invoice already accounts for
11      taxes and expenses; is that right?
12 A    Yeah.  And I'm saying it wasn't enough.
13 Q    Did the difference go to anything other than taxes and
14      expenses?
15 A    No.  All will go to taxes and expenses for the
16      company.  Always go to every expenses.  And, you know,
17      all the expenses and all of the -- that the company
18      will have.
19 Q    Did Baja bill Newway for -- for amounts that it stated
20      were due to workers and then used that -- used the
21      money it received for something other than paying
22      workers?
23 A    What do you mean?  Could you clarify that?
24 Q    Yes.
25           Okay.  So you said that Baja used -- when Baja
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1      that money for something other than paying workers?
2      Just to make sure I'm clear on your answer.
3 A    No.  There's no other than paying workers, no.  It's a
4      business.  The business is providing labor for Newway.
5      To run that business, there are always other expenses.
6           So that rate that Newway Forming and Roberto
7      Contreras, or whatever -- whoever did it, agree,
8      should include the whole thing.  In this case, it was
9      paid to Baja Concrete.  Okay.

10           Baja Concrete has the invoice.  That $42 per hour
11      or $44 per hour should include all of the expenses
12      because, you know, it's providing labor.  There are
13      many companies that provide labor and they will have
14      to include even profits on the labor.
15 Q    Okay.  Just one moment, please.
16           So just to clarify, the answer is -- the answer
17      to the question of whether there was the amount billed
18      for labor went to something other than paying
19      employees, the answer is that -- to that question is
20      yes; is that correct?
21                        MR. LARKIN:  Object to the extent
22      that that mischaracterizes her testimony.
23 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Okay.  Let me just ask you -- I'm
24      really just looking for a yes or no.
25           Did the amount that Baja billed to Newway for
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1      billed Newway for one amount -- for one rate of pay
2      and then the worker ended up receiving a lower rate of
3      pay, you said that the difference went to Baja's
4      expenses; is that correct?
5 A    Yeah.
6 Q    So are you saying that Baja billed Newway for an
7      amount that it stated to Newway would be used to pay
8      workers and, in fact, Baja used that money to pay
9      other expenses besides payroll expenses?

10 A    Well, everything -- you know, everything is included
11      in a rate.  Everything.  If I give you a worker and
12      I'm going to charge you for that worker, even profit
13      should be included in that rate and all the expenses
14      that I have for that worker, because Baja is a
15      business, it's a corporation.  It has licensing, it
16      has all kinds of things.  It has Mercedes Accounting,
17      it has all kinds of things that I need to have to pay
18      for payroll services, I mean, administrative.  All
19      kinds of things.
20           So that rate should include all kinds of expenses
21      in the invoice to Newway to be able to operate and
22      have the payroll, you have to include all of that in
23      there.  And even profit.  Nobody works for free.
24 Q    So Baja billed -- are you saying that Baja billed
25      Newway for a certain amount for labor and used some of
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1      labor costs, did Baja use some of that for something
2      other than paying workers.
3 A    I think I answered that.
4                        MR. LARKIN:  Yeah, same objection --
5      or different objection.  Asked and answered multiple
6      times.
7 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Okay.  I have some questions about
8      paying workers.
9           In what form were the workers paid?

10 A    In what form?
11 Q    Like, a check, direct deposit, cash?
12 A    No, never cash.  It was always through a paycheck.
13 Q    Okay.  How frequently were workers paid?
14 A    Every two weeks.
15 Q    Did Baja provide pay stubs like the one that we looked
16      at previously to its workers?
17 A    Yes.  They were all sent by the payroll company to
18      Roberto Contreras and copy Claudia.
19 Q    And where -- strike that.
20           During the relevant period, was Baja aware that
21      workers felt that they were being underpaid?
22 A    I'm sorry.  Could you repeat the question?
23 Q    During the relevant time period, was Baja aware that
24      at least certain workers felt they were being
25      underpaid?
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1                        MS. FRANKLIN:  I'm talking about

2      Baja, I'm talking about the US -- Baja Concrete USA.

3 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  So when did individuals who were --

4      people who were working for Newway first come into

5      contact with people who were working for Baja Concrete

6      USA?

7 A    Okay.  You have to repeat that.  Sometimes I cannot

8      hear well, what you are saying.

9 Q    Oh, sure.  Sorry.  It can be hard over Zoom.

10 A    Yeah.

11 Q    When did people who were working for Newway first come

12      into contact with people who worked for Baja Concrete

13      USA?

14 A    I don't know any of that.  Roberto would know.

15 Q    Why would Roberto know?

16 A    Remember, this is an agreement coming from Canada, and

17      they made the agreement there.  And, you know,

18      everything comes to him in the USA.  So Roberto is

19      part of the agreement -- a partner there -- I don't

20      know exactly why he's in Canada.  So it was set up

21      there.

22 Q    When did the companies Newway Forming and Baja

23      Concrete USA first interact with one another?

24 A    I don't know.

25 Q    Are you prepared today to testify about the origins of
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1      registered in Washington after that.  So I guess I
2      don't know.  That's why I will need to see the
3      secretary of the state, the registration.
4 Q    When Baja first incorporated, had Baja already -- had
5      individuals from Baja already come into contact with
6      individuals from Newway?
7 A    When Baja was first incorporated, you mean in Florida?
8 Q    Yeah.
9 A    Well, I believe the organization was open because of

10      the agreement in Canada.
11 Q    So Baja was formed because of an agreement in Canada
12      involving Tony Machado, Roberto Soto condition, and
13      Carlos Penunuri?
14 A    Carlos and Newway Forming in Canada.  I guess there is
15      a Newway Forming in Canada.  They were all there.
16      It's coming from Canada.  I mean, they were all new to
17      each other there, so that's the birth.
18 Q    Was the -- was this relationship an agreement between
19      Roberto and Newway and Baja -- was that -- and Carlos,
20      was that the impetus for Baja incorporating?
21 A    Was that the what?
22 Q    Was that the reason that Baja incorporated?
23 A    Well, they probably wanted to do that and something
24      else, as any business, yeah.  Wanted to do that and
25      something else.
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1      the relationship between Newway Forming and Baja
2      Concrete as Baja's representative?
3 A    As the origins of Baja Concrete USA?
4 Q    The origins of the relationship between Baja Concrete
5      USA and Newway Forming.
6 A    And Newway Forming.  Well, yeah, I think I have said
7      many things about that already.
8 Q    Okay.  So what I would like to know right now is about
9      the first time Newway Forming and Baja Concrete USA

10      first interacted as companies.
11 A    I understood and I understand that happened in Canada.
12      Newway Forming Mr. Machado, Carlos and Roberto.
13 Q    Okay.  How -- which individuals approached the other?
14 A    That, I don't know.  We need to talk to Roberto, to
15      Newway Forming.  I really don't know.  I'm just
16      telling you what I understand how this happened at the
17      very beginning.
18 Q    Okay.  When did Baja register in Washington as a
19      corporation?
20 A    When did Baja register in Washington?
21 Q    Yes.
22 A    Well, we need to take a look at the registration.  I
23      don't remember it now.
24 Q    Okay.  When was Baja first incorporated?
25 A    It was first incorporated in Florida and then
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1 Q    Was Baja incorporated in order to provide labor to
2      Newway?
3 A    Could you please repeat?
4 Q    Was the purpose of Baja's formation as a company so
5      that it could provide labor to Newway?
6 A    That was, like, the first contract for the company,
7      but I believe the company wanted to do other contracts
8      too.
9 Q    Okay.  Did Baja register in Washington so that it

10      could work with Newway?
11 A    Yeah, correct because that was the only -- the only
12      project, the only agreement that was -- that existed
13      at that time.  But also the registration would happen
14      because Baja wanted to have other projects from other
15      companies too.
16 Q    So does Baja do business with companies other than
17      Newway?
18 A    No, they never get to it.
19 Q    So Newway is the only company that Baja has ever done
20      business with is that what you're saying?
21 A    Yeah.  I think they required a lot of labor.  They
22      have many projects.  I mean, they were big, but I
23      think there is -- well --
24                        MR. LARKIN:  It's okay.  You
25      answered the question.
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1                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.
2 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  I'm sorry.  You were saying they
3      were really big?
4 A    Well, Newway Forming was providing a lot of projects.
5      They needed a lot of labor.  Baja Concrete is not a
6      big company, you know.
7 Q    Okay.  So Carl -- does Carlos have a relationship
8      with -- a personal relationship with Antonio Machado?
9 A    You mean Carlos --

10 Q    Penunuri.
11 A    I believe they are friends or business related, at
12      least.
13 Q    Did Carlos have a personal relationship with anyone
14      else at Newway?
15                        MR. LARKIN:  Object to the form of
16      the question.
17           I think, again, Mercedes is not here to testify
18      for --
19                        THE WITNESS:  Newway.
20                        MR. LARKIN:  -- Newway.  Sorry.
21                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Okay.  I'm just
22      trying to sort of understand the nature of the
23      relationship between Baja and Newway.
24                        MR. LARKIN:  Oh, okay.
25 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Does anyone at -- let me rephrase
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1      than the 1120 Denny Way worksite?
2 A    I mean, did Newway send -- I'm sorry.  Could you
3      repeat the question?
4 Q    Did Newway ever send Baja workers to worksites other
5      than 1120 Denny Way?
6 A    Well, Roberto would know that better than me.  But
7      through the invoices, I think there were several
8      sites.
9 Q    Okay.  And did Baja workers work at several sites with

10      Newway Forming?
11 A    Who?  Could you repeat again?
12 Q    Did Baja workers work at several different sites with
13      Newway Forming?
14 A    Did Baja workers -- you mean Baja -- that was on the
15      payroll.
16 Q    Yes, workers on Baja payroll, did they work at
17      multiple worksites with Newway Forming?
18 A    I think so.  I think there was more than one site.
19      Not very many, but there were more than one.
20 Q    Just give me a moment.
21                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Is this a good time
22      to take a brief break, or maybe more of an extended
23      break?
24                        MR. LARKIN:  A lunch break?  That
25      would be great.
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1      this:  Did anyone at Baja have a personal relationship
2      with anyone at Newway?
3 A    Baja personal relationship with anyone at Newway?  Not
4      that I know.
5 Q    Okay.  Can you describe the current relationship
6      between Baja and Newway, please.
7 A    The current one?  It's a legal matter now.
8 Q    I'm not asking you to describe any conversations
9      between the companies in litigation, but just separate

10      from that.
11 A    I believe there is none.
12 Q    Are Baja personnel currently in contact with Newway
13      personnel?
14 A    I'm sorry.  Is Baja what?
15 Q    Does anyone who currently works for Baja in contact
16      with anyone who currently works for Newway, separate
17      from this litigation?
18 A    I don't know they are still there, but I know some of
19      the workers stopped working through Baja and they went
20      to work for Newway.
21 Q    Okay.  What about people with supervisory experience
22      or managers?  Are any managers from Baja currently in
23      contact with anyone at Newway?
24 A    Not that I know.
25 Q    Did Newway ever send Baja workers to worksites other
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1                        MS. FRANKLIN:  We can go off the
2      record for a moment.
3                               (Recess from 12:04 p.m. to
4                               12:51 p.m.)
5                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Let's go back.
6           I would like to pull up an exhibit we've already
7      seen before.  I'm afraid I forget the exhibit number,
8      but it was Angel Gomez Chavez.  I marked it as B.
9           No.  B, as in boy.

10                        EXHIBIT TECH:  One second.
11                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Sure.  No worries.
12      Yes.  Thank you.
13           I'm just trying to figure out the page we were
14      looking at previously.
15           Okay.  Let's look at the page where -- it's the
16      fifth page of the PDF.  It's 0418, the Bates number on
17      the bottom.
18                        MS. SYLVESTER:  I believe the
19      previous one was 16.
20                        MS. FRANKLIN:  It's okay.
21 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  So, Ms. De Armas, I know before the
22      break we were talking about how Baja starts with net
23      pay and identifies a bonus based on that.
24           What I'm trying to understand is whether Baja --
25      how Baja complies with its obligations under Seattle
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1      Labor of Standards and other labor law?
2           For example, does Baja go and calculate how many
3      hours the person was working and what their hourly pay
4      rate was?
5 A    No.  Roberto was doing that.
6 Q    Roberto was doing those calculations and figuring out
7      hourly pay rate?
8 A    Yeah, Roberto will do that.  And Roberto would just
9      report in a summary to payroll exactly what they

10      needed to get paid.  And the only thing the system
11      will do is calculate the bonus.  The peace work of
12      1,584, you know, is the gross to be able to come up
13      with 1,084.  He would put the hours, he would put
14      that.  And then the bonus would be calculated in the
15      system to make sure he would not pay for the taxes,
16      because that's the agreement with the employees, that
17      they would receive a net certain amount for working.
18 Q    Did Baja ask Roberto to calculate the hourly pay in
19      situations where workers were being paid on a rate
20      other than -- on a basis other than an hourly basis?
21 A    Roberto didn't -- Baja didn't ask anything to Roberto.
22      Roberto was doing that for his agreement with
23      employees because he was hiring the workers.
24 Q    Did Baja agree with employees, that he would ensure
25      that their payments complied with labor law?
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1           And so -- but he work as a peace work.  So we
2      will -- you know, the hours -- Roberto will say too.
3      So it was all a combination.  Okay, this is what
4      you're getting and this is the net and that's it.
5 Q    So there was some kind of calculation that was done to
6      determine how much an employee was owed; correct?
7 A    Yeah.  And that was done between Roberto and the
8      worker.  That was the agreement with them.
9 Q    Did Baja -- how does Baja know that in every case

10      Roberto made an agreement with the worker?
11 A    Well, Baja knows.  Baja -- Roberto was the one
12      reporting.  Roberto was the one hiring.  Roberto was
13      the one disciplining, firing.  He was on his own.  And
14      this is the agreement, and he was doing all of that.
15           Remember, he comes an agreement with Canada.  So
16      he will hire.  He will do every single thing.  The
17      only intervention from us would be that he reported a
18      summary.  He gave it to payroll in Baja, and then Baja
19      will do the payroll and will pay everything that is
20      needed.
21 Q    Whose responsibility was it to ensure that workers
22      were paid in accordance with the law?
23 A    Roberto.  Roberto needed to make sure, and Roberto
24      knew we -- not we.  I myself explained to Roberto all
25      the things that he needed to pay to the government.
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1 A    Oh, yeah.  Payroll, everything that he reported, we
2      make sure everything will comply with the laws, with
3      everything.
4 Q    So is payroll calculating what the hourly pay was for
5      each employee?
6 A    You see it says peace work.  So he -- this employee
7      has the hours that he reported, but it has the amount
8      that employee wanted to get paid.  It's like a
9      contract.  I am going to get paid $3,000 for this,

10      net.  Okay.  Then he wanted to have that.  So if there
11      was any extra to cover, Roberto wanted to cover
12      everything, then the bonus will pick up and so the
13      employee will get paid more.  You know, that bonus is
14      extra.  He didn't earn that.  But it's there to give
15      him the net pay.  So the company was calculating that
16      way.  That's what Roberto was doing.
17 Q    So setting aside the bonus, was this employee Angel
18      Gomez Chavez, was he paid a peace rate or an hourly
19      rate?
20 A    No.  It was a peace work.  And he -- Roberto would
21      provide the hours that he worked, which, as I said
22      before, is in another report, because all of them has
23      to have hours because we needed to report to L&I.  So
24      everything is reported to L&I in the hours he
25      reported.
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1      So he was making sure that everything was done.
2           That's why they hired payroll Mercedes Accounting
3      because they wanted to pay every single thing.  And
4      Roberto will report because we have no contact with
5      workers and no contact with sites, anything like that.
6      He would need to report everything.  So he was
7      reporting everything.
8           So all of the payroll that you will see is based
9      on whatever Roberto reported.

10 Q    But --
11 A    Like any payroll company.
12 Q    When Mercedes Accounting instructed Roberto on how to
13      do the calculation, were those instructions verbal or
14      in writing?
15 A    What do you mean?  What calculation?
16           No, we didn't instruct Roberto to do any
17      calculations.  He would make the calculations.  He
18      will report to us what we needed to pay and the hours
19      and everything.
20 Q    Okay.  So I'm going to shift gears again back to Topic
21      No. 6.
22           During the relevant time period, again, that's
23      February 2018 to August 2020, did money ever flow from
24      Baja to Newway?
25 A    You mean Baja paying Newway?
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1      Contreras, including any formal relationship
2      memorialized in writing, what Baja asked Mr. Soto to
3      do, what requests Baja made of Mr. Soto with respect
4      to the hiring, firing, and payment of workers.  The
5      origins of the relationship between Mr. Baja --
6      between Baja and Mr. Soto and the current status of
7      the relationship."
8                        MS. FRANKLIN:  So if we could, I
9      would like to move to -- I believe we're on Exhibit 8

10      and this is -- I marked it as G in my files.
11                               (Exhibit No. 8 marked for
12                               identification.)
13 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Ms. De Armas, are you familiar with
14      this document?
15 A    Well, I'll tell you, the first time I saw this
16      document was when Alex --
17                        MR. LARKIN:  It was when --
18                        THE WITNESS:  -- show it to me.
19                        MR. LARKIN:  Like, a month ago or
20      so.  Maybe a couple months ago.  Somebody produced it
21      in discovery, yeah, in this case.
22           Sorry.  I'm not supposed to answer the question.
23                        THE WITNESS:  This is the first
24      time -- yeah.
25 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  And is this a business card?
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1 A    No.  Baja Concrete Ltd. was billing for Roberto's work
2      because he live in Canada, he stayed there.  He
3      goes -- he was going often to Canada, back to Canada,
4      back and forth, and he was paid by them.
5           Now, Baja Concrete USA, there were times that
6      Roberto needed some money right away, right, and so
7      Claudia will give him an advance that later was
8      deducted from the invoices that Ltd. was billing.
9 Q    So Ltd. -- Baja Concrete Ltd. billed Baja Concrete USA

10      Corp. for the payments that Ltd. paid to Roberto; is
11      that correct?
12 A    Well, Baja Concrete Ltd. was billing all the time for
13      Roberto.  I think -- I'm not quite sure, but I think
14      Roberto is a partner with Baja Concrete Ltd.  But they
15      were just billing Baja Concrete USA here.
16           So the money would go to Canada, wire, whatever.
17      And I was just telling you that sometimes Roberto
18      needed money and Claudia would give some advances that
19      were taken care of later when -- you know, need to be
20      deducted from the invoices.  That's all.
21 Q    And how did Baja Concrete Ltd. -- how much did Baja
22      Concrete Ltd. pay to Roberto for his services?
23 A    I have no idea.  That's between Baja Concrete Ltd. ...
24 Q    Okay.  How much did Baja Concrete Ltd. bill Baja
25      Concrete USA for Roberto?
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1 A    Well, they put Baja Concrete but they have the address
2      in Florida.  The email belongs to Roberto Soto, and
3      the information is Roberto Soto and Carlos.  So it has
4      nothing to do with really Baja Concrete USA.  They
5      probably did it.  I have no idea.  We need to ask
6      Roberto and Carlos.
7 Q    Did Baja have any knowledge of this -- the printing of
8      this business card?
9 A    As far as I know, no.  This is the first time I see

10      it, a month ago.
11 Q    During the relevant time period, did Baja pay
12      Mr. Soto -- Roberto for his work on its behalf?
13 A    No.  Baja Concrete USA was paying Baja Concrete Ltd.
14      in Canada.  But there were some times that Roberto was
15      given an advance, which we will account to the Baja
16      Concrete Ltd. Canada.
17           So, you know, when we receive the invoices from
18      Baja Concrete Ltd. Canada, well, that was the account
19      for that.  So that was the procedure.  Baja Concrete
20      Ltd. Canada would bill Baja Concrete USA Corp. in USA
21      for all of the work Roberto was doing here.
22 Q    So if I understand correctly, just -- Roberto was
23      being paid by Baja Concrete Ltd. and Baja Concrete USA
24      Corp. was reimbursing Baja Concrete Ltd. for that
25      expense; is that correct?
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1 A    Well, I don't have any amount on the top of my mind,
2      but there was a monthly invoice and it would vary.
3      Sometimes 3,000; sometimes 5,000.  Sometimes -- you
4      know ...
5 Q    What would it vary -- based on?
6 A    There's not very many.  It was not a big deal because
7      Baja Concrete didn't have enough money to really pay
8      for that.  I mean --
9 Q    I just want --

10 A    -- remember -- we need to be clear on this.  Roberto
11      works for Baja Concrete Ltd. Canada.  Roberto is
12      traveling, and he belongs to Canada, not to USA.  And
13      that's the reason he came on his own, hired by the
14      Ltd. and he was doing all of this work with the
15      workers.  That's why he was totally independent.
16      That's how I saw.  That's what it is.
17 Q    But Roberto is providing a service to Baja Concrete
18      USA Corp.; is that correct?
19 A    I think it's independent because he belongs to Baja
20      Concrete Ltd.  But he was supposed to hire the labor
21      and doing all of that, and Baja Concrete was
22      processing all of the payroll.  And he was telling
23      Baja Concrete payroll everything.  You do this, you do
24      that.  This is the summary.  He deals with all of the
25      employees and all of the issues.  All kind of issue,
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1      he would resolve them all.  Baja Concrete will have
2      nothing to do with that.
3 Q    Was Baja Concrete USA Corp. benefiting from Roberto's
4      work?
5 A    No.  Baja Concrete USA pay Baja Concrete Ltd.
6           Now, you need to separate.  Roberto works for the
7      Canadian company, and Roberto there is assigning his
8      agreement, his partnership, whatever it is, which I
9      don't know, he was hired to -- to hire the workers,

10      you know, to deal with everything like that.  That's
11      why he was completely independent because he will do
12      that -- everything.  That was coming from Baja
13      Concrete Ltd.  So ...
14 Q    But the workers that he was performing these tasks for
15      were on Baja Concrete USA Corp.'s payroll; correct?
16 A    The workers that he hired and did the whole thing,
17      they were all processed by Baja Concrete USA payroll,
18      yeah.  He will report a summary of everything.
19 Q    Okay.
20 A    And I mean everything.
21 Q    I want to go back to a question I'm not really sure
22      you answered before.
23           You said that the amount that Baja Concrete Ltd.
24      billed Baja Concrete USA Corp. for Roberto, you said
25      that amount varies.  So I want to understand why it
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1 A    I don't think so because that's Canada, right.  I

2      think the directions came from Canada.  Roberto was a

3      partner or whatever, and he was hiring and doing all

4      of this.  And so all the payroll would be processed

5      and they will get paid.  Roberto will get paid by the

6      Canadian company.

7 Q    Okay.

8 A    It was coming from there.  Whatever they were doing

9      it, I don't know.  I really don't know anything about

10      the Canadian company.  I just know that there are

11      invoices for the services, whatever he was providing,

12      and they were paid.  They were all paid.

13 Q    Did Baja and Mr. Soto have a formal -- Baja Concrete

14      USA Corp. and Mr. Soto have a formal relationship

15      memorialized in writing?

16 A    What do you mean, "formal relationship"?

17 Q    Did they have any sort of written agreements?

18 A    Oh, I don't know.  I just can tell about the invoices.

19      But if there was a written agreement, I don't know.

20 Q    Okay.  And I'm talking about Baja Concrete USA Corp.

21      and Roberto.

22 A    You mean Baja Concrete with Roberto?

23 Q    Yeah.

24 A    Oh, there is no -- because Roberto belongs to Canada.

25      There would be a document between Canadian company and
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1      varied.
2           What was the basis for that number going up or
3      down?
4 A    Well, that's an agreement between the Ltd. and
5      Roberto.  I really don't know because those are
6      invoices from Canada, and that was it.
7 Q    Was he paid a different amount based on what workers
8      were paid?
9 A    I don't think so.

10 Q    How do you know?
11 A    I really don't know, but I don't think so.
12 Q    When Baja Concrete USA Corp. paid Baja Concrete Ltd.
13      for Roberto, did Baja Concrete USA Corp. do anything
14      to verify that the amount was correct?
15 A    I'm sorry.  Could you repeat the question?
16 Q    So you've said that Baja Concrete Ltd. would send an
17      invoice to Baja Concrete USA Corp. for Roberto's
18      costs.
19           Would -- when that happened, would Baja Concrete
20      USA Corp. do anything to verify that the costs were
21      correct?
22 A    Well, Claudia would talk to them.  So I guess all of
23      those were okay and approved by Claudia.  And that was
24      done that way.
25 Q    Would Claudia know the basis for Roberto's pay?
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1      Baja Concrete USA.
2 Q    Okay.  Did --
3                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Thank you for
4      removing the document.  I'm sorry about that.
5 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  Did Baja ever list Mr. Soto's
6      address as its business address?
7 A    Baja Concrete USA listed Roberto Soto's address?
8 Q    As his own address.
9 A    No.

10 Q    Would Baja ever consider Mr. Roberts' address as its
11      address?
12 A    You mean that Baja would consider to have Roberto
13      Soto's address?
14 Q    Yeah, that's my question.
15 A    In a business card?
16 Q    Or just in general.  Would that ever be considered --
17 A    That would never happen.
18 Q    Okay.  Did Baja Concrete USA Corp. ask Mr. Soto to do
19      anything with respect to the workers who were listed
20      on Attachment B in that Excel?
21 A    Baja Concrete will ask Roberto Soto to do anything
22      with Exhibit B?
23 Q    With the workers who were listed in that exhibit.
24 A    With the workers -- you mean Baja Concrete will ask
25      Roberto Soto to do something?
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1 A    I'm sorry.  Could you repeat?
2 Q    What oversight did Baja provide?
3 A    What do you mean by "oversight"?
4 Q    Did Baja do anything to ensure that Mercedes
5      Accounting was doing things correctly?
6 A    Like, what things correctly?
7 Q    Processing payroll.
8 A    Well, it would match all Roberto's summary of payroll.
9      They were done exactly as Roberto requested.  Roberto

10      will give the summary, and that is the backup for the
11      payroll.  Roberto would provide all of the information
12      for the workers.  And, of course, we will have a copy
13      of that, not originals.
14           So they would provide all of the copies that was
15      needed, all the documents for the direct deposits, it
16      would provide everything.  And everything -- and
17      Roberto and Claudia, I'm sure they check all of that.
18      And it was never a complaint.
19 Q    Did Mercedes Accounting work for -- perform services
20      for Baja or for Roberto?
21 A    No, not for Roberto.  For Baja Concrete.
22 Q    How did -- in processing payroll, how did Mercedes
23      Accounting determine how much to pay workers?
24 A    How much Mercedes Accounting determined -- what?
25 Q    In processing payroll for Baja, how did Mercedes

Page 124

1      Roberto.
2           How did -- if that was, in fact, how workers were
3      paid, how did Mercedes Accounting figure all of that
4      out?
5 A    We didn't figure it out.  Roberto was in charge of the
6      workers.  So that's an agreement between Roberto and
7      the workers.  And you can pay a peace work.  You can
8      do that.  That's allowed.  So -- and that's allowed by
9      the hour.

10           So it was just giving us the information.
11      Roberto would figure it out and give it to us.  We
12      don't have to figure anything -- anything out.
13           It's like any payroll company.  You tell ADP
14      to --
15                        MR. LARKIN:  Just answer the
16      question.
17                        THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So it's just
18      straightforward.  You give me the hours, I process
19      payroll, and I give you the pay stub, and I pay all of
20      payroll liabilities.  That's it.  I don't have to
21      figure out anything.  I'm not in charge.  Roberto is
22      in charge.
23 Q    (By Ms. Franklin)  But Mercedes Accounting does not
24      work for Roberto.
25           Mercedes Accounting was purchasing a service for
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1      Accounting figure out how much it needed to pay the
2      workers?
3 A    We don't figure it out.  In the Excel or whatever
4      document or summary Roberto will give us, he will have
5      all of the hours.  He will have every detail there.
6      And all it is in payroll is grabbing all of that
7      information and just running payroll for each
8      employee, according to that information.
9           So we don't need to figure out anything.  We just

10      run it through the system -- through the software, and
11      then we'll get the paychecks.  And then from there
12      will pay all of the liability -- the payroll
13      liabilities and everything.
14           So we don't need to check anything.  I don't
15      clear understand.  It's just a very straight deal.
16      You give me the hours, I have the information for the
17      employees.  They are -- every two weeks -- before
18      every two weeks, they will give us the summary and
19      payroll was done, was processed.
20 Q    Ms. De Armas, maybe you can help me understand.
21           You said -- earlier in your deposition you
22      described a very different process for figuring out
23      how much to pay workers where it's not just based on
24      hours, but there's a peace rate and there are bonuses
25      and there's a private agreement between the worker and
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1      Baja?
2 A    Yeah.
3 Q    You've already testified to that?
4 A    Yeah.
5 Q    So did -- is it your testimony that Baja told -- that
6      Roberto told Baja how much the workers should be paid
7      and Baja communicated that to Mercedes Accounting?
8 A    I do believe -- again, I do believe, no.  I know for a
9      fact, Roberto Contreras was doing all of the rates,

10      hiring everybody, handling the whole thing himself,
11      firing, getting new employees, controlling everything.
12      He was doing all of that.  And he was hired by a
13      Canadian company.  Okay.
14           So that's an agreement between Baja Concrete USA,
15      a Canadian company.  And, of course, Roberto knew that
16      to process payroll, he needed to give a summary to us.
17      And he would probably copy Claudia on that summary.
18           So if you check the summary against the payroll,
19      it is exactly the same.
20 Q    Okay.  But my question is a little different.  Let me
21      try to ask it a different way.
22           Mercedes Accounting had to add on a bonus of a
23      certain amount in some cases to get to the net amount;
24      correct?
25 A    No, not Mercedes Accounting.  Roberto needed a check
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1      for $3,000, okay.  So you run that through the system
2      and pay with the system because they need to get a net
3      check.
4           So Roberto knew I have to pay them extra because
5      I have to pay for the taxes.  And if there is extra
6      money, I don't care.  We just need to give them the
7      net.  Whatever we need to give them, $3,000 net,
8      that's a peace work, what I call, and I give you the
9      hours because we need to report to L&I, so we would

10      process that.
11           And so it is coming from Roberto.  I'm not
12      figuring anything out.  He made an agreement with the
13      workers that he will pay in net.  The worker says, "I
14      will work for you if part of the hours you give me a
15      net check.  I don't want to pay any taxes.  I don't
16      want to pay anything."  And I understand that's a
17      legal thing to do.  As long as you keep track of the
18      hours and everything, they are okay.  So they were
19      paid that.
20 Q    Did Baja Concrete USA give Mercedes Accounting
21      authority to compute the payroll that way?
22 A    No.  We were not computing payroll that way.  Roberto
23      and Claudia talk about it, right.  Roberto and
24      Claudia.  And they will give us the information.  And
25      with that information, we will process payroll, right.
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1           Okay.  I have no further questions.  Thank you
2      for your time today.
3                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.
4                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Do other counsel have
5      questions for Baja?
6                        MS. WOLFE:  Yes.  Nicole Wolfe,
7      counsel for Newway.  I'll have a couple questions.
8                        MS. KINCAID:  Nicole, you can go
9      ahead.  I'll have some questions as well.

10                        MS. WOLFE:  Sure.
11
12                         EXAMINATION
13      BY MS. WOLFE:
14 Q    Good afternoon.  My name is Nicole Wolfe.  I'm counsel
15      for Newway.
16           What type of business entity is Baja Concrete
17      USA?
18 A    I'm sorry.  What type of business ID?
19                        MR. LARKIN:  Entity.
20 Q    (By Ms. Wolfe)  Entity.
21 A    It's a C corporation.
22 Q    And who are the officers?
23 A    Claudia Penunuri.
24 Q    Is anyone else an officer of Baja Concrete USA?
25 A    No.
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1           So if your question is, who is figuring out the
2      bonus, that is Roberto and that is Claudia, right?
3      We're just processing the payroll.
4 Q    But Claudia gave Mercedes Accounting the information
5      that Mercedes Accounting needed to process the
6      payroll; is that correct?
7 A    Yeah, and Roberto.  Roberto is the one in charge.  If
8      there is anybody that needed to approve for Baja
9      Concrete, that would be Claudia.  If there is anything

10      there, right, because they have an agreement.  Okay,
11      there is an agreement between Claudia, Baja Concrete
12      USA, and the Canadian company.  So Roberto is
13      representing that Canadian company and the agreement
14      that they have.
15           So Roberto will give us everything, and
16      everything that is in the payroll, to the penny,
17      represents what Roberto gave us in the summary,
18      whatever it was needed.
19           So there are different ways to figure this out.
20                        MR. LARKIN:  You don't need to do
21      that right now.
22                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I don't need to.
23                        MS. FRANKLIN:  Just one moment.  I'm
24      just going to check my notes one more time to make
25      sure that I'm done here.
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1 Q    Does anyone else have any ownership interest of Baja
2      Concrete USA?
3 A    Not that I know.  It's just Claudia.
4 Q    Are Carlos and Claudia related?
5 A    Yes.
6 Q    How so?
7 A    Brother and sister.
8 Q    Does Baja Concrete USA have a website?
9 A    No.

10 Q    Does Baja Ltd., the Canadian company, have a website,
11      that you know of?
12 A    I don't know.
13 Q    Does Baja know where Roberto Soto Contreras is
14      currently?
15 A    I'm sorry.  You are asking if Baja Concrete knows
16      where Roberto Contreras is right now?
17 Q    Yes.
18 A    Yeah.  No, I don't think so.
19 Q    When was the last time that Baja Concrete USA was in
20      contact with Roberto?
21 A    Well, I don't know when Claudia was the last time, but
22      for me directly as Mercedes Accounting -- I mean, last
23      contact with the company -- with Baja Concrete, you
24      say?  I really don't know.
25 Q    Do you know if Claudia is still in contact with
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1      are covering part of it.
2                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.
3 Q    (By Ms. Kincaid)  Can you see that better now?
4 A    Yeah.  The provider names and last-known address of
5      all supervisors and managers.
6 Q    Okay.  Perfect.
7           So you can read that?
8 A    Yes, I can read it.
9 Q    Wonderful.

10           And then I'm going to scroll down to the very
11      end, just to show you the Bates number that's at the
12      very bottom.
13           So the end of this is APPBAJA0162 at the bottom
14      right.
15           Do you see that as well?
16 A    Yeah.
17 Q    Okay.  I'm going back to the beginning of this
18      document, and it states, "Initial Request for
19      Information" at the top.
20           Do you see that?
21 A    "Initial Request for Information," yeah, I see that.
22 Q    And do you -- have you seen this document before?
23 A    Well, I need to see all of it to see if I've seen it
24      before.
25 Q    Sure.  Let me scroll down for you.
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1      ago?
2 A    Probably because all I have is the payroll.  So all of
3      this is coming from payroll.
4 Q    And then going down to Question No. 2, it says,
5      "Provide names, titles, and addresses of your
6      corporate office, corporate officers, and owners and
7      percentages of ownership for each location."
8           Can you tell me what your answer was to this
9      question?

10 A    It's Claudia Penunuri, president, a hundred percent.
11      Yes, and she is.
12 Q    And he is the president of Baja USA?
13 A    Yes.
14 Q    And going down to Question 3, it says, "Describe the
15      process by which you publicized job openings, solicit
16      job applicants, and hire new employees.  Include the
17      names and titles of individuals with authority to make
18      decisions in this process."
19           Do you see that question?
20 A    Yes.
21 Q    And are you able to read me your response to that
22      question?
23 A    It says, "Applicants go to the jobsite to request
24      employment."  Some of them do.  "Roberto Soto,
25      independent contractor select candidates and make
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1 A    That's probably the questionnaire that they send in
2      the very beginning, yep.
3 Q    And, Ms. De Armas, does this appear to be your
4      handwriting?
5 A    That is my handwriting, yep.
6 Q    Okay.  Wonderful.
7           So I would like to ask you a couple of questions
8      about this document.
9           So in this document, did you respond with

10      information pertaining to Baja Concrete USA?
11 A    Well, if they request it for Baja Concrete USA, I did
12      the best I knew how.
13 Q    So I would like to go to this first question here,
14      Question No. 1.  And it says, "Provide a current
15      organizational chart showing names and titles of all
16      employees who work in Seattle."
17           Do you see that?
18 A    Yep.
19 Q    And in response to that, did you provide a list of all
20      of those names of employees who work in Seattle for
21      Baja USA?
22 A    I guess so because it says "included" and "attach."
23 Q    And would the names that you had provided been the
24      same as the names of those employees in that Baja USA
25      employee detail sheet that we looked at just a moment
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1      decisions with president of company."
2 Q    And in reference to "president of company," who were
3      you referring to there?
4 A    Claudia.
5 Q    And so you said, "select candidates and makes
6      decisions with president of company," what did you
7      mean by that?
8 A    Well, Roberto would do the whole thing and he will let
9      Claudia know everybody that -- Claudia will never

10      complain -- will never say anything.
11 Q    Well, I'm not asking if Claudia complained.
12           I'm simply asking what kind of decisions did he
13      make with Claudia?
14 A    He was letting Claudia know of what he was doing and
15      pending.  It was a communication with Claudia.
16 Q    And so he --
17 A    With --
18 Q    I'm sorry.
19 A    (Inaudible.)
20 Q    I didn't catch that last thing you said.  Could you
21      repeat that?
22 A    I said Claudia and Carlos.  But remember, this is a
23      document for USA.  So I'm focusing on USA, yeah.  He
24      would let Claudia know the situation and the hiring he
25      was doing and everything.
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1 Q    And so was Claudia in essence approving the decisions
2      that he was making?
3 A    No, she was not approving anything.  He was letting
4      her know.
5 Q    So I guess I'm trying to understand what you mean by
6      "makes decisions with president of the company."
7 A    I'm going to tell you this:  Claudia is a person that
8      relies on him for the decision because Roberto is
9      experienced in what he was doing.  He was hired for

10      that, right.  He was hired for that, and so he's
11      making the decision.  But, of course, he needs to let
12      the president of the company know what he's doing.
13           A Canadian company Ltd. and who is paying Baja
14      Concrete USA.  He needs to run it through her.  That's
15      what I meant there.  He needs to run it through her.
16 Q    Understood.
17 A    Claudia will never make decisions of, I hire this one,
18      I don't hire this one, you going to pay this one.
19      Claudia was doing nothing like that.  Absolutely
20      nothing.  Roberto was --
21 Q    Was Roberto -- was Roberto letting her know this
22      information in advance?
23 A    I don't think so.  Roberto could do what he needed to
24      do for the labor to be Newway Forming, you know, but
25      he would talk to her, inform her.  That's what I
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1 A    I'm going to read it.
2           "Do Baja Concrete, Roberto Contreras, Claudia
3      Penunuri and/or Carlos Penunuri share employees or
4      supervisory authority over employees with any other
5      entity or individuals at the 1120 Denny Way Seattle at
6      the construction site or any other building?"
7           Well, I'm going to tell you right now --
8 Q    Did you see the question?
9 A    Well, the question is if they share -- did they share

10      supervisory thing -- authority.  So I think the answer
11      is no.
12 Q    And that is what you checked; correct?
13 A    Yeah.  They are independent, each one of them.  Carlos
14      Penunuri -- share employees -- what do you mean, share
15      employees?  They are not sharing employees.  So the
16      answer is no.
17 Q    Ms. De Armas, I don't mean to cut you off.  You
18      answered my question, so I can move on to my next one.
19           And it looks like you also crossed out "Roberto
20      Contreras and Carlos Penunuri Ibarra from this
21      question; is that correct?
22 A    Yeah, because I thought you guys were -- the question
23      was about Baja Concrete, and Roberto Contreras doesn't
24      belong to Baja Concrete, and Carlos Penunuri doesn't
25      belong to Baja Concrete.  So I crossed them out.
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1      meant.
2 Q    He would inform her after the fact?
3 A    He can inform -- yeah, any time.
4 Q    Any time what?
5 A    Okay.  Roberto -- one more time.  Roberto makes all of
6      the decisions.  He hired everything.  He was not
7      calling Claudia to say, hey, I found a guy and I'm
8      going to pay $30 to this guy because he has
9      experience.

10           No, he was not doing that.  Roberto was doing the
11      whole contract.  Roberto was hiring the people.  He
12      will need to let Claudia know that he hired five, six,
13      ten new people, and they will go to the site of this
14      for Newway Forming and that the labor was there.
15      Perfect.  That is the decision.
16 Q    Okay.  And I'll come back to that because I think I
17      have a question later that is going to loop back
18      around, but I'll move on for a minute.
19           I want to go back down to Question 7.
20           And so this question says, "Do Baja Concrete,
21      Roberto Contreras, Claudia Penunuri and/or Carlos
22      Penunuri Ibarra share employees or supervisory
23      authority over employees with any other entity or
24      individuals at the 1120 Denny Way construction site?"
25           Do you see that question?
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1 Q    Okay.  Understood.
2           And in terms of the employees that it was asking
3      about in this question, would that be -- or did you
4      understand that to be referencing the same employees
5      that Question 1 was asking about of Baja Concrete USA?
6 A    What is the question?  Number 1?
7 Q    So question No. 1 asked for -- I'll scroll back up for
8      you.
9           Names and titles of all employees who work in

10      Seattle that we talked about you providing for Baja
11      Concrete USA.
12           And so did you understand Question No. 7 to be
13      referencing those same employees that were discussed
14      in Question 1?
15 A    Well, I would need to read -- well, what is Question
16      No. 1.
17 Q    I can rephrase to make this question easier.
18           Did you understand any employees, as it's asked
19      in Question No. 7, as referencing Baja Concrete USA's
20      employees?
21 A    Well, yeah.  What I gave in No. 1 was the payroll.
22      The employees in the payroll for Baja Concrete.  The
23      payroll processing, Baja Concrete was doing it; right?
24      So they were not sharing anything.
25 Q    Okay.  And then I would like to go down to another
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1 A    Roberto Contreras was working for the Canadian
2      company, and the Canadian company was billing Baja
3      Concrete USA for Roberto's services, for the services
4      they were providing.
5           So in other words, Roberto Contreras belongs to
6      the Canadian company whatever they have there, I don't
7      know.  But he comes with the Canadian company.  And
8      the recent agreement with Baja Concrete USA and they
9      bill Baja Concrete USA for the services Roberto was

10      doing here in the USA.
11 Q    And so, Ms. De Armas, you're not really answering my
12      question, though, because what I'm asking is if Baja
13      USA wasn't getting a benefit out of paying for
14      Roberto's services, then why did Baja USA do so?
15 A    Why are you saying that Baja Concrete USA are not
16      getting a benefit from Roberto?
17 Q    That is what you testified to earlier; correct?
18 A    I have not testified to any of that.
19                        MR. LARKIN:  I don't think that was
20      her testimony.
21 Q    (By Ms. Kincaid)  Okay.  Well, that's what I heard.
22           Are you saying that that is not correct?
23 A    I don't think -- I never said it.  I never said there
24      is no benefit.
25 Q    Then let me reask the question.
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1 A    Yeah.  Okay.
2 Q    And when you said earlier that Roberto had his own
3      company, did you mean Baja Canada, so Baja Ltd.?
4 A    I didn't say Roberto has his own company.  I said
5      Roberto works or probably a partner, and I don't know
6      for sure, for the Baja Concrete Ltd. in Canada.
7 Q    Yes.  That's understood, Ms. De Armas.
8 A    Yes.
9 Q    So I would like to ask you now about another exhibit,

10      and I'm pulling that up on my screen here.
11           Do you see this document?  It says "Invoice
12      No. 055"?
13 A    Yep.
14 Q    And down at the bottom it says SEATTLE-OLS-0256?
15 A    Uh-huh.
16 Q    Have you seen this document before?
17 A    Yep.
18 Q    And what is this document?
19 A    It's just a copy of one of the invoices of Baja
20      Concrete Ltd. from Canada will give to Baja Concrete
21      USA here in USA.
22 Q    And was this one of the charges for Roberto Contreras'
23      services?
24 A    Yep, this is one of the charges.
25 Q    And you said there were monthly invoices.
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1           Were the services that Roberto Contreras was
2      providing, were they for Baja USA's benefit?
3 A    Yeah.  Well, that's an agreement between -- it needs
4      to be very clear:  Roberto belongs to the Canadian
5      company, Ltd.  The Canadian company and Claudia here
6      in Baja Concrete USA had an agreement.
7           They sent Roberto from Canada to hire the people.
8      The Canadian company hire the people and do all of the
9      work here.  They hire, they fire, they located, they

10      do whatever, okay.  And, of course -- of course, the
11      Canadian company bill -- invoice Baja Concrete USA for
12      all the time because they will pay Roberto Contreras
13      in Canada.
14 Q    Ms. De Armas, that's still not my question.
15           My question is -- and it sounds like you were
16      starting to answer but maybe you were taking back your
17      answer, so I just want to clarify.
18           Were the services that Roberto Contreras was
19      providing to -- under this agreement for Baja USA's
20      benefit?
21 A    Of course, Baja USA.
22 Q    Okay.
23 A    But it wasn't Roberto Contreras directly.  It was the
24      company.  He's representing a company.
25 Q    Understood.
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1           So there should be more than one of these
2      invoices; correct?
3 A    Yeah, there should be more than one.  That was just a
4      sample the City of Seattle requested, and I gave them
5      this sample.
6 Q    Okay.  So Baja USA has more of these invoices in its
7      possession?
8 A    Yes.
9 Q    And, Ms. De Armas, what period of time did

10      Mr. Contreras provide services to Baja USA?
11 A    Well, I think he was here in USA from the very
12      beginning until -- until he went back to Canada, and I
13      didn't see him anymore.  I don't recall when was that.
14      Maybe a year ago.  Maybe -- you know.
15 Q    Is that a year ago when you're saying he left for
16      Canada?
17 A    I don't know when.  I would need to check records.  I
18      don't know exactly.
19 Q    And you said from the beginning.
20           What did you mean by that?
21 A    Well, this started 2018, I believe.
22 Q    Okay.  And I would like to move on to another
23      exhibit -- or document, I should say.
24           Can you see the document that's up on the screen?
25 A    Yeah.
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1 Q    Have you ever seen this document before?
2 A    I don't think so.  Let me read it.
3           "Mr. Ruben Gonzalez has been employed with Baja
4      Concrete USA from June to present, construction
5      foreman, earns $35 hourly, he's paid biweekly, and he
6      makes approximately 5600 a month.  Regards, Claudia
7      Penunuri."
8           I guess Claudia did it.  I don't know.  But I can
9      check if that is Claudia's signature.

10 Q    Have you seen Claudia's signature before?
11 A    Oh, yeah.  Yeah.
12 Q    Does this appear to be Claudia's signature?
13 A    I don't recall now.  I would need to see other
14      documents signed by Claudia, then I can tell you if
15      it's hers or not.
16 Q    Does this document appear to be on Baja Concrete USA's
17      letterhead?
18 A    Yeah, it is on the letterhead.  And it doesn't have
19      any address.  It doesn't have any phone number.  I
20      mean, if you're giving this to an employee, to
21      somebody, so he's probably looking for a job or
22      getting something.  So somebody did it, but we didn't
23      do it.  Mercedes Accounting didn't do it.
24 Q    Do you see this phone number at the bottom,
25      215-205-3939?
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1 A    Yeah, but the important thing is what you have
2      highlighted.  "There are no pay stubs to Antonio
3      Machado since the company started business.  He's not
4      an employee of the company.
5           Roberto Soto works for the Canada company named
6      Baja Concrete Ltd.  Attach invoice.
7           "Roberto Soto is not an employee of Baja
8      Concrete," yeah.
9 Q    So, Ms. De Armas, do you recognize this email?

10 A    Well, it has my name.  I probably did write it.  It
11      looks like me.  It has my signature; right?
12 Q    Is that your signature at the bottom?
13 A    Yep.
14 Q    So is this an email that you sent to Daron Williams on
15      December 7th, 2020?
16 A    Yes.  I was answering some of his questions.
17 Q    Sure.
18           And so do you see this No. 1 here?
19 A    Yep.
20 Q    Can you read the response that you included in this
21      email?
22 A    All of them?
23 Q    Just to No. 1.
24 A    Per attached report, you can see deductions are either
25      payroll advances or personal items," and that's
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1 A    Yep.
2 Q    Is that Claudia's cell phone number, or is that a
3      phone number for her?
4 A    Well, I don't know.  But I can check my phone to see
5      if that's her number.  You know, you have recorded on
6      the phone everybody's phone number, so no need to
7      memorize.
8 Q    Understood.
9           And I want to go on to a different document.  And

10      I'm going to scroll down to the bottom.
11           Do you see this Bates stamp number at the bottom,
12      SEATTLE-OLS-0250?
13 A    Uh-huh.
14 Q    I'm going to scroll to the end of the document.
15           Do you see this last Bates number,
16      SEATTLE-OLS-0254?
17 A    Yeah.
18 Q    So I'm going to scroll back up to the top and then I'm
19      going to give you a chance to take a look at this.
20      Let me know if you can't read it.
21 A    You're going too fast.  I cannot read that fast.
22 Q    I apologize.
23 A    The question is about the contents of this?
24 Q    Yes, and I'll give you an opportunity to go back and
25      take a look at it.
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1      probably with the deductions in that report that you
2      guys show earlier.  I'm assuming that's the attach
3      report.
4                        MR. LARKIN:  Just read it.
5                        THE WITNESS:  "Per attached report,
6      you can see deductions are either payroll advances or
7      personnel items purchased by the company credit card
8      and deducted in the employee paychecks per their
9      request.  Some employees run out of funds and request

10      the supervisor personal help with shoes, flight
11      tickets, et cetera, and the supervisor is using the
12      company credit card for this type of payroll advances.
13      We do not have any complaints from any employee
14      regarding the deductions.  The use of the company
15      credit card to purchase items for employees is
16      discontinued.  Currently, the company is giving
17      payroll advances and loans to employees if they
18      qualify.  Company policy does not include benefits for
19      any living costs."
20 Q    Okay.  Thank you, Ms. De Armas.  You can stop reading
21      there.
22           So you mentioned a supervisor in this paragraph.
23           Who are you referring to there?
24 A    Well, when they are -- the laborers, the people that
25      is hired, there are hired people.  They have different
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1      levels.  We see this in payroll.  We see what is the
2      labor, we see what is the finishers, we see what is
3      the helper, and we see what is supervisor.  So some of
4      them were supervisors.
5 Q    Okay.  So when you say "some of them," you're saying
6      some of the Baja USA employees were supervisors?
7 A    Yeah.  The ones that we run in payroll.  Some of them
8      supervisors, were in charge.
9 Q    And who was running payroll?

10 A    Baja -- Roberto had sometimes people in two projects
11      at the same time.  So there was somebody in charge in
12      one, and he probably was at the other one.  I don't
13      know.  But they were supervisor, personal among those
14      employees.
15 Q    And so you say the supervisor is using the company
16      credit card.
17           So did someone other than Roberto Contreras have
18      access to Baja USA's credit card?
19 A    Yeah.
20 Q    And who would that have been?
21 A    Well, I'm trying to remember the name, but I can give
22      it to you.  I can see the records.  Because there
23      aren't very many people, so I need to -- I think one
24      of them -- wow, it's a guy from -- let me see if I can
25      remember his name.  But if I review the payroll, I can
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1      would still have possession of?
2 A    Yes, we will have them.
3 Q    I think you alluded to this earlier, but I just wanted
4      to clarify.
5           Was Baja USA paying for taxes to the government
6      on these workers?
7 A    Okay.  Let me see if I understand your question.
8           You are saying that Baja Concrete USA was paying
9      taxes to the government?

10 Q    On behalf of these workers.  So I'm asking you if they
11      did.
12 A    Okay.  You are talking about payroll taxes.
13           Yes.  Every single penny was paid in full.
14 Q    Okay.  And did Baja Canada pay any money to Baja USA
15      regarding these workers and payroll?
16 A    No.  It was just for the -- Roberto Contreras and
17      that.  And I don't know if it was another service, but
18      no.  Baja Concrete USA was paying everything for the
19      workers.
20 Q    Okay.  And you testified that Baja USA hired Mercedes
21      Accounting to do payroll and accounting for them; is
22      that correct?
23 A    That is correct.
24 Q    So if I understand it correctly -- let me rephrase the
25      question.
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1      tell you which one are they.
2 Q    Okay.  You just can't tell me today off the top of
3      your head?
4 A    Well, I don't remember.  There are too many -- too
5      many things, too many people.
6 Q    Okay.  And then, Ms. De Armas, can you tell me, what
7      is Baja USA's business that they are in?
8 A    Baja was in the business of providing labor to
9      projects and other companies and general contractors.

10      That was the main thing they were doing, providing
11      labor.
12 Q    Okay.  And I think earlier in your deposition you had
13      said something about Roberto Contreras would sometimes
14      send emails to Claudia and copy Kwynne regarding
15      invoices or summaries of worker time for payroll
16      purposes.
17           Did I understand that correctly?
18 A    If you are saying that Roberto -- could you say that
19      again?
20 Q    So you had said, to my understanding, that Roberto had
21      sent emails to Claudia and copied Kwynne.
22           Did I understand that correctly?
23 A    Yeah, regarding receivables.  Regarding, you know,
24      getting paid.
25 Q    So is that -- are those emails something tag Baja USA
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1           So if Baja's USA role was to provide labor, how
2      did Baja USA do that?
3 A    Roberto Contreras, right, was looking for the labor,
4      recruiting the labor, interviewing the labor, got them
5      together.  Roberto Contreras did all of that.
6 Q    Okay.  So if Roberto Contreras was dealing with all of
7      the labor and Mercedes Accounting was doing payroll
8      and accounting, what was Baja USA's role in all of
9      this?

10 A    Well, obviously, Baja Concrete USA is the one in
11      charge here; right?  They needed to make sure every --
12      the payroll was done, the taxes were paid.  All kinds
13      of thing.  All the bookkeeping was done.  That's why
14      they hire us.  Claudia was overseeing, you know, the
15      stuff but --
16 Q    So what was Claudia's oversight?  What did that
17      involve?
18 A    She will call me, we will have meetings regarding how
19      thing were going, you know.  Every, you know -- she
20      will receive reports, you know.  So she knows.
21           She was mainly focusing in the receivables.  But
22      we were not doing receivables.  The only thing was out
23      of the contract.  I don't do receivables for any
24      client.  So the receivables is done by Baja Concrete
25      directly.  And that's why you see those invoices
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1      handwritten by Roberto Soto.  He and Claudia will
2      manage that, review that, and they are the ones who
3      will talk to Kwynne in Newway Forming.
4           Only maybe a couple of times or three times they
5      asked me to email Kwynne because they were not getting
6      paid on time.  They were three months behind.  And I
7      just wrote and email, maybe once or twice, just
8      letting them know that, you know -- because it was an
9      emergency.  They don't pay, how can we pay the

10      workers?
11 Q    Okay.
12                        MS. KINCAID:  I don't think I have
13      any further questions.  So I will turn this over in
14      case anybody has any additional questions.
15                        MS. WOLFE:  I just have one quick
16      follow-up question.
17
18                     FURTHER EXAMINATION
19      BY MS. WOLFE:
20 Q    You said that there was some supervisors that worked
21      for Baja.
22           What were those supervisors doing on the project?
23 A    Okay.  Of all of labor that was on the sites, there
24      were people that were prepared with experience and
25      they were supervising the other employees.
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1      supervising other Baja employees.
2           So if one of those other Baja employees were sick
3      or something, for instance, would they tell the Baja
4      supervisor they were sick before leaving?
5 A    Oh, yeah, of course.  And the supervisor will tell
6      Roberto, and Roberto will report anything that needed
7      to be reported.
8                        MS. WOLFE:  Okay.  Thank you.
9      That's all I have.

10                        MR. LARKIN:  Okay.  Anybody else,
11      follow-up questions?
12           Do you have questions or no?
13                        MS. FRANKLIN:  No further questions
14      on the City's end.
15                        MR. LARKIN:  Just give me one moment
16      to look at my notes here.
17
18                         EXAMINATION
19      BY MR. LARKIN:
20 Q    So, Mercedes -- by the way, I'm Alex Larkin, one of
21      the lawyers for Baja Concrete USA Corp.
22           Is Baja Concrete USA a for-profit business
23      entity?
24 A    Yes, it is.
25 Q    So when we looked at some exhibits where it showed
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1      Supervising, meaning they would get there, they make
2      sure they have all of the -- you know, I know Newway
3      Forming was providing some of the security things,
4      safety things, making sure they were wearing, making
5      sure, you know, everybody was -- what a supervisor
6      does.
7 Q    Okay.  And I'm referring to the Baja supervisor that
8      you were discussing earlier.
9 A    Remember, these supervisors -- it's kind of confusing

10      because all of these employees on payroll are the ones
11      Roberto hire and report, okay.  And they were the ones
12      that provide the labor.
13           And Baja -- yes, Baja is in the business of
14      providing labor, right.  But Baja had this person call
15      Roberto Contreras that's coming from Canada.  They had
16      that agreement together.  And they were the ones to --
17      it was directly.
18           And then we were doing the payroll for Baja,
19      right, because all of these employees were actually
20      Baja employees, right, that we would process and paid
21      everything that we needed to do.
22           So sometimes it's a little bit confusing.
23 Q    Okay.  I understand that.  And what I'm asking is, the
24      Baja supervisors you mentioned earlier, they were
25      doing things that Baja supervisors do, which is
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1      what appeared to be hourly rates charged by Baja to
2      Newway -- do you recall?
3 A    You mean the invoice?
4 Q    Invoices, yes.
5 A    Uh-huh.
6 Q    And we looked at hourly rates, I think, or tell me if
7      I'm wrong, where the amount invoiced on a per-hour
8      basis to Newway was a bigger number than what was paid
9      to the workers on a per-hour basis?

10 A    You mean the hourly rate Newway was paying Baja
11      Concrete --
12 Q    Yes.
13 A    -- was higher?  Yes, was higher.
14 Q    Okay.  Which would be perfectly normal for a
15      profit-seeking business; right?
16 A    Yes.
17 Q    Roberto Contreras, is he an employee of Baja Concrete
18      USA Corp.?
19 A    No, never was.
20 Q    Never was?
21 A    Never.
22 Q    Never was.  Okay.
23           Would you mind spelling, if you could, the name
24      Kwynne.  You mentioned Kwynne at Newway.
25 A    It's difficult for me how she spell it.  I call her
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·1· · · · · · · · · · BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,

·2· ·May 11, 2022, at 9:07 a.m., before Michelle D.

·3· ·Elam, Certified Court Reporter, RPR, appeared via

·4· ·Zoom, MERCEDES Z. DE ARMAS, the witness herein;

·5· · · · · · · · · · WHEREUPON, the following

·6· ·proceedings were had remotely:

·7

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·<<<<<< >>>>>>

·9

10· ·MERCEDES Z. DE ARMAS,· having been first duly

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · sworn by the Certified

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · Court Reporter, testified

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · as follows:

14

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LARKIN:· Maybe I should clarify

16· ·one thing.

17· · · · So I'm here for Baja Concrete, of course.

18· ·Mercedes, herself, is not our client.· But for

19· ·convenience, it just worked better to have her here in

20· ·our conference room for this.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SYLVESTER:· Thank you,

22· ·Mr. Larkin.· That was going to be one of my questions.

23· ·///

24· ·///

25· ·///
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·EXAMINATION

·2· · · · BY MS. SYLVESTER:

·3· ·Q· · Good morning, Ms. De Armas.

·4· · · · · · ·My name is Lorna Staten Sylvester, and I

·5· · · · represent the City, along with Ms. Erica Franklin, who

·6· · · · conducted the deposition of you before.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· Sorry.

·8· · · · · · ·Are we waiting for someone from Newway?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· We have --

10· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. WOLFE:· I'm here, Alex.· My

11· · · · video is just not working today.

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· Oh, okay.· Sorry.

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. WOLFE:· Yeah.

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· Sorry.

15· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· Okay.· So if you can state your

16· · · · name and spell your name for the record, please.

17· ·A· · Mercedes De Armas.· M-e-r-c-e-d-e-s, capital D-e,

18· · · · space A-r-m-a-s.

19· ·Q· · Okay.· And can you state your business address for the

20· · · · record as well.

21· ·A· · Okay.· I'm a little bit confused because I'm here as

22· · · · Mercedes De Armas, and my understanding is that I'm

23· · · · personally here, which I -- Mercedes De Armas has no

24· · · · business with Baja or this deal.· So I don't know why

25· · · · I was subpoenaed.
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·1· ·Q· · Okay.· Ms. De Armas, we're going to get to that.
·2· · · · · · ·If you could state your business address for the
·3· · · · record.
·4· ·A· · You mean Mercedes Accounting?

·5· ·Q· · Correct, your business address.
·6· ·A· · Mercedes Accounting & Associates is now located at
·7· · · · 12727 Northup Way, Suite 7, in Bellevue, Washington
·8· · · · 98005.
·9· ·Q· · Okay.· Thank you.
10· · · · · · ·So we're here to take your deposition In The
11· · · · Matter of the Appeal of Baja Concrete USA, Roberto
12· · · · Contreras, Newway Forming Inc., and Antonio Machado.
13· · · · · · ·The Hearing Examiner Case Nos. are LS-21-002,

14· · · · LS-21-003, and LS-21-004.
15· · · · · · ·We're here to find out everything that you know
16· · · · about these claims that Baja, Newway, and
17· · · · Mr. Contreras and Mr. Machado failed to pay wages for
18· · · · all hours worked, including overtime, and failed to
19· · · · provide sick and safe time in violation of SMC 1416,
20· · · · 1419, and 1420, beginning in February of 2018 to
21· · · · August of 2020.
22· · · · · · ·So today is there anything such as stress,
23· · · · physical or mental conditions, or being under the

24· · · · influence of any substances that would prevent you
25· · · · from answering truthfully today?
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·1· ·A· · No.
·2· · · · · · ·But I just need to say that now I have more
·3· · · · experience.· It will be a better deposition from last
·4· · · · time because now I know what I'm doing better.
·5· ·Q· · Okay.· Great.
·6· · · · · · ·So we've already heard this, but is there -- for
·7· · · · the record, is there anyone in the room with you?
·8· ·A· · No.· Just Mr. -- Alex.
·9· ·Q· · Mr. Larkin?
10· ·A· · Yeah.
11· ·Q· · Okay.· And there are a couple of rules that you may
12· · · · recall.· We went over some rules the last time that
13· · · · you were deposed.· So I would just like to go through
14· · · · those again.
15· · · · · · ·First, you're required to give full, nonevasive
16· · · · truthful answers.
17· · · · · · ·You understand that?
18· ·A· · Yes.
19· ·Q· · Okay.· And if you could answer verbally because
20· · · · shaking your head or nodding won't be picked up on the
21· · · · record.· So if you could just answer verbally.
22· · · · Instead of saying "uh-huh" or "huh-uh," if you could
23· · · · say "yes" or "no."
24· ·A· · Okay.
25· ·Q· · Okay.· Also, we can take breaks if you need a break.
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·1· · · · However, if there is a pending question, we would ask

·2· · · · that you answer the question prior to any breaks?

·3· ·A· · Understood.

·4· ·Q· · Okay.· And if I refer to the relevant time period, I'm

·5· · · · referring to February of 2018 to August of 2020.

·6· · · · Okay?

·7· ·A· · Okay.

·8· ·Q· · Okay.· And also if I refer to Baja generally, I'm

·9· · · · talking about Baja Concrete USA, but I may refer to

10· · · · Baja Ltd., which is the one that is in Canada, but I

11· · · · will specify that.· But generally, if I just say just

12· · · · "Baja," I'm talking about Baja Concrete USA.

13· ·A· · Okay.

14· ·Q· · Okay.· And lastly, even though you're testifying today

15· · · · as Mercedes De Armas, I would ask that you answer my

16· · · · question if you can, unless it falls under some sort

17· · · · of privilege.· So if you know the answer, regardless

18· · · · of how you came to know the answer, I would ask that

19· · · · you answer my question.

20· · · · · · ·If you don't know, it's fine to say "I don't

21· · · · know."· Or if you need clarification, it's fine to say

22· · · · that you need clarification.· Okay?

23· ·A· · You mean, Ms. Lorna, that if I know the answer because

24· · · · I met with someone and I know it through the other

25· · · · person, when I answer, I should say I met with someone
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·1· ·A· · No.· Businesses in my name, I don't remember.· I think

·2· · · · it's just Pay & HR and Mercedes Accounting.

·3· ·Q· · Okay.· So is Baja Concrete USA one of the accounts

·4· · · · that you manage or maintain?

·5· ·A· · That is one of our clients, yes.

·6· ·Q· · And do you work for both Baja Concrete USA and Baja

·7· · · · Concrete Ltd.?

·8· ·A· · No.· We don't -- Baja Concrete Ltd. -- I don't even

·9· · · · know.· I have no -- that's not my client.

10· ·Q· · Okay.· You say you don't know them, but you know who

11· · · · they are?

12· ·A· · Well, I get to know them through Baja Concrete USA

13· · · · because the agreement that started in Canada and then

14· · · · came to Baja Concrete USA.· So I know about that

15· · · · agreement and the conversation that Claudia explained

16· · · · to me and Carlos about the USA, Baja Concrete USA.

17· ·Q· · Okay.· So can you tell us your role -- what is your

18· · · · role for Baja Concrete USA?

19· ·A· · We do the payroll, we do the accounting, we make sure

20· · · · the licenses that they have are up-to-date.· Like,

21· · · · Secretary of State or, you know, for L&I, whatever the

22· · · · contractor license.

23· · · · · · ·But I don't have authority over those.· If the

24· · · · owner decided to cancel the license, it is canceled.

25· · · · I don't have -- I don't have any authority, you
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·1· · · · know -- I'm delegating the accounting, yes, the

·2· · · · bookkeeping, the taxes, and the payroll.

·3· ·Q· · You said payroll, accounting, licensing, and taxes.

·4· · · · · · ·And bookkeeping?

·5· ·A· · Yeah.· Yes, bookkeeping.

·6· ·Q· · Okay.· So is bookkeeping separate from accounting?

·7· ·A· · We call it -- when we say "accounting," we're talking

·8· · · · about the whole kind of reports.· Detailed

·9· · · · financials -- you know, when we're talking about

10· · · · bookkeeping, we're talking about data entry,

11· · · · employees, you know.· But that all needs to be

12· · · · reviewed by accountants, and the accountant is the one

13· · · · that will put the financials together.· And then I

14· · · · would review them too.

15· ·Q· · Okay.· Are you a registered agent for either one, for

16· · · · either Baja Concrete USA or Baja Concrete Ltd.?

17· ·A· · I'm not a registered agent, and I have never had any

18· · · · business with Baja Concrete Ltd.· And I think Baja

19· · · · Concrete USA, I think is -- Claudia is the registered

20· · · · agent.

21· ·Q· · Okay.· So who hired you for -- to work for Baja

22· · · · Concrete USA?

23· ·A· · Claudia hired me, but Roberto Contreras was the first

24· · · · one that came to my office to have a meeting.· I don't

25· · · · charge for people that are willing to see their needs.
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·1· · · · · · ·So we had a meeting about their needs and what

·2· · · · they were going to do.· So he had a consultation.  I

·3· · · · explained him all of the licensing and everything he

·4· · · · needed to have.· He already knew a lot about it.· He

·5· · · · was just trying to see, okay, maybe we'll need

·6· · · · payroll.· And then, of course, Claudia is the owner,

·7· · · · she hired me.

·8· ·Q· · Okay.· And can you tell me all of the duties that you

·9· · · · have performed for Baja Concrete USA?

10· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· I'm sorry.· Lorna,

11· · · · maybe could you clarify.· When say "you," are you

12· · · · referring to her personally or, again, in connection

13· · · · with Mercedes Accounting?

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· Well, she can

15· · · · explain --

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· -- either role.

18· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· Either as your role in Mercedes

19· · · · Accounting or as an employee of Mercedes Accounting.

20· ·A· · I'm going to make a clarification.

21· · · · · · ·As Mercedes Accounting -- all of the answers I

22· · · · have given is Mercedes Accounting.· I've been talking

23· · · · about Mercedes Accounting as the CEO and owner for

24· · · · Mercedes Accounting.· Everything so far has been

25· · · · Mercedes Accounting.
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·1· ·Q· · Okay.· And what duties -- name all of the duties that
·2· · · · you perform for Baja Concrete USA.
·3· ·A· · When you are saying "duties," what do you refer to?
·4· · · · You mean payroll?
·5· ·Q· · Is that one of the duties that you perform?
·6· ·A· · I don't perform it but the company does.
·7· ·Q· · Okay.
·8· ·A· · I don't do it directly but the company does.· The
·9· · · · payroll department will do the payroll for Baja
10· · · · Concrete.
11· ·Q· · And what other duties?
12· ·A· · The taxes.
13· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Ms. Wolfe dropped off the
14· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·deposition.)
15· · · · · · · · · · · · · THE COURT REPORTER:· Ms. Sylvester,
16· · · · we've lost Ms. Wolfe, I believe.
17· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· Okay.· I can pause
18· · · · for a moment.
19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Ms. Wolfe rejoined the
20· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·deposition.)
21· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· So we were talking about the
22· · · · duties that you -- either you as Mercedes De Armas as
23· · · · an employee of Mercedes Accounting or the duties
24· · · · performed by Mercedes Accounting for Baja Concrete
25· · · · USA.
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·1· · · · my job to do this.· I'm not in charge of the labor.

·2· ·Q· · Okay.· So are you saying -- is it your testimony that

·3· · · · sick leave balances were maintained in an Excel

·4· · · · spreadsheet?

·5· ·A· · Yes, they were.

·6· ·Q· · And is it your testimony that you know from your

·7· · · · personal knowledge that that Excel spreadsheet was

·8· · · · shared with employees?

·9· ·A· · As Mercedes Accounting and as Mercedes De Armas,

10· · · · employee of Mercedes Accounting, I don't know if they

11· · · · were shared with employees because --

12· ·Q· · Okay.

13· ·A· · -- I wasn't there.

14· ·Q· · Okay.· So then if you don't know, then I would ask

15· · · · that you indicate, "I don't know."

16· ·A· · Okay.· I don't know.

17· ·Q· · All right.· So can you see from this pay stub, if a

18· · · · worker was to get this pay stub, then he's not being

19· · · · informed of how much sick time he's accruing.

20· · · · · · ·Would you agree with that?

21· ·A· · Well, yes and no.· Yes, because the pay stub is not

22· · · · accruing.· No, because Roberto has the Excel and he

23· · · · was probably informed through Roberto about it.

24· ·Q· · Well, do you know -- do you know whether Roberto was

25· · · · informing the workers about their sick leave balances?
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·1· ·A· · No.· I --

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· Object to the form of

·3· · · · the question.

·4· · · · · · ·Go ahead.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah, but I don't know

·6· · · · because I wasn't there.· But I do know by emails and

·7· · · · correspondence, you know, that he was informing some

·8· · · · sick pay for some of the employees and they were in

·9· · · · the pay stubs.

10· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· Are you saying that you have

11· · · · emails that would demonstrate that employees were

12· · · · informed of their sick leave balances?

13· ·A· · No.· He will report -- in the payroll summaries, he

14· · · · will report that this person has sick hours, how many.

15· · · · He would put it in the payroll summary.

16· ·Q· · Okay.· But then that information was not reflected on

17· · · · the pay stub; right?

18· ·A· · Well, I don't -- well, yeah, it can be in Excel.· It

19· · · · can be in Excel.· It could be -- two systems.· The

20· · · · Excel and the pay stub.· By law, the two of them are

21· · · · acceptable.

22· · · · · · ·The importance is that the employer, in this case

23· · · · it's Roberto Soto, he needed to share with employees

24· · · · that and inform them, because he was in charge of all

25· · · · of that.· We just provided the information to him.
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·1· · · · · · ·So I am just saying that I recall some of the

·2· · · · payroll summaries that he put sick hours and that

·3· · · · makes me to believe that he was letting them know

·4· · · · because he was requesting and paying them.

·5· ·Q· · Okay.· Do you know if Baja Concrete USA was letting

·6· · · · employees know of their sick leave balances?

·7· ·A· · Well, there is no contact between Baja Concrete saying

·8· · · · Claudia and the employees.· The contact was always

·9· · · · Roberto Soto with employees.

10· ·Q· · Okay.· But Roberto Soto wasn't paying the employees.

11· · · · Baja Concrete USA was paying the employees; is that

12· · · · right?

13· ·A· · Yeah, but all of the information is coming from

14· · · · Roberto and Newway Forming to the process.

15· ·Q· · Okay.· But since --

16· ·A· · Roberto is an independent contractor, right.· Some

17· · · · kind of -- something like that, I guess.· I don't know

18· · · · how to call it because it's an agreement between

19· · · · Canada and this.· And he came from Canada.

20· · · · · · ·So he's a third-party, and he's in charge of all

21· · · · of that.· He's running the whole scenario.· I don't

22· · · · know what happened on the sides when they were there.

23· · · · I never heard anybody complaining about it.

24· ·Q· · Okay.· You just referred to the exhibit that's up

25· · · · right now, Exhibit No. 5, the pay stub for Gerardo
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·1· · · · Valencia, currently on Page 42.
·2· · · · · · ·Is there an employer listed there?
·3· ·A· · I'm sorry.· Could you repeat that question?
·4· ·Q· · If we're looking at Exhibit No. 5, the pay stub for
·5· · · · Gerardo Valencia.
·6· ·A· · The one that I see I can see right now.· You are
·7· · · · talking about this one?
·8· ·Q· · Yes.· It's up right now.
·9· ·A· · Okay.
10· ·Q· · It's on Page 42.
11· ·A· · Okay.
12· ·Q· · Do you see that?
13· ·A· · Yes, I do.
14· ·Q· · I believe the pay date is May 8th?
15· ·A· · 2020.
16· ·Q· · 2020.· I'm sorry.· Yes.· 2020.
17· ·A· · Yes.
18· ·Q· · Is there an employer listed there?
19· ·A· · Yeah.· It's Baja Concrete USA.
20· ·Q· · It doesn't say Roberto Contreras, does it?
21· ·A· · Correct, it doesn't say Roberto Contreras.
22· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· Okay.· All right.
23· · · · So it is now 12:08, and I have quite a few more
24· · · · questions.· So do we want to take a lunch break or how
25· · · · would everybody --
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· I don't know if
·2· · · · there's a way that you can turn it.· Is there a way to
·3· · · · do that?
·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I think the little
·5· · · · hand will help you to put it into landscape format.
·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· See if you can turn
·7· · · · it around.
·8· · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you so much.
·9· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· So do you see a date indicated at
10· · · · the top there?
11· ·A· · I'm sorry?
12· ·Q· · Kind of underneath 1120 Denny Way.
13· ·A· · What was the question?
14· ·Q· · Do you see the date?
15· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· You are kind of
16· · · · breaking up a little bit, your audio, Lorna.
17· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· Can you hear me?
18· ·A· · Yes.
19· ·Q· · Okay.· So do you see the date at the top?
20· ·A· · Yeah.· It's February 20th, 2018, and
21· · · · February 23, 2018.· It was written in the other
22· · · · standard format, the date.
23· ·Q· · Right.
24· ·A· · European style.
25· ·Q· · With the date first?
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·1· ·A· · That's Canada.· Canada uses that.

·2· ·Q· · Okay.· And you see the first name noted on there?

·3· ·A· · Noe R.· I guess Noe Rios.

·4· ·Q· · Okay.· And how many hours did Noe Rios work that week?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· We can't see the far

·6· · · · right portion of this page because all of our video

·7· · · · faces are covering it up.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · EXHIBIT TECH:· You can minimize that

·9· · · · view.· If you hover over the boxes, you can just click

10· · · · one of those smaller looking -- it says "Hide

11· · · · thumbnail."

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· You can also move

13· · · · the box to the other side, which is what I did.

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Oh, yeah.· That's

15· · · · easier.

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · EXHIBIT TECH:· That works too.

17· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· So now how many hours does it say

18· · · · that --

19· ·A· · Thirty-six.

20· ·Q· · Okay.· And this was in 2018?

21· ·A· · Yes.

22· ·Q· · Okay.· So in the packet of pay stubs for Mr. Rios in

23· · · · Exhibit No. 8, is there any corresponding pay stub for

24· · · · Mr. Rios for that date in 2018?

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· So --
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· The one that we see is
·2· · · · not 2018, it's 2019.
·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· Right.
·4· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· Okay.· And if you scroll down, do
·5· · · · you see any pay stubs for 2018 in this pack of pay
·6· · · · stubs for Mr. Rios?
·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· The dates are getting
·8· · · · more recent.
·9· · · · · · ·Sorry.· I'm not supposed to respond.
10· · · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· No, that's correct.
11· · · · It's coming to -- you have to see them all.· You don't
12· · · · know if there's going to be one in the middle.
13· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· Lucky I picked a small --
14· ·A· · It loos like -- could you go to the first one,
15· · · · Ms. Lorna, please?
16· ·Q· · And it's the lovely exhibit technician that is --
17· · · · Ms. Allison who is doing all of the scrolling, and I
18· · · · appreciate her.
19· · · · · · ·But yes, this is the first one.· So this is
20· · · · Page 1.
21· ·A· · Okay.· There is none, then.· I didn't see any for
22· · · · 2018.
23· ·Q· · And then on the payroll summary, which is Exhibit 9, I
24· · · · believe; right?
25· ·A· · Yes.
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·1· ·Q· · On the payroll summary, what's the first date for him,

·2· · · · for Mr. Noe?

·3· ·A· · I see zero on the first column after his name.

·4· ·Q· · Right.· But what's the date?

·5· ·A· · February 1st, 2019.

·6· ·Q· · Okay.

·7· ·A· · So there's no '18, is what you're saying?

·8· ·Q· · Yes.

·9· ·A· · Yeah, I see there is no '18.

10· ·Q· · Okay.· I'm almost done.

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· Good.

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· What is the question?

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · MR. LARKIN:· There's no question.

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · MS. SYLVESTER:· There's no question.

15· · · · I'm just letting you know I'm almost done.

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Okay.

17· ·Q· · (By Ms. Sylvester)· Okay.· So did you, Mercedes De

18· · · · Armas or did Mercedes Accounting, conduct any

19· · · · on-boarding for new Baja employees?· And by

20· · · · "on-boarding" I mean working with employees on signing

21· · · · paperwork like W-4s or any other documents to indicate

22· · · · to an accounting service what should be taken out of

23· · · · that employee's pay?

24· ·A· · You mean if we met with the employees to check -- to

25· · · · talk to them directly?
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·1· ·Q· · Yes, to get them --

·2· ·A· · No, we did not.· Not at all.· Not even once.

·3· ·Q· · Okay.· And do you know what records you provided to

·4· · · · OLS that would demonstrate Baja USA paid sick and safe

·5· · · · time policy?

·6· ·A· · I gave to OLS the Excel for the sick pay, a

·7· · · · calculation how we give it the hourly and the

·8· · · · accruing -- the accrual of hours for employee.· I gave

·9· · · · them in Excel.

10· ·Q· · Okay.· When you worked with Baja to provide documents

11· · · · to the Office of Labor Standards, did you find that

12· · · · some records were missing?

13· ·A· · I don't recall now.

14· ·Q· · For example, we just went over Mr. Rios' pay stubs.

15· · · · · · ·And if he was on the time sheets in 2018, did you

16· · · · find that his 2018 pay stub information was missing?

17· ·A· · Remember, we receive the payroll summaries from

18· · · · Roberto.· If he doesn't have anything in 2018, Roberto

19· · · · did not report hours for him in 2018.

20· · · · · · ·And that time sheet is not what payroll was based

21· · · · on.· Roberto was giving us a payroll summary to

22· · · · process payroll.· Those time sheets that you just

23· · · · showed are only attached to the invoices.

24· · · · · · ·So we never -- this is the first time I see that

25· · · · time sheet attached to the invoice because I was not
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·1· · · · reviewing the invoices and the attachments, okay.  I

·2· · · · just have a page and whatever was missing for

·3· · · · receivables, for financials and put it there.· But I

·4· · · · was not really reviewing this between that.

·5· · · · · · ·So I think if I don't have a pay stub for Noe

·6· · · · Rios in 2018, it's because in the payroll summaries

·7· · · · that Roberto provided for the payroll, he was not

·8· · · · there.

·9· ·Q· · Okay.· And did -- during your time in providing OLS

10· · · · with records during the investigation, do you recall

11· · · · if there were any records that would show employees

12· · · · authorizing the deductions that we discussed earlier?

13· ·A· · I didn't see any paperwork for -- from employees in

14· · · · writing authorizing the deductions.

15· ·Q· · Okay.· So did you keep any records on behalf of Baja?

16· · · · For example, does Mercedes Accounting house any

17· · · · records on behalf of Baja?

18· ·A· · The ones that were provided to me by Roberto for the

19· · · · processing payroll, those are the documents that I

20· · · · have.

21· ·Q· · Okay.

22· ·A· · And they mail me -- they email me the copy of -- I

23· · · · wasn't in the loop of the emails for the receivables.

24· · · · Because who would put the receivables in the

25· · · · accounting system for the accounting.· But we did not
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·1· · · · receive -- we were not preparing that, so we never

·2· · · · really -- we just put the numbers.

·3· ·Q· · So you did house records that were provided to you by

·4· · · · Roberto on behalf of Baja?

·5· ·A· · If he email it to us, I have a copy.

·6· ·Q· · And what types of documents are you talking about?

·7· ·A· · I'm talking about payroll summaries, I'm talking about

·8· · · · W-4s, copies, right, that he probably sent to payroll

·9· · · · for payroll.· And he copied me on the invoices.

10· ·Q· · So the invoices that we just saw, something like

11· · · · those?

12· ·A· · Yeah, something like those.

13· ·Q· · And when you were copied on the emails with the

14· · · · invoices, did they include the time sheets that we

15· · · · also saw?

16· ·A· · I think so.

17· ·Q· · Okay.

18· ·A· · Can I clarify something?

19· ·Q· · Sure.

20· ·A· · We don't process receivables for any client.· So that

21· · · · was information and we used the invoice to note the

22· · · · invoices when they receive the payment, will receive a

23· · · · copy of the check, and we will know the invoice was

24· · · · paid in that case.· That's it.

25· · · · · · ·We have nothing to do with the hours put in the
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·1· · · · invoice.· We were not invoicing.· That's Roberto Soto

·2· · · · and Claudia's department.

·3· ·Q· · Okay.· Did you keep, on behalf of Baja, any records

·4· · · · documenting the following, and I have a list.· So did

·5· · · · you keep any records on behalf of Baja documenting

·6· · · · each employee's name?

·7· ·A· · Yeah, I have the employee's name.

·8· ·Q· · Okay.· And what about each employee's address?

·9· ·A· · Also we have the address.

10· ·Q· · And what about total overtime earnings?

11· ·A· · Total overtime earnings?

12· ·Q· · Correct.

13· ·A· · Roberto was reporting in the payroll summaries all the

14· · · · information.· He would put there the overtime.· He

15· · · · would put in the payroll summaries overtime and then

16· · · · that employee will have overtime.

17· ·Q· · So you have a record somewhere for each employee's

18· · · · overtime earnings?

19· ·A· · Not somewhere.· In the payroll summaries that Roberto

20· · · · will give us, they will show you overtime, if there

21· · · · was overtime.

22· · · · · · ·But remember, two systems.· It started with the

23· · · · system that -- the piecework and the amount net that

24· · · · they would receive or they would not work.· And then

25· · · · later it was switched to the regular hourly rate and



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7/31/2020 email correspondence  

from Mercedes De Armas  

to OLS’ Ashley Harrison and Daron Williams 

 

EXHIBIT D  
TO DECLARATION OF LORNA S. SYLVESTER 

 



From: Mercedes De Armas
To: Harrison, Ashley
Cc: Williams, Daron
Subject: FW: Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards Investigation
Date: Friday, July 31, 2020 4:53:57 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.png
BCUSA Employee Information.pdf
PR Summary 01012017 to 06122020.xlsx
COS Labor Standards CAS202000186.pdf

CAUTION: External Email

HI Ashley,
Attached the reports requested:

1. Information Chart of all employees and owners
2. Excel Report per Employee per Pay Period. (2017 to 06/12/2020)
3. Letter Information Request CAS-2020-00186
4. Paystubs for the past 3 years requested on # 7 of Letter of Information on the mail today.

Too big to email.
Please let me know if any question.

Mercedes De Armas
MERCEDES ACCOUNTING & ASSOCIATES LLC
12360 NE 8th St Suite 150
BELLEVUE, WA 98005
425.747.0953
From: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov> 
Sent: 06/24/2020 10:00 AM
To: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Cc: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Subject: RE: Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards Investigation
Hello Mercedes,
Thanks for your clarification request. Yes, please provide the requested information about all
employees at all locations.
Please note that we are still moving forward with the subpoena, due to multiple missed deadlines. I
wish you safe travels.
Sincerely,
Ashley Harrison
Investigator
City of Seattle, Office of Labor Standards
O: 206-386-1930 | ashley.harrison@seattle.gov

Pronouns: she/her/hers

From: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 5:48 PM
To: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Cc: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Subject: FW: Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards Investigation

CAUTION: External Email

mailto:Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com
mailto:Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov
mailto:Daron.Williams@seattle.gov
http://www.seattle.gov/laborstandards
mailto:ashley.harrison@seattle.gov
mailto:Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com
mailto:Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov
mailto:Daron.Williams@seattle.gov











BAJA CONCRETE USA CORP
Employee Details


Employee Name Position Address Work Location Rate Pay Hired
Jose  Acosta Caballero WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 St Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement Hired: 9/1/2019


    Apt 1301 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $22.50/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19: $22.50/hr


Javier  A. Alfaro Perez WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/27/2020
    Apt I 306 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $22.50/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19: $20.50/hr


Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/27/2020
    Apt I 306 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $29.00/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19: $27.50/hr


Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6107 Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 02/11/2020
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $22.50/hr


Covid-19: $20.50/hr


Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6301 219th ST SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 09/09/2019
    Apt A103 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $26.00/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043


Julio C. Caballero Pacheco WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 02/08/2020
    Apt I 301 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $22.50/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19: $20.50/hr


Manuel Camus Valdes WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6201 ST Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/15/2018
    APT J 204 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $30.00/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19: $30.00/hr


JOSE  A. ESTRADA PARRA WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 ST ALBION WAY 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/25/2019
    APT. I301 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $28.50/hr
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA Covid-19: $28.50/hr


Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/02/2019
    Apt I306 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $30.00/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19: $30.00/hr


Gerardo Guzman Barragan WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     4714 212th ST SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/25/2019
    Apt # 205 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $25.00/hr
    Mountlake Terrace  WA 98043 Covid-19: $25.00/hr


Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 ST Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 09/01/2019
    Apt 1301 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $22.50/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19:: $22.50/hr


Roberto Hiralez Colin WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     18403 34nd Ave South 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    Seattle  WA 98188 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $33.00/hr


Covid-19:: $32.00/hr


Roberto  Lopez Hernandez WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6301 219th SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 03/01/2020
    Apt H208 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $20.50/hr
    Mountlake Terrace  WA 98043 Covid-19: $20.50/hr







NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6204 ST ALBION WAY 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/30/2019
    APT. I307 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $26.00/hr
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA Covid-19: $26.00/hr


Gabriel Rios Ortiz WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     630 219th St SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 02/20/2020
    Apt A103 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $28.50/hr
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19:$28.50/hr


Gerardo  . Valencia WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     16305 31nd Ave South Seattle 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    Seattle WA 98108 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $28.50/hr


Covid-19: $28.50/hr


MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6402 ST ALBION WAY 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 04/15/2019
    APT. I308 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $22.50/hr
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA Covid-19: $22.50/hr


*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 St Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 09/15/2019
    Apt I306 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Commission Only     Term: 02/10/2020
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043


*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 ST ALBION WAY 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/15/2018
    APT. I306 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $25.00/hr     Term: 03/16/2020
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 By:DD ....4111


*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6301 219th ST SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/14/2019
    Apt  #A103 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Commission Only     Term: 02/10/2020
    Mountlake Terrace  WA 98043


*Claudio I. Gamboa WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 St Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/15/2018
    APT i301 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Commission Only     Term: 03/16/2020
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 


*Cristian  Navejas WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 ST ALBION WAY 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    APT. I302 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $27.50/hr     Term: 03/15/2020
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 


*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6301 219th St SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/04/2019
    Apt A 103 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $22.50/hr     Term: 03/16/2020
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043


*Diego F. Rojas Villaseca WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6303 ST Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/24/2020
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 By:DD ....0322     Term: 02/10/2020


*David M. San Roman Mendo WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 ST Albiot Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 12/10/2019
    1301 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 03/16/2020
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043


*Antonio  Yevenes WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6301 219th ST SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/15/2020
    APT A103 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $22.50/hr     Term: 05/01/2020
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Covid-19: $22.50/hr


*Evelio  Alvarez Ruiz WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 St Albion Way apt A308 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 07/06/2019


*MIGUEL  A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6301 214TH ST SW APT. 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/25/2019







    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE  WA Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 07/06/2019


*Israel Avila Gasca WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6405 st Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/15/2018
    apt 405 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 01/10/2020
    Seattle WA 98103


*Lucas M. Ayala WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     18401 31nd Av Seatac 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 02/01/2019
    SEATTLE WA 98108 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 06/30/2019


*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     18401 31st ave 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    SeaTac WA 98148 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 12/01/2019


*MATIAS  I. CATALAN TORO WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 ST ALBION WAY 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/31/2019
    APT. 1302 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 09/07/2019
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 


*Edison  R. Chimborazo Macas WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6001 219th St SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 08/06/2018
    F201 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 07/06/2019
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043


*Emeterio  Collins Lopez WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     630 219th St SW 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 09/01/2019
    Apt 103 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 12/15/2019
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043


*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6205 st Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/15/2018
    apt 206 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 01/10/2020
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043


*Alejandro Fiol WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 St Albion Way apt A308 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 07/06/2019


*LUIS  A. GARCIA WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     603 ST ALBION WAY #305 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/25/2019
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 07/06/2019


*David Giron WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6403 St Albion Way T405 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 07/06/2019


*ANGEL  M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 ST ALBION WAY 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/25/2019
    APT. I 301 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 09/07/2019
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA 


*Ruben Gonzalez WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 St Albion Way apt A308 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 01/01/2020


*John E. Hinestroz Diaz WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 St Albion Way apt A305 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 07/06/2019


*Cristhian  Pelaez Ruiz WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6506 st Albion way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 01/10/2020


*Ivan A. Ponce WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6203 st Albion Way 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/01/2018
    APT. I302 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 11/16/2019
    Mountlake Terrace WA 98043


*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6002 219TH ST SW APT. 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/25/2019
    MOUNTLAKE TERRACE WA Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043     Term: 01/10/2020







*Bulfrano Brito WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     17304 32nd Ave S 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 11/27/2017
    Sea Tac WA 98188 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $15.00/hr     Term: 08/11/2018


*Alexis Hernandez WC Class & Subclass: 0217 01     6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Piece of Work - Agreement     Hired: 01/28/2018
    Mountlake terrace  WA 98043 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 Regular Pay: $15.00/hr     Term: 02/16/2018


Claudia  L. Penunuri PRESIDENT     12736 Sw 133 ST 6103 St. Albion Way Apt. I-306 Salary: $3,000.00/Month     Hired: 04/01/2018


    Miami FL 33186 Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043 By:DD ....4765






Sheet1

		BAJA CONCRETE USA CORP

		Payroll Summary

		01/01/2017 - 06/12/2020

		Date		Name		Net Amt		Hours		Taxes Withheld		Total Deductions		Total Pay		Employer Taxes		Total Cost 		Check Num 

		11/23/18		*Alejandro Fiol		$2,052.00		80		$216.00		$0.00		$2,268.00		$388.71		$2,656.71		DD

		12/7/18		*Alejandro Fiol		$856.00		72		$173.33		$440.00		$1,469.33		$292.27		$1,761.60		DD

		12/21/18		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,463.00		80		$214.31		$0.00		$1,677.31		$329.29		$2,006.60		DD

		1/4/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,108.00		80		$235.67		$440.00		$1,783.67		$339.98		$2,123.65		DD

		1/4/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,872.00		80		$208.00		$0.00		$2,080.00		$369.79		$2,449.79		DD

		1/18/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,640.00		80		$362.29		$440.00		$2,442.29		$406.25		$2,848.54		DD

		2/15/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,665.00		80		$208.31		$225.00		$2,098.31		$363.19		$2,461.50		DD

		2/27/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,814.00		0		$243.14		$0.00		$2,057.14		$194.61		$2,251.75		DD

		2/27/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,890.00		80		$315.05		$0.00		$2,205.05		$369.13		$2,574.18		DD

		3/29/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,748.00		75		$202.00		$0.00		$1,950.00		$334.97		$2,284.97		DD

		3/29/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($24.84)		($24.84)

		4/12/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,748.00		80		$332.00		$0.00		$2,080.00		$357.31		$2,437.31		DD

		4/12/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($3.53)		($3.53)

		4/26/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,672.00		80		$408.00		$0.00		$2,080.00		$353.77		$2,433.77		DD

		5/10/19		*Alejandro Fiol		$1,263.00		80		$817.00		$0.00		$2,080.00		$353.78		$2,433.78		DD

		Totals		Alejandro Foil 		$20,791.00		$947.00		$3,935.04		$1,545.06		$26,271.10		$4,424.68		$30,695.78

		2/2/18		*Alexis Hernandez		$1,008.20		80		$191.80		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26

		2/16/18		*Alexis Hernandez		$1,008.20		80		$191.80		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26

		Totals		*Alexis Hernandez		$2,016.40		$160.00		$383.60		$0.00		$2,400.00		$562.52		$2,962.52

		2/15/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,591.00		80		$199.83		$200.00		$1,990.83		$360.82		$2,351.65		100152

		3/1/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,171.00		80		$184.39		$440.00		$1,795.39		$341.16		$2,136.55		100162

		3/1/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$785.00		80		$320.07		$610.00		$1,715.07		$333.07		$2,048.14		DD

		3/29/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,090.00		80		$353.63		$440.00		$1,883.63		$347.73		$2,231.36		DD

		3/29/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($12.55)		($12.55)

		4/12/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($3.31)		($3.31)

		4/12/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,084.00		80		$367.04		$500.00		$1,951.04		$345.10		$2,296.14		DD

		4/26/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,638.00		80		$384.87		$0.00		$2,022.87		$348.46		$2,371.33		DD

		5/10/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,692.00		80		$407.90		$0.00		$2,099.90		$355.62		$2,455.52		DD

		5/24/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,243.00		80		$404.07		$440.00		$2,087.07		$354.43		$2,441.50		DD

		6/7/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,512.00		80		$349.15		$0.00		$1,861.15		$333.44		$2,194.59		DD

		6/21/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,549.00		80		$272.80		$440.00		$2,261.80		$370.66		$2,632.46		DD

		6/28/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$440.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$440.00		$0.00		$440.00		100179

		7/5/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,530.00		80		$177.42		$0.00		$1,707.42		$319.15		$2,026.57		DD

		7/19/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,458.00		80		$171.26		$0.00		$1,629.26		$311.91		$1,941.17		DD

		8/2/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,485.00		80		$173.57		($0.01)		$1,658.56		$314.62		$1,973.18		DD

		8/16/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$927.00		80		$125.67		$0.00		$1,052.67		$258.33		$1,311.00		DD

		8/30/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$1,872.00		80		$247.29		$0.00		$2,119.29		$357.42		$2,476.71		DD

		9/13/19		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$900.00		50		$106.08		$0.00		$1,006.08		$193.81		$1,199.89		DD

		Totals		*ANGEL M. GOMEZ CHAVEZ		$21,967.00		$1,250.00		$4,245.03		$3,070.00		$29,282.03		$5,229.87		$34,511.90

		1/31/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$2,217.00		80		$438.59		$0.00		$2,655.59		$379.80		$3,035.39		DD

		1/31/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($56.94)		($56.94)

		2/14/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$1,696.00		80		$316.35		$50.00		$2,062.35		$285.10		$2,347.45		DD

		2/28/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$1,795.00		80		$336.06		$50.00		$2,181.06		$294.90		$2,475.96		DD

		3/13/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$1,417.00		80		$260.81		$50.00		$1,727.81		$255.85		$1,983.66		DD

		3/27/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$1,420.30		79		$322.20		$35.00		$1,777.50		$276.14		$2,053.64		DD

		3/27/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($137.60)		($137.60)

		3/27/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.91		$0.91

		3/27/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$167.94		$167.94

		4/10/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$812.03		40		$87.97		$0.00		$900.00		$139.82		$1,039.82		DD

		4/10/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($13.68)		($13.68)

		4/10/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.09		$0.09

		4/10/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/24/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$500.02		24.63		$54.16		$0.00		$554.18		$88.09		$642.27		DD

		5/8/20		*Antonio Yevenes		$700.39		34.5		$75.86		$0.00		$776.25		$123.39		$899.64		DD

		Totals		*Antonio Yevenes		$10,557.74		$498.13		$1,892.00		$185.00		$12,634.74		$1,820.65		$14,455.39

		1/19/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,008.20		80		$191.80		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26

		2/2/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,008.20		80		$191.80		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26

		2/16/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,008.20		80		$191.80		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26

		3/2/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26		DD

		3/16/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26		DD

		3/30/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$280.06		$1,480.06		DD

		4/13/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		4/27/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		5/11/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		5/25/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		6/7/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		6/22/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		7/6/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		7/20/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$812.60		61		$102.40		$0.00		$915.00		$208.97		$1,123.97		DD

		8/3/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$990.73		76		$149.27		$0.00		$1,140.00		$260.35		$1,400.35		DD

		8/17/18		*Bulfrano Brito		$1,038.02		80		$161.98		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		Totals		*Bulfrano Brito		$16,246.15		$1,177.00		$2,417.05		$0.00		$17,655.00		$4,066.90		$21,721.90

		12/7/18		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,126.00		80		$288.13		$350.00		$1,764.13		$338.01		$2,102.14		DD

		12/21/18		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,079.00		80		$470.46		$0.00		$2,549.46		$417.01		$2,966.47		DD

		1/4/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$895.48		80		$234.52		$350.00		$1,480.00		$309.43		$1,789.43		DD

		1/4/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$428.52		0		$36.78		$0.00		$465.30		$46.81		$512.11		100126

		1/4/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,979.96		80		$216.04		$0.00		$2,196.00		$381.46		$2,577.46		DD

		1/18/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$216.04		0		$18.53		$0.00		$234.57		$23.60		$258.17		DD

		1/18/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,181.00		80		$664.43		$350.00		$3,195.43		$478.57		$3,674.00		DD

		2/15/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,984.00		80		$216.39		$0.00		$2,200.39		$368.69		$2,569.08		DD

		2/27/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,802.00		0		$319.75		$0.00		$2,121.75		$200.71		$2,322.46		DD

		3/15/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,299.00		80		$565.47		$0.00		$2,864.47		$431.53		$3,296.00		DD

		3/29/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,897.00		80		$543.29		$350.00		$2,790.29		$424.50		$3,214.79		DD

		3/29/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($29.83)		($29.83)

		3/29/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,897.00		80		$396.41		$0.00		$2,293.41		$377.49		$2,670.90		DD

		4/12/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($4.55)		($4.55)

		4/12/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$339.00		20		$40.63		$0.00		$379.63		$76.06		$455.69		100173

		4/12/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/26/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,907.00		80		$547.53		$350.00		$2,804.53		$421.08		$3,225.61		DD

		5/10/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,698.00		80		$735.67		$0.00		$3,433.67		$479.53		$3,913.20		DD

		5/24/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,348.00		80		$735.66		$350.00		$3,433.66		$479.53		$3,913.19		DD

		6/7/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,163.00		80		$507.44		$0.00		$2,670.44		$408.62		$3,079.06		DD

		6/21/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,821.00		80		$318.25		$350.00		$3,489.25		$484.69		$3,973.94		DD

		7/5/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,038.00		80		$259.64		$450.00		$2,747.64		$415.80		$3,163.44		DD

		7/19/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,341.00		80		$278.69		$675.00		$2,294.69		$373.72		$2,668.41		DD

		8/2/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,285.00		80		$427.56		$349.96		$3,062.52		$445.04		$3,507.56		DD

		8/16/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,626.00		80		$325.94		$600.00		$2,551.94		$397.61		$2,949.55		DD

		8/30/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,876.00		80		$325.94		$350.00		$2,551.94		$397.61		$2,949.55		DD

		9/13/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,921.00		80		$257.98		$0.00		$2,178.98		$336.06		$2,515.04		DD

		9/27/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,254.00		80		$419.86		$350.00		$3,023.86		$391.86		$3,415.72		DD

		10/11/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,730.00		80		$451.18		$0.00		$3,181.18		$403.90		$3,585.08		DD

		10/25/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,603.00		80		$264.96		$350.00		$2,217.96		$330.22		$2,548.18		DD

		11/8/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,425.00		80		$375.38		$0.00		$2,800.38		$374.77		$3,175.15		DD

		11/22/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,680.00		80		$205.42		$0.00		$1,885.42		$304.77		$2,190.19		DD

		12/6/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$977.00		80		$129.98		$0.00		$1,106.98		$245.23		$1,352.21		DD

		12/20/19		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,226.00		80		$325.94		$0.00		$2,551.94		$355.76		$2,907.70		DD

		1/3/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,892.00		80		$247.44		$0.00		$2,139.44		$372.14		$2,511.58		DD

		1/17/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,310.00		80		$277.97		$0.00		$2,587.97		$389.00		$2,976.97		DD

		1/31/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		1/31/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,205.00		80		$259.17		$0.00		$2,464.17		$378.61		$2,842.78		DD

		2/14/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,226.00		80		$254.11		$0.00		$2,480.11		$321.29		$2,801.40		DD

		2/28/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,310.00		80		$269.14		$0.00		$2,579.14		$327.02		$2,906.16		DD

		3/13/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$2,215.00		80		$252.14		$0.00		$2,467.14		$318.19		$2,785.33		DD

		3/27/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($219.72)		($219.72)

		3/27/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.45		$1.45

		3/27/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$1,050.00		50		$104.03		$0.00		$1,154.03		$167.80		$1,321.83		DD

		3/27/20		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$223.08		$223.08

		Totals		*Claudio I. Gamboa		$70,251.00		$2,710.00		$12,567.81		$5,575.00		$88,393.81		$12,993.33		$101,387.14

		11/23/18		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$2,929.00		80		$288.64		$0.00		$3,217.64		$484.24		$3,701.88		DD

		12/7/18		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$1,703.00		70.5		$538.87		$200.00		$2,441.87		$387.12		$2,828.99		DD

		12/17/18		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$3,064.00		102		$1,070.73		$0.00		$4,134.73		$603.87		$4,738.60		100112

		2/15/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$2,687.00		80		$296.03		$225.00		$3,208.03		$483.27		$3,691.30		DD

		2/27/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$2,996.00		0		$966.14		$0.00		$3,962.14		$397.57		$4,359.71		DD

		2/27/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$3,122.00		80		$1,087.59		$0.00		$4,209.59		$558.77		$4,768.36		DD

		3/15/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($26.39)		($26.39)

		3/29/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$3,080.00		80		$1,067.88		$0.00		$4,147.88		$552.91		$4,700.79		DD

		3/29/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$3,080.00		80		$1,067.93		$0.00		$4,147.93		$552.95		$4,700.88		DD

		4/12/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($7.05)		($7.05)

		4/12/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.02)		$0.02		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		6/7/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$1,039.00		51		$345.92		$440.00		$1,824.92		$271.86		$2,096.78		DD

		6/21/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$2,760.00		80		$572.93		$460.00		$3,792.93		$512.90		$4,305.83		DD

		7/5/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$508.00		26		$77.47		$220.00		$805.47		$127.00		$932.47		DD

		8/2/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$2,310.00		80		$461.10		$459.95		$3,231.05		$460.71		$3,691.76		DD

		8/16/19		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$2,450.00		80		$416.40		$140.00		$3,006.40		$439.84		$3,446.24		DD

		Totals		*Cristhian Pelaez Ruiz		$31,728.00		$889.50		$8,257.58		$2,145.00		$42,130.58		$5,799.57		$47,930.15

		11/23/18		*Cristian Navejas		$2,112.00		80		$220.96		$0.00		$2,332.96		$395.24		$2,728.20		DD

		12/7/18		*Cristian Navejas		$1,233.00		69		$238.39		$285.00		$1,756.39		$315.16		$2,071.55		DD

		12/17/18		*Cristian Navejas		$2,112.00		96		$400.01		$0.00		$2,512.01		$445.33		$2,957.34		100111

		1/4/19		*Cristian Navejas		$330.00		15		$36.97		$0.00		$366.97		$67.01		$433.98		100124

		1/4/19		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Cristian Navejas		$986.00		62		$217.10		$440.00		$1,643.10		$289.72		$1,932.82		100144

		2/15/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,132.00		80		$248.40		$225.00		$2,605.40		$422.64		$3,028.04		DD

		2/15/19		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/27/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,219.00		0		$367.97		$0.00		$2,586.97		$259.04		$2,846.01		DD

		3/15/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,150.00		80		$403.87		$0.00		$2,553.87		$402.14		$2,956.01		DD

		3/15/19		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,093.00		80		$389.71		$0.00		$2,482.71		$395.41		$2,878.12		DD

		3/29/19		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($20.81)		($20.81)

		4/12/19		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($4.22)		($4.22)

		4/12/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,093.00		80		$389.71		$0.00		$2,482.71		$395.41		$2,878.12		DD

		4/26/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,024.00		80		$372.53		$0.00		$2,396.53		$383.16		$2,779.69		DD

		5/10/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,024.00		80		$372.55		$0.00		$2,396.55		$383.19		$2,779.74		100175

		5/24/19		*Cristian Navejas		$828.00		36		$91.82		$0.00		$919.82		$157.69		$1,077.51		DD

		6/7/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,058.00		80		$381.01		$0.00		$2,439.01		$387.13		$2,826.14		DD

		6/21/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,587.00		80		$415.65		$0.00		$3,002.65		$439.48		$3,442.13		DD

		7/5/19		*Cristian Navejas		$1,288.00		56		$142.81		$0.00		$1,430.81		$245.30		$1,676.11		DD

		7/19/19		*Cristian Navejas		$943.00		41		$104.57		$0.00		$1,047.57		$179.59		$1,227.16		DD

		8/2/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,196.00		80		$318.47		($0.04)		$2,514.43		$394.12		$2,908.55		DD

		8/16/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,449.00		80		$381.36		$0.00		$2,830.36		$423.50		$3,253.86		DD

		8/30/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,342.00		80		$367.19		$50.00		$2,759.19		$416.86		$3,176.05		DD

		9/13/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,047.00		80		$285.45		$0.00		$2,332.45		$377.23		$2,709.68		DD

		9/27/19		*Cristian Navejas		$1,541.00		80		$178.37		$0.00		$1,719.37		$320.26		$2,039.63		DD

		10/11/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,576.00		80		$412.91		$0.00		$2,988.91		$438.21		$3,427.12		DD

		10/25/19		*Cristian Navejas		$1,989.00		80		$272.81		$0.00		$2,261.81		$370.66		$2,632.47		DD

		11/8/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,323.00		80		$350.04		$0.00		$2,673.04		$408.86		$3,081.90		DD

		11/22/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,492.00		80		$392.03		$0.00		$2,884.03		$403.56		$3,287.59		DD

		12/6/19		*Cristian Navejas		$1,848.00		80		$242.07		$0.00		$2,090.07		$320.44		$2,410.51		DD

		12/17/19		*Cristian Navejas		$2,364.00		80		$360.22		$0.00		$2,724.22		$368.94		$3,093.16		100192

		1/3/20		*Cristian Navejas		$864.00		36		$94.90		$0.00		$958.90		$167.06		$1,125.96		DD

		1/17/20		*Cristian Navejas		$1,500.00		0		$118.55		$0.00		$1,618.55		$148.35		$1,766.90		DD

		1/31/20		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($82.56)		($82.56)

		1/31/20		*Cristian Navejas		$2,412.00		80		$298.38		$12.00		$2,722.38		$400.28		$3,122.66		DD

		2/14/20		*Cristian Navejas		$1,717.00		73		$169.19		$35.00		$1,921.19		$275.86		$2,197.05		DD

		2/28/20		*Cristian Navejas		$2,616.00		80		$325.46		$0.00		$2,941.46		$357.63		$3,299.09		DD

		3/13/20		*Cristian Navejas		$2,436.00		80		$291.70		$0.00		$2,727.70		$338.73		$3,066.43		DD

		3/27/20		*Cristian Navejas		$1,751.15		71		$201.35		$0.00		$1,952.50		$281.15		$2,233.65		DD

		3/27/20		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$176.78		$176.78

		3/27/20		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($207.32)		($207.32)

		3/27/20		*Cristian Navejas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.37		$1.37

		Totals		*Cristian Navejas		$66,675.15		$2,395.00		$9,854.44		$1,047.00		$77,576.59		$11,637.58		$89,214.17

		11/23/18		*David Giron		$1,768.00		80		$192.47		$0.00		$1,960.47		$357.76		$2,318.23		DD

		12/7/18		*David Giron		$1,302.00		69		$253.79		$285.00		$1,840.79		$323.65		$2,164.44		DD

		12/21/18		*David Giron		$1,542.00		80		$250.61		$0.00		$1,792.61		$340.87		$2,133.48		DD

		1/4/19		*David Giron		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*David Giron		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($0.22)		($0.22)

		1/4/19		*David Giron		$115.00		5		$12.75		$0.00		$127.75		$22.89		$150.64		DD

		Totals		*David Giron		$4,727.00		$234.00		$709.62		$285.00		$5,721.62		$1,044.95		$6,766.57

		12/20/19		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$1,593.00		80		$224.07		$0.00		$1,817.07		$340.25		$2,157.32		DD

		1/3/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$2,377.00		80		$414.10		$0.00		$2,791.10		$436.59		$3,227.69		DD

		1/17/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$1,510.00		80		$165.91		$0.00		$1,675.91		$309.88		$1,985.79		DD

		1/31/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		1/31/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$2,228.00		80		$304.42		$12.00		$2,544.42		$382.08		$2,926.50		DD

		2/14/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$1,905.00		80		$235.89		$35.00		$2,175.89		$295.39		$2,471.28		DD

		2/28/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$2,100.00		80		$267.73		$0.00		$2,367.73		$307.51		$2,675.24		100196

		2/28/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($160.83)		($160.83)

		2/28/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.05		$1.05

		2/28/20		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$168.36		$168.36

		Totals		*David M. San Roman Mendo		$11,713.00		$480.00		$1,612.12		$47.00		$13,372.12		$1,909.46		$15,281.58

		1/31/20		*Diego F. Rojas Villaseca		$2,500.00		60		$512.60		$0.00		$3,012.60		$367.65		$3,380.25		DD

		1/31/20		*Diego F. Rojas Villaseca		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($42.70)		($42.70)

		2/14/20		*Diego F. Rojas Villaseca		$1,069.00		70.5		$217.41		$200.00		$1,486.41		$224.57		$1,710.98		DD

		2/14/20		*Diego F. Rojas Villaseca		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($57.29)		($57.29)

		2/14/20		*Diego F. Rojas Villaseca		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.38		$0.38

		2/14/20		*Diego F. Rojas Villaseca		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$54.93		$54.93

		Totals		*Diego F. Rojas Villaseca		$3,569.00		$130.50		$730.01		$200.00		$4,499.01		$547.54		$5,046.55

		2/2/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$1,008.20		80		$191.80		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26

		2/16/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$1,008.20		80		$191.80		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26

		3/2/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26		DD

		3/16/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26		DD

		3/30/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26		DD

		4/13/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$280.06		$1,480.06		DD

		4/27/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		5/25/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		6/7/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$924.94		76.5		$222.56		$0.00		$1,147.50		$262.07		$1,409.57		DD

		6/22/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		7/6/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		8/17/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$503.04		40		$96.96		$0.00		$600.00		$137.03		$737.03		DD

		8/31/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		9/14/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$884.62		73		$210.38		$0.00		$1,095.00		$250.08		$1,345.08		DD

		9/28/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		10/12/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		10/26/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$896.14		74		$213.86		$0.00		$1,110.00		$253.50		$1,363.50		DD

		11/9/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		1010

		11/23/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$965.27		80		$234.73		$0.00		$1,200.00		$274.06		$1,474.06		DD

		12/7/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$1,920.00		80		$553.19		$0.00		$2,473.19		$394.49		$2,867.68		DD

		12/21/18		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,808.00		80		$935.08		$0.00		$3,743.08		$514.64		$4,257.72		DD

		1/4/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,025.00		75		$596.90		$0.00		$2,621.90		$414.26		$3,036.16		DD

		1/18/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$1,062.67		80		$137.33		$0.00		$1,200.00		$281.26		$1,481.26		DD

		1/18/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$137.33		0		$11.78		$0.00		$149.11		$15.00		$164.11		DD

		1/18/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/23/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/23/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$1,203.00		0		$243.52		$0.00		$1,446.52		$145.52		$1,592.04		100136

		1/30/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$1,640.00		0		$375.82		$0.00		$2,015.82		$190.70		$2,206.52		DD

		1/30/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$1,283.44		80		$316.56		$0.00		$1,600.00		$321.39		$1,921.39		DD

		2/15/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,086.22		80		$626.78		$0.00		$2,713.00		$417.18		$3,130.18		DD

		2/27/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/27/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,639.44		0		$802.19		$0.00		$3,441.63		$325.58		$3,767.21		DD

		3/15/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,572.08		80		$316.92		$0.00		$2,889.00		$433.85		$3,322.85		DD

		3/29/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,020.33		80		$598.67		$0.00		$2,619.00		$408.29		$3,027.29		DD

		3/29/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($35.19)		($35.19)

		4/12/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,067.29		80		$618.71		$0.00		$2,686.00		$414.64		$3,100.64		DD

		4/12/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$549.00		30		$101.64		$0.00		$650.64		$121.75		$772.39		100172

		4/12/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($5.68)		($5.68)

		4/26/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,022.00		80		$599.39		$0.00		$2,621.39		$404.07		$3,025.46		DD

		5/10/19		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$2,022.00		80		$599.37		$0.00		$2,621.37		$404.06		$3,025.43		DD

		Totals		*Edison R. Chimborazo Macas		$45,831.45		$2,368.50		$11,612.63		$0.07		$57,444.15		$10,221.39		$67,665.54

		9/13/19		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$1,161.00		60		$134.23		$0.00		$1,295.23		$248.49		$1,543.72		DD

		9/27/19		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$1,792.00		80		$266.93		$170.00		$2,228.93		$380.99		$2,609.92		DD

		10/11/19		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$1,916.00		80		$278.69		$100.00		$2,294.69		$387.48		$2,682.17		DD

		10/25/19		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$1,710.00		80		$211.96		$0.00		$1,921.96		$346.18		$2,268.14		DD

		11/8/19		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$1,890.00		80		$251.23		$0.00		$2,141.23		$359.47		$2,500.70		DD

		11/22/19		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$1,909.00		80		$255.36		$0.00		$2,164.36		$361.60		$2,525.96		DD

		12/6/19		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$1,453.00		80		$170.82		$0.00		$1,623.82		$311.39		$1,935.21		DD

		12/20/19		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$2,707.00		80		$445.47		$0.00		$3,152.47		$453.41		$3,605.88		DD

		Totals		*Emeterio Collins Lopez		$14,538.00		$620.00		$2,014.69		$270.00		$16,822.69		$2,849.01		$19,671.70

		11/23/18		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$3,625.00		80		$562.58		$0.00		$4,187.58		$481.22		$4,668.80		100102

		12/7/18		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$1,060.00		60		$274.24		$440.00		$1,774.24		$298.88		$2,073.12		100105

		12/7/18		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$1,500.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$1,500.00		$0.00		$1,500.00		100110

		12/21/18		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$1,825.00		80		$611.50		$1,000.00		$3,436.50		$497.87		$3,934.37		100113

		1/4/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$1,125.00		45		$179.81		$0.00		$1,304.81		$221.57		$1,526.38		100119

		1/18/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$425.00		80		$168.42		$1,000.00		$1,593.42		$320.83		$1,914.25		100128

		2/1/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$425.00		80		$644.86		$2,500.00		$3,569.86		$519.67		$4,089.53		100137

		2/15/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$625.00		25		$68.06		$0.00		$693.06		$118.92		$811.98		DD

		2/27/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/27/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$2,837.00		0		$569.94		$0.00		$3,406.94		$322.30		$3,729.24		DD

		3/15/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$2,875.00		80		$632.43		$0.00		$3,507.43		$492.34		$3,999.77		DD

		3/29/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$2,750.00		80		$601.37		$0.00		$3,351.37		$477.58		$3,828.95		DD

		3/29/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($29.62)		($29.62)

		4/12/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$3,050.00		80		$675.92		$0.00		$3,725.92		$513.01		$4,238.93		DD

		4/12/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($6.33)		($6.33)

		4/26/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$1,325.00		53		$229.35		$0.00		$1,554.35		$250.75		$1,805.10		DD

		5/10/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$1,775.00		71		$353.12		$0.00		$2,128.12		$340.20		$2,468.32		DD

		5/24/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$2,087.00		80		$436.60		$0.00		$2,523.60		$394.97		$2,918.57		DD

		6/7/19		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$1,550.00		62		$291.25		$0.00		$1,841.25		$295.48		$2,136.73		DD

		Totals		*Evelio Alvarez Ruiz		$28,859.00		$956.00		$6,299.38		$4,940.07		$40,098.45		$5,509.64		$45,608.09

		12/7/18		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$720.00		40		$82.65		$0.00		$802.65		$161.02		$963.67		100108

		12/21/18		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,328.00		80		$325.92		$400.00		$2,053.92		$367.16		$2,421.08		100116

		1/4/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,153.00		80		$274.30		$350.00		$1,777.30		$339.33		$2,116.63		100122

		1/4/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,136.00		80		$180.53		$430.00		$1,746.53		$336.26		$2,082.79		100131

		2/1/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,759.00		80		$507.49		$523.00		$2,789.49		$441.16		$3,230.65		100140

		2/15/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,900.00		80		$209.19		$0.00		$2,109.19		$364.19		$2,473.38		DD

		3/1/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,320.00		80		$204.28		$523.00		$2,047.28		$354.21		$2,401.49		100159

		3/15/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,776.00		80		$342.13		$0.00		$2,118.13		$360.90		$2,479.03		DD

		3/29/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($24.90)		($24.90)

		3/29/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,379.00		80		$330.49		$350.00		$2,059.49		$355.38		$2,414.87		DD

		3/29/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,632.00		80		$316.32		$40.00		$1,988.32		$348.64		$2,336.96		DD

		4/12/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($3.38)		($3.38)

		4/26/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,222.00		80		$316.29		$450.00		$1,988.29		$345.25		$2,333.54		DD

		5/10/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,840.00		80		$358.04		$0.00		$2,198.04		$364.74		$2,562.78		DD

		5/24/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,698.00		80		$455.46		$462.00		$2,615.46		$403.51		$3,018.97		DD

		6/7/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,790.00		80		$345.61		$0.00		$2,135.61		$358.94		$2,494.55		DD

		6/21/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,790.00		80		$326.94		$440.00		$2,556.94		$398.08		$2,955.02		DD

		7/5/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,740.00		80		$195.45		$0.00		$1,935.45		$340.34		$2,275.79		DD

		7/19/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,620.00		80		$192.35		$0.00		$1,812.35		$328.91		$2,141.26		DD

		8/2/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,460.00		80		$253.39		$439.98		$2,153.37		$360.59		$2,513.96		DD

		8/16/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,020.00		80		$279.57		$0.00		$2,299.57		$374.17		$2,673.74		DD

		8/30/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,510.00		80		$264.29		$440.00		$2,214.29		$366.24		$2,580.53		DD

		9/13/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,690.00		80		$207.61		$0.00		$1,897.61		$336.83		$2,234.44		DD

		9/27/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,849.00		80		$341.59		$440.00		$2,630.59		$404.92		$3,035.51		DD

		10/11/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,383.00		80		$364.96		$0.00		$2,747.96		$415.84		$3,163.80		DD

		10/25/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,016.00		80		$278.69		$0.00		$2,294.69		$373.71		$2,668.40		DD

		11/8/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,373.00		80		$362.47		$0.00		$2,735.47		$397.42		$3,132.89		DD

		11/22/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,592.00		80		$282.17		$440.00		$2,314.17		$337.57		$2,651.74		DD

		12/6/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,604.00		80		$419.87		$0.00		$3,023.87		$391.87		$3,415.74		DD

		12/20/19		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,167.00		80		$311.62		$0.00		$2,478.62		$350.15		$2,828.77		DD

		1/3/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,387.00		80		$360.43		$0.00		$2,747.43		$432.26		$3,179.69		DD

		1/17/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,121.00		80		$244.13		$0.00		$2,365.13		$370.30		$2,735.43		DD

		1/31/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		1/31/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$3,101.00		80		$430.81		$0.00		$3,531.81		$461.41		$3,993.22		DD

		2/14/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,154.00		80		$247.49		$35.00		$2,436.49		$315.79		$2,752.28		DD

		2/28/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,376.00		80		$280.96		$0.00		$2,656.96		$333.15		$2,990.11		DD

		3/13/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$2,233.00		80		$255.37		$0.00		$2,488.37		$319.87		$2,808.24		DD

		3/27/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$238.23		$238.23

		3/27/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$1,968.54		86		$256.46		$0.00		$2,225.00		$327.56		$2,552.56		DD

		3/27/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.69		$1.69

		3/27/20		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($258.29)		($258.29)

		Totals		*Hector A. Cespedes Rivera		$63,807.54		$1,846.00		$6,957.69		$2,696.98		$56,297.21		$8,310.24		$64,607.45

		12/7/18		*Israel Avila Gasca		$720.00		40		$87.41		$0.00		$807.41		$161.49		$968.90		100106

		12/21/18		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,310.00		80		$338.82		$400.00		$2,048.82		$366.67		$2,415.49		100114

		1/4/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,054.00		80		$289.27		$440.00		$1,783.27		$339.94		$2,123.21		100120

		1/4/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,136.00		80		$180.52		$430.00		$1,746.52		$336.24		$2,082.76		100129

		1/18/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,298.00		80		$272.86		$130.00		$1,700.86		$331.64		$2,032.50		100138

		2/15/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,640.00		80		$216.91		$350.00		$2,206.91		$379.93		$2,586.84		DD

		2/15/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/27/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,280.00		0		$184.51		$0.00		$1,464.51		$138.55		$1,603.06		DD

		3/15/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,870.00		80		$382.70		$0.00		$2,252.70		$373.64		$2,626.34		DD

		3/29/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($22.11)		($22.11)

		3/29/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,554.00		74		$300.21		$0.00		$1,854.21		$323.91		$2,178.12		DD

		3/29/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,808.00		80		$377.23		$40.00		$2,225.23		$371.05		$2,596.28		DD

		4/12/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($3.78)		($3.78)

		4/26/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,838.00		80		$377.21		$10.00		$2,225.21		$367.26		$2,592.47		DD

		5/10/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,932.00		80		$398.11		$0.00		$2,330.11		$377.01		$2,707.12		DD

		5/24/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$2,151.00		80		$457.98		$22.00		$2,630.98		$404.97		$3,035.95		DD

		6/7/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,879.00		80		$384.92		$0.00		$2,263.92		$370.84		$2,634.76		DD

		6/21/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$2,320.00		80		$349.31		$0.00		$2,669.31		$408.53		$3,077.84		DD

		7/5/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,785.00		80		$199.31		$0.00		$1,984.31		$344.89		$2,329.20		DD

		7/19/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,701.00		80		$209.99		$0.00		$1,910.99		$338.06		$2,249.05		DD

		8/2/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$2,131.00		80		$303.75		($0.06)		$2,434.69		$386.73		$2,821.42		DD

		8/16/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$2,247.00		80		$331.17		$0.00		$2,578.17		$400.06		$2,978.23		DD

		8/30/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$2,194.01		80		$317.99		$0.00		$2,512.00		$393.90		$2,905.90		DD

		9/13/19		*Israel Avila Gasca		$1,850.00		80		$242.49		$0.00		$2,092.49		$354.93		$2,447.42		DD

		Totals		*Israel Avila Gasca		$35,698.01		$1,554.00		$6,202.61		$1,822.00		$43,722.62		$7,244.35		$50,966.97

		11/23/18		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,161.00		80		$142.19		$0.00		$1,303.19		$291.65		$1,594.84		DD

		12/7/18		*Ivan A. Ponce		$802.00		69		$247.45		$440.00		$1,489.45		$288.29		$1,777.74		DD

		12/21/18		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,085.00		80		$322.24		$433.00		$1,840.24		$345.68		$2,185.92		DD

		1/4/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,054.00		80		$320.48		$440.00		$1,814.48		$343.08		$2,157.56		DD

		1/4/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$136.26		0		$11.68		$0.00		$147.94		$14.88		$162.82		DD

		1/18/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,399.74		80		$166.26		$0.00		$1,566.00		$318.07		$1,884.07		DD

		2/1/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,152.00		80		$553.45		$0.00		$2,705.45		$432.71		$3,138.16		DD

		2/1/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,743.00		80		$195.71		$0.00		$1,938.71		$348.54		$2,287.25		DD

		3/1/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/1/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,596.00		80		$183.10		$0.00		$1,779.10		$328.85		$2,107.95		100164

		3/15/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,121.00		80		$540.24		$0.00		$2,661.24		$412.29		$3,073.53		DD

		3/15/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,344.00		64		$272.59		$0.00		$1,616.59		$281.36		$1,897.95		DD

		3/29/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($24.19)		($24.19)

		4/26/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$735.00		35		$106.09		$0.00		$841.09		$148.37		$989.46		DD

		5/10/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,488.00		35		$662.68		$0.00		$3,150.68		$362.93		$3,513.61		DD

		5/24/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,291.00		80		$634.07		$50.00		$2,975.07		$436.92		$3,411.99		DD

		6/7/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,933.00		80		$472.81		$30.00		$2,435.81		$386.83		$2,822.64		DD

		6/21/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,206.00		80		$325.94		$20.00		$2,551.94		$397.61		$2,949.55		DD

		7/5/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,765.00		80		$230.50		$30.00		$2,025.50		$348.72		$2,374.22		DD

		7/19/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,279.00		80		$161.46		$65.00		$1,505.46		$300.39		$1,805.85		DD

		8/2/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,123.00		80		$312.92		$49.95		$2,485.87		$391.48		$2,877.35		DD

		8/16/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,102.00		80		$308.35		$50.00		$2,460.35		$389.11		$2,849.46		DD

		8/30/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,333.00		80		$364.94		$50.00		$2,747.94		$415.82		$3,163.76		DD

		9/13/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,848.00		80		$242.07		$0.00		$2,090.07		$354.72		$2,444.79		DD

		9/27/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,870.00		80		$246.85		$0.00		$2,116.85		$357.18		$2,474.03		DD

		10/11/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$1,702.00		80		$227.66		$80.00		$2,009.66		$347.24		$2,356.90		DD

		10/25/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,008.00		80		$287.86		$50.00		$2,345.86		$378.47		$2,724.33		DD

		11/8/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$2,169.00		80		$324.20		$50.00		$2,543.20		$396.81		$2,940.01		DD

		11/22/19		*Ivan A. Ponce		$440.00		20		$49.29		$0.00		$489.29		$85.59		$574.88		DD

		Totals		*Ivan A. Ponce		$43,886.00		$1,903.00		$7,913.03		$1,838.00		$53,637.03		$8,879.40		$62,516.43

		10/11/19		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,785.00		80		$280.65		$240.00		$2,305.65		$388.56		$2,694.21		100185

		10/25/19		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,710.00		80		$211.96		$0.00		$1,921.96		$350.63		$2,272.59		100186

		11/8/19		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,958.00		80		$266.05		$0.00		$2,224.05		$380.49		$2,604.54		DD

		11/22/19		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,862.00		80		$245.11		$0.00		$2,107.11		$359.57		$2,466.68		DD

		12/6/19		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,282.00		80		$156.16		$0.00		$1,438.16		$294.16		$1,732.32		DD

		12/20/19		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,700.00		80		$209.78		$0.00		$1,909.78		$337.96		$2,247.74		DD

		1/3/20		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,662.00		80		$197.28		$0.00		$1,859.28		$344.43		$2,203.71		DD

		1/17/20		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,073.00		57		$115.07		$0.00		$1,188.07		$220.48		$1,408.55		DD

		1/31/20		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$1,786.00		80		$184.16		$0.00		$1,970.16		$337.19		$2,307.35		DD

		1/31/20		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($154.45)		($154.45)

		1/31/20		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.48		$0.48

		1/31/20		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($71.72)		($71.72)

		1/31/20		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$91.34		$91.34

		Totals		*Jesus Ramon Castro Mendoza		$14,818.00		$697.00		$1,866.22		$240.00		$16,924.22		$2,879.12		$19,803.34

		11/23/18		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$2,280.00		80		$234.88		$0.00		$2,514.88		$413.54		$2,928.42		DD

		12/7/18		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$1,190.00		70		$435.41		$350.00		$1,975.41		$339.20		$2,314.61		DD

		12/21/18		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$1,686.00		80		$842.03		$800.00		$3,328.03		$490.44		$3,818.47		DD

		1/4/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$1,641.00		80		$636.87		$350.00		$2,627.87		$424.91		$3,052.78		DD

		1/4/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$508.92		0		$95.25		$0.00		$604.17		$60.77		$664.94		DD

		1/18/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$1,191.08		80		$508.92		$500.00		$2,200.00		$381.86		$2,581.86		DD

		1/18/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$2,352.00		80		$924.32		$300.00		$3,576.32		$508.28		$4,084.60		DD

		2/1/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($15.31)		($15.31)

		2/1/19		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		Totals		*John E. Hinestroz Diaz		$10,849.00		$470.00		$3,677.65		$2,300.03		$16,826.68		$2,603.69		$19,430.37

		2/15/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,717.00		80		$193.48		$0.00		$1,910.48		$352.73		$2,263.21		100154

		3/1/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,173.00		80		$212.93		$0.00		$1,385.93		$299.98		$1,685.91		100156

		3/15/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,589.00		80		$312.87		$0.00		$1,901.87		$351.86		$2,253.73		DD

		3/15/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($12.09)		($12.09)

		3/29/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,598.00		80		$315.12		$0.00		$1,913.12		$352.33		$2,265.45		DD

		3/29/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($3.03)		($3.03)

		4/12/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,496.00		80		$289.75		$0.00		$1,785.75		$329.46		$2,115.21		DD

		4/26/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$748.00		44		$96.95		$0.00		$844.95		$166.79		$1,011.74		DD

		5/10/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,020.00		60		$166.62		$0.00		$1,186.62		$230.64		$1,417.26		DD

		5/24/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,666.00		80		$332.00		$0.00		$1,998.00		$346.16		$2,344.16		DD

		6/7/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,666.00		80		$331.98		$0.00		$1,997.98		$346.15		$2,344.13		DD

		6/21/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$2,201.00		80		$319.74		$0.00		$2,520.74		$394.71		$2,915.45		DD

		7/5/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$2,014.00		80		$218.96		$0.00		$2,232.96		$367.98		$2,600.94		DD

		7/19/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,632.00		80		$194.95		$0.00		$1,826.95		$330.27		$2,157.22		DD

		8/2/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$646.00		80		$101.57		($0.03)		$747.54		$229.99		$977.53		100180

		8/16/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$918.00		51		$108.19		$0.00		$1,026.19		$197.67		$1,223.86		DD

		8/30/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$2,178.00		80		$314.02		$0.00		$2,492.02		$392.06		$2,884.08		DD

		9/13/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,602.00		80		$188.41		$0.00		$1,790.41		$326.86		$2,117.27		DD

		9/27/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$2,268.00		80		$336.40		$0.00		$2,604.40		$402.50		$3,006.90		DD

		10/11/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$2,241.00		80		$329.66		$0.00		$2,570.66		$399.34		$2,970.00		DD

		10/25/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,638.00		80		$196.26		$0.00		$1,834.26		$330.95		$2,165.21		DD

		11/8/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$2,169.00		80		$312.06		$0.00		$2,481.06		$391.03		$2,872.09		DD

		11/22/19		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$1,531.00		80		$177.52		$0.00		$1,708.52		$319.27		$2,027.79		DD

		Totals		*JOSE R. VEGA HERNANDEZ		$33,711.00		$1,595.00		$5,049.41		$0.00		$38,760.41		$6,843.61		$45,604.02

		11/8/19		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$1,044.00		80		$135.72		$0.00		$1,179.72		$277.22		$1,456.94		100188

		11/22/19		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$2,376.00		80		$399.00		$144.00		$2,919.00		$449.22		$3,368.22		100189

		12/6/19		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$1,845.00		80		$241.41		$0.00		$2,086.41		$366.89		$2,453.30		DD

		12/20/19		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$1,530.00		80		$177.43		$0.00		$1,707.43		$324.05		$2,031.48		DD

		1/3/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$612.00		34		$72.13		$0.00		$684.13		$135.89		$820.02		DD

		1/31/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$2,428.00		72		$296.99		$12.00		$2,736.99		$385.80		$3,122.79		DD

		1/31/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($75.44)		($75.44)

		2/14/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$1,895.00		80		$201.11		$35.00		$2,131.11		$303.30		$2,434.41		DD

		2/28/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$1,710.00		80		$168.82		$0.00		$1,878.82		$281.54		$2,160.36		DD

		3/13/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$1,700.00		80		$168.02		$0.00		$1,868.02		$271.77		$2,139.79		DD

		3/27/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$710.54		35		$76.96		$0.00		$787.50		$122.34		$909.84		DD

		3/27/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($140.63)		($140.63)

		3/27/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.92		$0.92

		3/27/20		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$160.36		$160.36

		Totals		*Josue F. Osuna Tallabas		$15,850.54		$701.00		$1,937.59		$191.00		$17,979.13		$2,863.23		$20,842.36

		3/1/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,100.00		80		$226.34		$0.00		$2,326.34		$394.57		$2,720.91		100167

		3/15/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,300.00		80		$537.96		$0.00		$2,837.96		$446.05		$3,284.01		100163

		3/15/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,310.00		80		$540.43		$0.00		$2,850.43		$441.19		$3,291.62		100168

		3/29/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($13.62)		($13.62)

		3/29/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,310.00		80		$540.44		$0.00		$2,850.44		$430.19		$3,280.63		DD

		4/12/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($4.84)		($4.84)

		4/26/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,150.00		80		$500.68		$0.00		$2,650.68		$406.79		$3,057.47		DD

		5/10/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,570.00		80		$605.03		$0.00		$3,175.03		$455.50		$3,630.53		DD

		5/24/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,570.00		80		$605.04		$0.00		$3,175.04		$455.52		$3,630.56		DD

		6/7/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,060.00		80		$478.29		$0.00		$2,538.29		$396.34		$2,934.63		DD

		6/21/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$3,020.00		80		$752.02		$0.00		$3,772.02		$510.97		$4,282.99		DD

		7/5/19		*Lucas M. Ayala		$2,130.00		80		$228.91		$0.00		$2,358.91		$379.67		$2,738.58		DD

		Totals		*Lucas M. Ayala		$23,520.00		$800.00		$5,015.11		$0.03		$28,535.14		$4,298.33		$32,833.47

		2/15/19		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$2,020.00		80		$219.48		$0.00		$2,239.48		$385.84		$2,625.32		100151

		3/1/19		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$1,340.00		80		$198.89		$440.00		$1,978.89		$359.62		$2,338.51		100161

		3/15/19		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$1,795.00		80		$433.13		$75.00		$2,303.13		$392.22		$2,695.35		100165

		3/29/19		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($14.74)		($14.74)

		3/29/19		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$1,320.00		80		$386.59		$440.00		$2,146.59		$366.49		$2,513.08		100170

		6/7/19		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$1,449.00		69		$302.00		$0.00		$1,751.00		$301.13		$2,052.13		100177

		6/21/19		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$1,500.00		75		$318.65		$0.00		$1,818.65		$319.45		$2,138.10		100178

		Totals		*LUIS A. GARCIA		$9,424.00		$464.00		$1,858.73		$955.01		$12,237.74		$2,110.01		$14,347.75

		12/6/19		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$664.00		80		$135.72		$380.00		$1,179.72		$277.22		$1,456.94		DD

		12/20/19		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$1,621.00		80		$229.63		$170.00		$2,020.63		$360.38		$2,381.01		DD

		1/3/20		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$2,593.00		80		$411.62		$0.00		$3,004.62		$457.70		$3,462.32		DD

		1/17/20		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$1,502.00		80		$169.09		$100.00		$1,771.09		$318.98		$2,090.07		DD

		1/31/20		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$1,777.00		80		$191.49		$50.00		$2,018.49		$341.22		$2,359.71		DD

		2/14/20		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($227.76)		($227.76)

		2/14/20		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$1,476.00		80		$159.14		$0.00		$1,635.14		$301.08		$1,936.22		100194

		2/14/20		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.78		$0.78

		2/14/20		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($120.23)		($120.23)

		2/14/20		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$134.69		$134.69

		Totals		*Luis G. Fernandez Rosas		$9,633.00		$480.00		$1,296.69		$700.00		$11,629.69		$1,844.06		$13,473.75

		11/23/18		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$1,824.00		80		$197.11		$0.00		$2,021.11		$363.87		$2,384.98		DD

		12/7/18		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$1,040.00		74		$254.76		$440.00		$1,734.76		$323.01		$2,057.77		DD

		12/21/18		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$1,620.00		80		$488.61		$800.00		$2,908.61		$453.14		$3,361.75		DD

		1/4/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$1,310.00		80		$328.67		$440.00		$2,078.67		$369.66		$2,448.33		DD

		1/4/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$1,151.30		80		$378.70		$800.00		$2,330.00		$394.95		$2,724.95		DD

		1/18/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$378.70		0		$32.49		$0.00		$411.19		$41.36		$452.55		DD

		1/18/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$1,658.00		80		$495.16		$762.00		$2,915.16		$449.39		$3,364.55		DD

		2/15/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($15.88)		($15.88)

		2/15/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$1,440.00		72		$165.10		$0.00		$1,605.10		$296.32		$1,901.42		DD

		Totals		*Martin M. Ayala Ochoa		$10,422.00		$546.00		$2,340.59		$3,242.01		$16,004.60		$2,675.82		$18,680.42

		2/1/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$620.00		36.5		$74.26		$0.00		$694.26		$143.09		$837.35		100147

		2/15/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,555.00		80		$179.58		$0.00		$1,734.58		$335.04		$2,069.62		100155

		3/1/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,490.00		80		$177.43		$40.00		$1,707.43		$332.31		$2,039.74		100158

		3/15/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,389.00		80		$312.86		$200.00		$1,901.86		$351.85		$2,253.71		100164

		3/15/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$629.00		37		$75.32		$0.00		$704.32		$145.11		$849.43		100169

		3/29/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($11.46)		($11.46)

		4/26/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,584.00		80		$311.62		$0.00		$1,895.62		$338.19		$2,233.81		DD

		5/10/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,656.00		80		$329.51		$0.00		$1,985.51		$344.99		$2,330.50		DD

		5/24/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,863.00		80		$380.96		$0.00		$2,243.96		$369.02		$2,612.98		DD

		6/7/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,611.00		80		$318.33		$0.00		$1,929.33		$339.77		$2,269.10		DD

		6/21/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,836.00		80		$239.44		$0.00		$2,075.44		$353.35		$2,428.79		DD

		7/5/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,615.00		80		$191.25		$0.00		$1,806.25		$328.34		$2,134.59		DD

		7/19/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,458.00		80		$171.24		$0.00		$1,629.24		$311.89		$1,941.13		DD

		8/2/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,809.00		80		$233.56		($0.01)		$2,042.55		$350.30		$2,392.85		DD

		8/16/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,948.00		80		$263.87		$0.00		$2,211.87		$366.03		$2,577.90		DD

		8/30/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$2,126.00		80		$309.23		$30.00		$2,465.23		$389.55		$2,854.78		DD

		9/13/19		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$1,653.00		80		$199.54		$0.00		$1,852.54		$332.64		$2,185.18		DD

		Totals		*MATIAS I. CATALAN TORO		$24,842.00		$1,193.50		$3,767.99		$270.00		$28,879.99		$5,120.01		$34,000.00

		2/15/19		*MIGUEL A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA		$1,438.00		80		$186.70		$200.00		$1,824.70		$344.10		$2,168.80		100149

		3/1/19		*MIGUEL A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/1/19		*MIGUEL A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA		$1,252.00		80		$191.34		$440.00		$1,883.34		$350.01		$2,233.35		100157

		3/15/19		*MIGUEL A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA		$1,313.00		80		$503.88		$604.00		$2,420.88		$404.07		$2,824.95		DD

		3/15/19		*MIGUEL A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*MIGUEL A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($10.61)		($10.61)

		3/29/19		*MIGUEL A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA		$100.00		5.5		$11.75		$0.00		$111.75		$22.28		$134.03		DD

		Totals		*MIGUEL A. ARVIZU ESCAMILLA		$4,103.00		$245.50		$893.65		$1,244.02		$6,240.67		$1,109.85		$7,350.52

		12/7/18		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$720.00		40		$104.69		$0.00		$824.69		$163.23		$987.92		100109

		12/21/18		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,328.00		80		$373.59		$400.00		$2,101.59		$371.96		$2,473.55		100117

		1/4/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,144.00		80		$320.48		$350.00		$1,814.48		$343.08		$2,157.56		100123

		1/4/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,136.00		80		$180.51		$430.00		$1,746.51		$336.23		$2,082.74		100132

		1/18/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,648.00		80		$358.75		$0.00		$2,006.75		$362.42		$2,369.17		100141

		2/15/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,911.00		80		$210.13		$0.00		$2,121.13		$369.79		$2,490.92		DD

		2/27/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,687.00		0		$315.38		$0.00		$2,002.38		$189.42		$2,191.80		DD

		3/15/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$2,236.00		80		$589.30		$0.00		$2,825.30		$427.83		$3,253.13		DD

		3/15/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($24.66)		($24.66)

		3/29/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,288.00		80		$356.26		$350.00		$1,994.26		$349.19		$2,343.45		DD

		4/12/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($3.86)		($3.86)

		4/12/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,808.00		80		$423.76		$40.00		$2,271.76		$375.44		$2,647.20		DD

		4/26/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,488.00		80		$423.76		$360.00		$2,271.76		$371.59		$2,643.35		DD

		5/10/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,806.00		80		$405.84		$0.00		$2,211.84		$366.01		$2,577.85		DD

		5/24/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,941.00		80		$634.08		$400.00		$2,975.08		$436.93		$3,412.01		DD

		6/7/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,933.00		80		$472.81		$30.00		$2,435.81		$386.83		$2,822.64		DD

		6/21/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,877.00		80		$331.15		$370.00		$2,578.15		$400.05		$2,978.20		DD

		7/5/19		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$1,765.00		80		$200.17		$30.00		$1,995.17		$345.89		$2,341.06		DD

		Totals		*Ramon A. Duenas Gomez		$25,716.00		$1,160.00		$5,700.64		$2,760.02		$34,176.66		$5,567.37		$39,744.03

		11/23/18		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,929.00		80		$288.64		$0.00		$3,217.64		$484.24		$3,701.88		DD

		12/7/18		*Ruben Gonzalez		$1,890.00		70		$423.91		$0.00		$2,313.91		$373.24		$2,687.15		DD

		12/21/18		*Ruben Gonzalez		$3,051.00		80		$763.37		$0.00		$3,814.37		$530.19		$4,344.56		DD

		1/4/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,242.00		47		$501.65		$0.00		$2,743.65		$370.32		$3,113.97		DD

		1/4/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,095.00		80		$268.82		$500.00		$2,863.82		$448.63		$3,312.45		100135

		2/1/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,980.00		80		$948.28		$500.00		$4,428.28		$587.83		$5,016.11		100143

		2/1/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		($0.02)		$0.02		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,943.00		80		$298.68		$0.00		$3,241.68		$467.20		$3,708.88		DD

		2/15/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/1/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/1/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$3,088.00		80		$354.04		$500.00		$3,942.04		$533.46		$4,475.50		100163

		3/15/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$3,074.00		80		$775.06		$0.00		$3,849.06		$524.66		$4,373.72		DD

		3/29/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$3,080.00		80		$777.63		$0.00		$3,857.63		$525.47		$4,383.10		DD

		3/29/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($42.38)		($42.38)

		4/12/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$3,088.00		80		$781.03		$0.00		$3,869.03		$526.55		$4,395.58		DD

		4/12/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($6.58)		($6.58)

		4/26/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,184.00		80		$618.45		$440.00		$3,242.45		$461.77		$3,704.22		DD

		5/10/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,508.00		80		$589.63		$0.00		$3,097.63		$448.31		$3,545.94		DD

		5/24/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,054.00		80		$586.14		$440.00		$3,080.14		$446.69		$3,526.83		DD

		6/7/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,581.00		80		$607.77		$0.00		$3,188.77		$456.77		$3,645.54		DD

		6/21/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$3,411.00		80		$734.69		$460.00		$4,605.69		$588.41		$5,194.10		DD

		7/5/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,116.00		74		$226.84		$30.00		$2,372.84		$368.94		$2,741.78		DD

		7/19/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$1,921.00		68		$264.38		$65.00		$2,250.38		$331.85		$2,582.23		DD

		8/2/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,584.00		80		$536.64		$489.92		$3,610.56		$436.75		$4,047.31		DD

		8/16/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,748.00		80		$468.07		$50.00		$3,266.07		$410.39		$3,676.46		DD

		8/30/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,961.00		80		$630.35		$490.00		$4,081.35		$472.77		$4,554.12		DD

		9/13/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,726.00		80		$450.19		$0.00		$3,176.19		$403.52		$3,579.71		DD

		9/27/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,982.00		80		$623.12		$440.00		$4,045.12		$469.99		$4,515.11		DD

		10/11/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$3,409.00		80		$644.75		$100.00		$4,153.75		$478.30		$4,632.05		DD

		10/25/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,715.00		80		$457.40		$40.00		$3,212.40		$406.29		$3,618.69		DD

		11/8/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$2,262.00		80		$334.87		$0.00		$2,596.87		$359.19		$2,956.06		DD

		12/6/19		*Ruben Gonzalez		$158.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$158.00		$0.00		$158.00		DD

		Totals		*Ruben Gonzalez		$69,780.00		$2,019.00		$13,954.32		$4,545.00		$88,279.32		$11,862.77		$100,142.09

		4/27/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$781.23		80		$218.77		$0.00		$1,000.00		$421.67		$1,421.67		DD

		5/11/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$781.23		80		$218.77		$0.00		$1,000.00		$421.67		$1,421.67		DD

		5/25/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$100.60		$1,100.60		DD

		6/7/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$781.23		80		$218.77		$0.00		$1,000.00		$421.67		$1,421.67		DD

		6/7/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($1,218.15)		($1,218.15)

		6/22/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$100.60		$1,100.60		DD

		7/6/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$100.60		$1,100.60		DD

		7/20/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$100.60		$1,100.60		DD

		8/3/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$94.60		$1,094.60		DD

		8/17/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$94.60		$1,094.60		DD

		8/31/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$94.60		$1,094.60		DD

		9/14/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$94.60		$1,094.60		DD

		9/28/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$94.60		$1,094.60		DD

		10/12/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$94.60		$1,094.60		DD

		10/26/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$94.60		$1,094.60		DD

		11/9/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$454.50		$1,454.50		DD

		11/23/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		12/7/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		12/21/18		Claudia L. Penunuri		$866.21		80		$133.79		$0.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		1/4/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		1/18/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		2/1/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		2/15/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		3/1/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		3/15/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		3/29/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		4/12/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		4/26/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		5/10/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		5/24/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$864.74		80		$135.26		$0.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		6/7/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$639.74		80		$260.26		$100.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		6/21/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$639.74		80		$260.26		$100.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		7/19/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		8/2/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		8/16/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		8/30/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		9/13/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		9/27/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		10/11/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		10/25/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		11/8/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		11/22/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		12/6/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		12/20/19		Claudia L. Penunuri		$714.74		80		$235.26		$50.00		$1,000.00		$76.50		$1,076.50		DD

		1/3/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$715.80		80		$234.20		$50.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		1/17/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$715.80		80		$234.20		$50.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		1/31/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$715.80		80		$234.20		$50.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		2/14/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$715.80		80		$234.20		$50.00		$1,000.00		$136.50		$1,136.50		DD

		2/28/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$1,732.96		80		$151.66		$0.00		$1,884.62		$257.26		$2,141.88		DD

		3/13/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$1,278.71		80		$105.91		$0.00		$1,384.62		$172.83		$1,557.45		DD

		3/27/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$1,278.69		80		$105.93		$0.00		$1,384.62		$105.93		$1,490.55		DD

		4/10/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$1,278.69		80		$105.93		$0.00		$1,384.62		$105.93		$1,490.55		DD

		4/24/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$1,278.71		80		$105.91		$0.00		$1,384.62		$105.91		$1,490.53		DD

		5/8/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$1,278.69		80		$105.93		$0.00		$1,384.62		$105.93		$1,490.55		DD

		5/22/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$1,278.69		80		$105.93		$0.00		$1,384.62		$105.93		$1,490.55		DD

		6/5/20		Claudia L. Penunuri		$1,278.70		80		$105.92		$0.00		$1,384.62		$105.92		$1,490.54		DD

		Totals		Claudia L. Penunuri		$48,252.38		$4,400.00		$9,324.58		$1,000.00		$58,576.96		$5,739.60		$64,316.56

		2/28/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$575.00		23		$55.12		$0.00		$630.12		$89.20		$719.32		100199

		3/13/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$1,977.00		80		$282.98		$135.00		$2,394.98		$321.28		$2,716.26		100203

		3/27/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.50		$0.50

		3/27/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($76.47)		($76.47)

		3/27/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$1,991.09		81.5		$353.04		$0.00		$2,344.13		$346.36		$2,690.49		100206

		3/27/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$77.65		$77.65

		4/10/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($17.33)		($17.33)

		4/10/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$1,033.07		40		$106.93		$0.00		$1,140.00		$168.96		$1,308.96		100209

		4/10/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.11		$0.11

		4/10/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/24/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$500.00		19.36		$51.76		$0.00		$551.76		$81.59		$633.35		100212

		5/8/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$700.04		27.11		$72.45		$0.00		$772.49		$111.25		$883.74		100216

		5/22/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$1,407.54		54.5		$145.71		$0.00		$1,553.25		$220.39		$1,773.64		100219

		6/5/20		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$3,258.70		109.5		$472.76		$0.00		$3,731.46		$475.45		$4,206.91		100222

		Totals		Gabriel Rios Ortiz		$11,442.44		$434.97		$1,540.75		$135.00		$13,118.19		$1,815.78		$14,933.97

		11/23/18		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,632.00		80		$264.03		$0.00		$2,896.03		$451.88		$3,347.91		100101

		12/7/18		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,265.00		77.5		$312.10		$440.00		$2,017.10		$358.44		$2,375.54		100104

		12/21/18		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,884.00		80		$553.18		$800.00		$3,237.18		$479.30		$3,716.48		100118

		1/4/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,639.00		80		$410.42		$440.00		$2,489.42		$410.98		$2,900.40		100125

		1/18/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,796.00		80		$268.92		$800.00		$2,864.92		$448.75		$3,313.67		100133

		1/18/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,871.00		80		$607.23		$0.00		$3,478.23		$499.45		$3,977.68		100145

		2/15/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,409.00		80		$252.87		$0.00		$2,661.87		$412.36		$3,074.23		100153

		2/15/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/1/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,145.00		80		$267.97		$440.00		$2,852.97		$430.43		$3,283.40		100165

		3/1/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,750.00		80		$577.16		$0.00		$3,327.16		$475.28		$3,802.44		100166

		3/29/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($35.10)		($35.10)

		3/29/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,024.00		80		$506.10		$440.00		$2,970.10		$441.52		$3,411.62		100171

		3/29/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($5.16)		($5.16)

		4/12/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,024.00		80		$396.76		$0.00		$2,420.76		$389.54		$2,810.30		DD

		4/12/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$550.00		25		$61.62		$0.00		$611.62		$108.03		$719.65		100174

		4/12/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/26/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,576.00		80		$394.75		$440.00		$2,410.75		$384.49		$2,795.24		DD

		5/10/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,142.00		80		$426.08		$0.00		$2,568.08		$399.11		$2,967.19		DD

		5/24/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,925.00		80		$481.49		$440.00		$2,846.49		$424.98		$3,271.47		DD

		6/7/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,121.00		80		$333.90		$650.00		$2,104.90		$356.09		$2,460.99		DD

		6/21/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,506.00		80		$417.89		$1,090.00		$3,013.89		$440.53		$3,454.42		DD

		7/5/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$4,843.00		80		$247.18		$0.00		$5,090.18		$401.16		$5,491.34		DD

		7/19/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,002.00		80		$275.65		$0.00		$2,277.65		$372.15		$2,649.80		DD

		8/2/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$198.00		49		$120.76		$879.93		$1,198.69		$209.69		$1,408.38		DD

		8/16/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,762.00		80		$409.43		$800.00		$2,971.43		$436.57		$3,408.00		DD

		8/16/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$400.00		0		$34.32		$0.00		$434.32		$40.35		$474.67		100182

		8/30/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,160.00		80		$617.67		$1,240.00		$4,017.67		$528.69		$4,546.36		DD

		9/13/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,509.00		80		$371.41		$900.00		$2,780.41		$373.24		$3,153.65		DD

		9/27/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$3,171.00		80		$670.09		$440.00		$4,281.09		$488.04		$4,769.13		DD

		10/11/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$3,749.00		80		$704.40		$0.00		$4,453.40		$501.23		$4,954.63		DD

		10/25/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,541.00		80		$404.21		$0.00		$2,945.21		$385.85		$3,331.06		DD

		11/8/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$829.00		80		$117.26		$0.00		$946.26		$232.92		$1,179.18		DD

		11/22/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$3,277.00		80		$587.11		$0.00		$3,864.11		$456.15		$4,320.26		DD

		12/6/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,438.00		80		$378.62		$0.00		$2,816.62		$376.01		$3,192.63		DD

		12/17/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$3,000.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$3,000.00		$0.00		$3,000.00		100193

		12/20/19		Gerardo . Valencia		$3,500.00		80		$489.95		$0.00		$3,989.95		$418.81		$4,408.76		DD

		1/3/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,937.00		80		$410.12		$650.00		$2,997.12		$456.95		$3,454.07		DD

		1/17/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,633.00		80		$337.66		$0.00		$2,970.66		$420.96		$3,391.62		DD

		1/31/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$3,307.00		80		$471.80		$0.00		$3,778.80		$475.97		$4,254.77		DD

		1/31/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		2/14/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$3,197.00		80		$441.09		$0.00		$3,638.09		$409.42		$4,047.51		DD

		2/28/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$3,312.00		80		$463.98		$0.00		$3,775.98		$420.11		$4,196.09		DD

		3/13/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,403.00		80		$285.80		$0.00		$2,688.80		$335.66		$3,024.46		DD

		3/27/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$2.08		$2.08

		3/27/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($316.36)		($316.36)

		3/27/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$242.44		$242.44

		3/27/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,658.55		96		$401.45		$0.00		$3,060.00		$410.24		$3,470.24		DD

		4/10/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.11		$0.11

		4/10/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,033.07		40		$106.93		$0.00		$1,140.00		$162.12		$1,302.12		DD

		4/10/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($17.33)		($17.33)

		4/24/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$500.00		19.36		$51.76		$0.00		$551.76		$78.28		$630.04		DD

		5/8/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$700.03		27.11		$72.46		$0.00		$772.49		$109.60		$882.09		DD

		5/22/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$1,786.35		80		$213.65		$0.00		$2,000.00		$301.69		$2,301.69		DD

		6/5/20		Gerardo . Valencia		$2,456.26		86.5		$316.62		$0.00		$2,772.88		$356.97		$3,129.85		DD

		Totals		Gerardo . Valencia		$93,561.26		$3,140.47		$15,533.78		$10,890.00		$119,985.04		$15,786.69		$135,771.73

		12/20/19		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$1,760.00		80		$273.13		$50.00		$2,083.13		$366.57		$2,449.70		DD

		1/3/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$1,740.00		80		$254.58		$0.00		$1,994.58		$357.80		$2,352.38		DD

		1/17/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$1,820.00		80		$241.23		$100.00		$2,161.23		$350.43		$2,511.66		DD

		1/31/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$1,891.00		80		$241.42		$30.00		$2,162.42		$350.53		$2,512.95		DD

		1/31/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		2/14/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$2,045.00		80		$263.73		$50.00		$2,358.73		$314.03		$2,672.76		DD

		2/28/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$2,071.00		80		$268.40		$50.00		$2,389.40		$309.46		$2,698.86		DD

		2/28/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$2,000.00		0		$213.06		$0.00		$2,213.06		$185.80		$2,398.86		DD

		3/13/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$1,934.00		80		$243.87		$50.00		$2,227.87		$296.74		$2,524.61		DD

		3/27/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$1,839.73		84		$275.27		$35.00		$2,150.00		$317.77		$2,467.77		DD

		3/27/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.63		$1.63

		3/27/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($246.02)		($246.02)

		3/27/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$237.39		$237.39

		4/10/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$904.13		40		$95.87		$0.00		$1,000.00		$149.11		$1,149.11		DD

		4/10/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($15.20)		($15.20)

		4/10/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.10		$0.10

		4/10/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/24/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$500.22		22.13		$53.03		$0.00		$553.25		$83.45		$636.70		DD

		5/8/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$700.05		30.97		$74.23		$0.00		$774.28		$116.80		$891.08		DD

		5/22/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$904.13		40		$95.87		$0.00		$1,000.00		$150.84		$1,150.84		DD

		6/5/20		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$1,592.45		72		$207.55		$0.00		$1,800.00		$271.52		$2,071.52		DD

		Totals		Gerardo Guzman Barragan		$21,701.71		$849.10		$2,801.24		$365.00		$24,867.95		$3,444.77		$28,312.72

		2/14/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$1,354.00		80		$248.28		$50.00		$1,652.28		$251.27		$1,903.55		DD

		2/28/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$1,795.00		80		$336.05		$50.00		$2,181.05		$294.89		$2,475.94		DD

		3/13/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$1,606.00		80		$298.43		$50.00		$1,954.43		$276.20		$2,230.63		DD

		3/27/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($101.59)		($101.59)

		3/27/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$1,453.68		84.5		$324.70		$0.00		$1,778.38		$294.63		$2,073.01		DD

		3/27/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.67		$0.67

		3/27/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$136.58		$136.58

		4/10/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($12.46)		($12.46)

		4/10/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.09		$0.09

		4/10/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$704.05		40		$115.95		$0.00		$820.00		$134.28		$954.28		DD

		4/10/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/24/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$500.10		27.57		$65.09		$0.00		$565.19		$94.32		$659.51		DD

		5/8/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$700.00		39.75		$114.94		$0.00		$814.94		$135.99		$950.93		DD

		5/22/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$1,344.75		80		$295.25		$0.00		$1,640.00		$273.68		$1,913.68		DD

		6/5/20		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$1,878.33		96.5		$478.55		$0.00		$2,356.88		$359.59		$2,716.47		DD

		Totals		Javier A. Alfaro Perez		$11,335.91		$608.32		$2,277.24		$150.00		$13,763.15		$2,154.98		$15,918.13

		2/15/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,591.00		80		$199.83		$200.00		$1,990.83		$360.82		$2,351.65		100150

		3/1/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,140.00		80		$185.15		$480.00		$1,805.15		$342.14		$2,147.29		100160

		3/15/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,018.00		80		$287.83		$665.00		$1,970.83		$358.80		$2,329.63		DD

		3/29/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,198.00		80		$276.64		$440.00		$1,914.64		$349.06		$2,263.70		DD

		3/29/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($13.06)		($13.06)

		3/29/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,053.00		80		$265.47		$540.00		$1,858.47		$336.36		$2,194.83		DD

		4/12/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($3.16)		($3.16)

		4/12/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/26/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,134.00		80		$263.20		$450.00		$1,847.20		$332.13		$2,179.33		DD

		5/10/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,880.00		80		$336.78		$0.00		$2,216.78		$366.48		$2,583.26		DD

		5/24/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,698.00		80		$406.34		$462.00		$2,566.34		$398.95		$2,965.29		DD

		6/7/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,790.00		80		$314.40		$0.00		$2,104.40		$356.04		$2,460.44		DD

		6/21/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,390.00		80		$336.87		$880.00		$2,606.87		$402.71		$3,009.58		DD

		7/5/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,680.00		80		$190.30		$0.00		$1,870.30		$334.29		$2,204.59		DD

		7/19/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,650.00		80		$198.88		$0.00		$1,848.88		$332.30		$2,181.18		DD

		8/2/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,010.00		80		$251.22		$879.98		$2,141.20		$359.47		$2,500.67		DD

		8/16/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,200.00		80		$319.46		$0.00		$2,519.46		$394.58		$2,914.04		DD

		8/30/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$930.00		80		$233.77		$880.00		$2,043.77		$350.41		$2,394.18		DD

		9/13/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,960.00		80		$266.48		$0.00		$2,226.48		$367.39		$2,593.87		DD

		9/27/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,435.00		80		$487.21		$440.00		$3,362.21		$472.89		$3,835.10		DD

		10/11/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,829.00		80		$475.77		$0.00		$3,304.77		$467.55		$3,772.32		DD

		10/25/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,495.00		80		$392.78		$0.00		$2,887.78		$428.81		$3,316.59		DD

		11/8/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,852.00		80		$481.50		$0.00		$3,333.50		$470.23		$3,803.73		DD

		11/22/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,219.00		80		$324.19		$0.00		$2,543.19		$396.80		$2,939.99		DD

		12/6/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,805.00		80		$232.69		$0.00		$2,037.69		$330.16		$2,367.85		DD

		12/20/19		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,323.00		80		$350.03		$0.00		$2,673.03		$365.02		$3,038.05		DD

		1/3/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,070.00		80		$286.26		$0.00		$2,356.26		$393.58		$2,749.84		DD

		1/17/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,081.00		80		$236.96		$0.00		$2,317.96		$366.34		$2,684.30		DD

		1/31/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,334.00		80		$284.42		$12.00		$2,630.42		$392.57		$3,022.99		DD

		1/31/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		2/14/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,219.00		80		$259.12		$35.00		$2,513.12		$323.11		$2,836.23		DD

		2/28/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,081.00		80		$228.14		$0.00		$2,309.14		$305.75		$2,614.89		DD

		3/13/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$2,325.00		80		$271.84		$0.00		$2,596.84		$328.42		$2,925.26		DD

		3/27/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($237.26)		($237.26)

		3/27/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$3,624.32		76		$241.68		$0.00		$3,866.00		$308.01		$4,174.01		DD

		3/27/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$234.02		$234.02

		3/27/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.55		$1.55

		4/10/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($17.33)		($17.33)

		4/10/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,033.07		40		$106.93		$0.00		$1,140.00		$162.12		$1,302.12		DD

		4/10/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.11		$0.11

		4/10/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/24/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$500.00		19.36		$51.76		$0.00		$551.76		$78.28		$630.04		DD

		5/8/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$700.11		27.11		$72.47		$0.00		$772.58		$109.61		$882.19		DD

		5/22/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,033.07		40		$106.93		$0.00		$1,140.00		$161.73		$1,301.73		DD

		6/5/20		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$1,855.39		73		$225.11		$0.00		$2,080.50		$295.16		$2,375.66		DD

		Totals		JOSE A. ESTRADA PARRA		$62,135.96		$2,595.47		$9,448.39		$6,364.00		$77,948.35		$11,708.96		$89,657.31

		9/13/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$819.00		45		$96.23		$0.00		$915.23		$180.81		$1,096.04		100183

		9/16/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,098.00		50		$123.07		$0.00		$1,221.07		$221.11		$1,442.18		100184

		9/27/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$2,962.00		80		$618.16		$440.00		$4,020.16		$558.12		$4,578.28		DD

		10/11/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$2,835.00		80		$477.27		$0.00		$3,312.27		$473.31		$3,785.58		DD

		10/25/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,944.00		80		$262.98		$0.00		$2,206.98		$365.56		$2,572.54		DD

		11/8/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$2,322.00		80		$349.80		$0.00		$2,671.80		$408.76		$3,080.56		DD

		11/22/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$2,025.00		80		$280.65		$0.00		$2,305.65		$374.73		$2,680.38		DD

		12/6/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,880.00		80		$249.04		$0.00		$2,129.04		$358.33		$2,487.37		DD

		12/20/19		Jose Acosta Caballero		$2,110.00		80		$299.20		$0.00		$2,409.20		$384.36		$2,793.56		DD

		1/3/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,750.00		80		$216.47		$0.00		$1,966.47		$355.02		$2,321.49		DD

		1/17/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,730.00		80		$179.22		$0.00		$1,909.22		$331.64		$2,240.86		DD

		1/31/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		1/31/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$2,100.00		80		$240.37		$0.00		$2,340.37		$368.23		$2,708.60		DD

		2/14/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,940.00		80		$202.91		$0.00		$2,142.91		$299.87		$2,442.78		DD

		2/28/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,880.00		80		$192.17		$0.00		$2,072.17		$287.08		$2,359.25		DD

		3/13/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,870.00		80		$190.37		$0.00		$2,060.37		$286.13		$2,346.50		DD

		3/27/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$238.23		$238.23

		3/27/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.35		$1.35

		3/27/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($205.03)		($205.03)

		3/27/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$1,785.86		86		$216.64		$0.00		$2,002.50		$306.89		$2,309.39		DD

		4/10/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$812.03		40		$87.97		$0.00		$900.00		$139.82		$1,039.82		DD

		4/10/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($13.68)		($13.68)

		4/10/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.09		$0.09

		4/24/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$500.01		24.63		$54.17		$0.00		$554.18		$88.10		$642.28		DD

		5/8/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$700.40		34.5		$75.85		$0.00		$776.25		$123.38		$899.63		DD

		5/22/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$300.00		14.78		$32.50		$0.00		$332.50		$52.86		$385.36		DD

		6/5/20		Jose Acosta Caballero		$649.63		32		$70.37		$0.00		$720.00		$114.46		$834.46		DD

		Totals		Jose Acosta Caballero		$34,012.93		$1,366.91		$4,515.41		$440.00		$38,968.34		$5,945.55		$44,913.89

		2/28/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$1,665.00		80		$165.25		$0.00		$1,830.25		$277.08		$2,107.33		100197

		3/13/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$1,656.00		80		$164.54		$0.00		$1,820.54		$276.20		$2,096.74		100201

		3/27/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($77.75)		($77.75)

		3/27/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$1,616.21		85		$177.54		$0.00		$1,793.75		$296.84		$2,090.59		100204

		3/27/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$103.12		$103.12

		3/27/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.51		$0.51

		4/10/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($12.46)		($12.46)

		4/10/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$738.36		40		$81.64		$0.00		$820.00		$137.30		$957.30		100207

		4/10/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.09		$0.09

		4/24/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$500.04		27.09		$55.31		$0.00		$555.35		$96.03		$651.38		100210

		5/8/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$700.06		37.92		$77.40		$0.00		$777.46		$132.78		$910.24		100214

		5/22/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$1,476.72		80		$163.28		$0.00		$1,640.00		$273.68		$1,913.68		100217

		6/5/20		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$2,114.66		96		$225.34		$0.00		$2,340.00		$357.36		$2,697.36		100220

		Totals		Jose R. Alvarez Rodriguez		$10,467.05		$526.01		$1,110.30		$0.00		$11,577.35		$1,877.62		$13,454.97

		2/14/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$612.00		34		$76.18		$0.00		$688.18		$108.29		$796.47		100195

		2/28/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$1,669.00		80		$310.98		$50.00		$2,029.98		$282.44		$2,312.42		100198

		3/13/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$1,651.00		80		$307.38		$50.00		$2,008.38		$280.64		$2,289.02		DD

		3/27/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($88.09)		($88.09)

		3/27/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.59		$0.59

		3/27/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$1,406.57		84		$321.43		$35.00		$1,763.00		$292.41		$2,055.41		DD

		3/27/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$117.01		$117.01

		4/10/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.09		$0.09

		4/10/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($12.46)		($12.46)

		4/10/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$738.36		40		$81.64		$0.00		$820.00		$137.30		$957.30		DD

		4/10/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/24/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$500.06		27.09		$55.29		$0.00		$555.35		$94.99		$650.34		DD

		5/8/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$700.06		37.92		$77.40		$0.00		$777.46		$129.72		$907.18		DD

		5/22/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$738.36		40		$81.64		$0.00		$820.00		$136.84		$956.84		DD

		6/5/20		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$1,471.80		72.5		$159.45		$0.00		$1,631.25		$259.31		$1,890.56		DD

		Totals		Julio C. Caballero Pacheco		$9,487.21		$495.51		$1,471.39		$135.00		$11,093.60		$1,755.92		$12,849.52

		9/27/19		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$1,079.00		80		$190.38		$532.00		$1,801.38		$338.70		$2,140.08		DD

		10/11/19		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$1,676.00		80		$278.69		$340.00		$2,294.69		$387.48		$2,682.17		DD

		10/25/19		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$1,328.00		80		$215.89		$400.00		$1,943.89		$352.79		$2,296.68		DD

		11/8/19		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$2,191.00		80		$329.66		$50.00		$2,570.66		$405.11		$2,975.77		DD

		11/22/19		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$1,600.00		80		$275.21		$400.00		$2,275.21		$371.91		$2,647.12		DD

		12/6/19		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$1,490.00		80		$176.57		$30.00		$1,696.57		$318.15		$2,014.72		DD

		12/20/19		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$1,940.00		80		$273.04		$50.00		$2,263.04		$370.78		$2,633.82		DD

		1/3/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$2,470.00		80		$381.04		$0.00		$2,851.04		$442.51		$3,293.55		DD

		1/17/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$1,850.00		80		$213.52		$100.00		$2,163.52		$353.40		$2,516.92		DD

		1/31/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		1/31/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$1,990.00		80		$229.63		$50.00		$2,269.63		$362.29		$2,631.92		DD

		2/14/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$2,106.00		80		$241.58		$50.00		$2,397.58		$313.67		$2,711.25		DD

		2/28/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$2,847.00		80		$341.56		$0.00		$3,188.56		$362.96		$3,551.52		DD

		3/13/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$2,636.00		80		$300.66		$0.00		$2,936.66		$343.38		$3,280.04		DD

		3/27/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$235.70		$235.70

		3/27/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.70		$1.70

		3/27/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$2,648.00		80		$377.00		$0.00		$3,025.00		$379.50		$3,404.50		DD

		3/27/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($259.23)		($259.23)

		4/10/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$904.13		40		$95.87		$0.00		$1,000.00		$149.11		$1,149.11		DD

		4/10/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($15.20)		($15.20)

		4/10/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.10		$0.10

		4/24/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$500.22		22.13		$53.03		$0.00		$553.25		$83.45		$636.70		DD

		5/22/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$2,954.70		80		$487.80		$0.00		$3,442.50		$546.02		$3,988.52		DD

		6/5/20		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$3,330.78		112.5		$484.72		$0.00		$3,815.50		$465.86		$4,281.36		DD

		Totals		Luis Andres Arriagada Aguilera		$35,540.83		$1,374.63		$4,945.85		$2,002.00		$42,488.68		$6,156.16		$48,644.84

		12/7/18		Manuel Camus Valdes		$1,000.00		40		$128.05		$0.00		$1,128.05		$193.76		$1,321.81		100107

		12/21/18		Manuel Camus Valdes		$846.00		80		$477.60		$1,529.00		$2,852.60		$447.50		$3,300.10		100115

		1/4/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$861.00		80		$409.42		$1,214.00		$2,484.42		$410.47		$2,894.89		100121

		1/18/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$1,685.00		80		$232.80		$490.00		$2,407.80		$402.77		$2,810.57		100130

		1/18/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,662.00		80		$555.30		$0.00		$3,217.30		$477.54		$3,694.84		100139

		2/1/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,275.00		80		$241.37		$0.00		$2,516.37		$398.59		$2,914.96		DD

		2/27/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,475.00		0		$455.76		$0.00		$2,930.76		$277.24		$3,208.00		DD

		2/27/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,512.00		80		$518.03		$0.00		$3,030.03		$447.19		$3,477.22		DD

		3/29/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($32.26)		($32.26)

		3/29/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,000.00		80		$390.79		$0.00		$2,390.79		$386.71		$2,777.50		DD

		4/12/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,160.00		80		$440.50		$40.00		$2,640.50		$410.33		$3,050.83		DD

		4/12/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($4.48)		($4.48)

		4/26/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,190.00		80		$440.50		$10.00		$2,640.50		$405.85		$3,046.35		DD

		5/10/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,350.00		80		$477.75		$0.00		$2,827.75		$423.24		$3,250.99		DD

		5/24/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,675.00		80		$570.93		$50.00		$3,295.93		$466.73		$3,762.66		DD

		6/7/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,307.00		80		$474.54		$30.00		$2,811.54		$421.73		$3,233.27		DD

		6/21/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,630.00		80		$431.30		$20.00		$3,081.30		$446.80		$3,528.10		DD

		7/5/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,095.00		80		$228.48		$30.00		$2,353.48		$379.18		$2,732.66		DD

		7/19/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$1,860.00		80		$258.85		$65.00		$2,183.85		$363.41		$2,547.26		DD

		8/2/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,337.00		80		$365.94		$49.96		$2,752.90		$416.29		$3,169.19		DD

		8/16/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,212.00		80		$334.88		$50.00		$2,596.88		$401.79		$2,998.67		DD

		8/30/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,637.00		80		$440.50		$50.00		$3,127.50		$451.10		$3,578.60		DD

		9/13/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,512.00		80		$397.00		$0.00		$2,909.00		$391.42		$3,300.42		DD

		9/27/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,925.00		80		$499.63		$0.00		$3,424.63		$422.53		$3,847.16		DD

		10/11/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,500.00		80		$418.87		$100.00		$3,018.87		$391.48		$3,410.35		DD

		10/25/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,316.00		80		$360.74		$50.00		$2,726.74		$369.14		$3,095.88		DD

		11/8/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,342.00		80		$367.19		$50.00		$2,759.19		$371.62		$3,130.81		DD

		11/22/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,316.00		80		$360.71		$50.00		$2,726.71		$369.12		$3,095.83		DD

		12/6/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$1,946.00		80		$269.97		$30.00		$2,245.97		$332.36		$2,578.33		DD

		12/20/19		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,381.00		80		$376.87		$50.00		$2,807.87		$375.34		$3,183.21		DD

		1/3/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,093.00		80		$291.26		$0.00		$2,384.26		$396.35		$2,780.61		DD

		1/17/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,121.00		80		$262.05		$100.00		$2,483.05		$380.20		$2,863.25		DD

		1/31/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,394.00		80		$301.94		$50.00		$2,745.94		$401.94		$3,147.88		DD

		1/31/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		2/14/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,173.00		80		$253.58		$50.00		$2,476.58		$318.94		$2,795.52		DD

		2/28/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,264.00		80		$269.86		$50.00		$2,583.86		$327.39		$2,911.25		DD

		3/13/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$2,238.00		80		$359.40		$50.00		$2,647.40		$324.97		$2,972.37		DD

		3/27/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.63		$1.63

		3/27/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($246.92)		($246.92)

		3/27/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$1,959.70		79		$375.30		$35.00		$2,370.00		$331.18		$2,701.18		DD

		3/27/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$235.29		$235.29

		4/10/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$1,063.70		40		$136.30		$0.00		$1,200.00		$167.69		$1,367.69		DD

		4/10/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($18.24)		($18.24)

		4/10/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.12		$0.12

		4/24/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$500.07		18.38		$51.33		$0.00		$551.40		$76.47		$627.87		DD

		5/1/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$1,800.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$1,800.00		$0.00		$1,800.00		100213

		5/8/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$250.07		25.73		$71.83		$450.00		$771.90		$107.04		$878.94		DD

		5/8/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$450.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$450.00		$0.00		$450.00		DD

		5/22/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$435.34		16		$44.66		$0.00		$480.00		$66.56		$546.56		DD

		6/5/20		Manuel Camus Valdes		$1,829.45		72		$330.55		$0.00		$2,160.00		$299.53		$2,459.53		DD

		Totals		Manuel Camus Valdes		$82,578.33		$2,851.11		$13,672.29		$4,743.00		$100,993.62		$14,030.65		$115,024.27

		2/15/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,717.00		80		$193.48		$0.00		$1,910.48		$352.73		$2,263.21		DD

		2/15/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/27/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$880.00		0		$97.27		$0.00		$977.27		$98.32		$1,075.59		DD

		2/27/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/15/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,514.00		80		$312.88		$75.00		$1,901.88		$351.87		$2,253.75		DD

		3/29/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$631.00		80		$190.68		$440.00		$1,261.68		$287.46		$1,549.14		DD

		3/29/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($10.29)		($10.29)

		12/6/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$200.04		0		$0.00		($0.04)		$200.00		$0.00		$200.00		100190

		12/20/19		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,200.00		80		$387.67		$690.00		$2,277.67		$377.84		$2,655.51		DD

		1/3/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,672.00		80		$331.42		$0.00		$2,003.42		$358.68		$2,362.10		DD

		1/17/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,401.00		80		$232.36		$100.00		$1,733.36		$308.98		$2,042.34		DD

		1/31/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		1/31/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,850.00		80		$310.84		$50.00		$2,210.84		$348.45		$2,559.29		DD

		2/14/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,726.00		80		$277.35		$50.00		$2,053.35		$287.00		$2,340.35		DD

		2/28/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,970.00		80		$325.90		$50.00		$2,345.90		$300.08		$2,645.98		DD

		3/13/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,660.00		80		$264.20		$50.00		$1,974.20		$271.27		$2,245.47		DD

		3/27/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($195.25)		($195.25)

		3/27/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,639.32		84		$310.68		$0.00		$1,950.00		$297.81		$2,247.81		DD

		3/27/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.28		$1.28

		3/27/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$237.39		$237.39

		4/10/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.09		$0.09

		4/10/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$800.88		40		$99.12		$0.00		$900.00		$139.82		$1,039.82		DD

		4/10/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($13.68)		($13.68)

		4/24/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$500.02		24.63		$54.16		$0.00		$554.18		$88.09		$642.27		DD

		5/8/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$700.04		32.02		$70.41		$0.00		$770.45		$114.52		$884.97		DD

		5/22/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$300.00		14.78		$32.50		$0.00		$332.50		$52.87		$385.37		DD

		6/5/20		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$1,717.48		87.5		$335.65		$0.00		$2,053.13		$319.51		$2,372.64		DD

		Totals		MARCO P. VILLASENOR HARBOLTE		$22,078.78		$1,082.93		$3,826.53		$1,505.00		$27,410.31		$4,220.86		$31,631.17

		2/14/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$1,822.00		80		$181.61		$50.00		$2,053.61		$297.55		$2,351.16		DD

		2/28/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$2,386.00		80		$226.20		$50.00		$2,662.20		$353.36		$3,015.56		DD

		3/13/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$2,266.00		80		$216.70		$50.00		$2,532.70		$341.46		$2,874.16		DD

		3/27/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$136.37		$136.37

		3/27/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.91		$0.91

		3/27/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($136.63)		($136.63)

		3/27/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$2,107.74		84		$222.26		$35.00		$2,365.00		$340.00		$2,705.00		DD

		4/10/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$996.23		40		$103.77		$0.00		$1,100.00		$158.40		$1,258.40		DD

		4/10/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.11		$0.11

		4/10/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($16.72)		($16.72)

		4/24/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$500.11		20.08		$52.09		$0.00		$552.20		$79.63		$631.83		DD

		5/8/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$700.10		28.11		$72.93		$0.00		$773.03		$111.48		$884.51		DD

		5/22/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$996.23		40		$103.77		$0.00		$1,100.00		$158.62		$1,258.62		DD

		6/5/20		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$1,905.82		72.5		$196.68		$0.00		$2,102.50		$295.96		$2,398.46		DD

		Totals		Miguel A. Alfaro Pinto		$13,680.23		$524.69		$1,376.01		$185.00		$15,241.24		$2,137.34		$17,378.58

		2/1/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$2,170.00		80		$566.59		$440.00		$3,176.59		$480.11		$3,656.70		100146

		2/15/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$2,063.00		80		$242.48		$225.00		$2,530.48		$415.11		$2,945.59		DD

		2/27/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$2,041.00		0		$372.13		$0.00		$2,413.13		$236.03		$2,649.16		DD

		3/15/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$885.00		80		$150.12		$0.00		$1,035.12		$258.47		$1,293.59		DD

		3/29/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$2,093.00		80		$438.11		$0.00		$2,531.11		$399.99		$2,931.10		DD

		3/29/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($19.87)		($19.87)

		4/12/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$2,093.00		80		$438.11		$0.00		$2,531.11		$399.99		$2,931.10		DD

		4/12/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($4.31)		($4.31)

		4/12/19		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/13/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$920.00		40		$102.70		$0.00		$1,022.70		$147.20		$1,169.90		DD

		3/13/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$3,000.00		0		$608.36		($0.04)		$3,608.32		$356.86		$3,965.18		100200

		3/27/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$53.04		$53.04

		3/27/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.79		$0.79

		3/27/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$3,094.94		86		$219.06		$0.00		$3,314.00		$349.69		$3,663.69		DD

		3/27/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$920.00		0		$72.71		$0.00		$992.71		$86.41		$1,079.12		DD

		3/27/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($117.99)		($117.99)

		4/10/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($15.81)		($15.81)

		4/10/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$940.97		40		$99.03		$0.00		$1,040.00		$152.83		$1,192.83		DD

		4/10/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.10		$0.10

		4/24/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$500.12		21.26		$52.64		$0.00		$552.76		$81.83		$634.59		DD

		5/8/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$700.03		29.76		$73.68		$0.00		$773.71		$114.54		$888.25		DD

		5/22/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$300.00		12.75		$31.58		$0.00		$331.58		$49.09		$380.67		DD

		6/5/20		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$2,148.17		87.5		$224.33		$0.00		$2,372.50		$344.36		$2,716.86		DD

		Totals		NOE I. RIOS ESTRADA		$23,869.23		$717.27		$3,691.59		$665.00		$28,225.82		$3,785.30		$32,011.12

		1/18/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,981.00		80		$216.13		$0.00		$2,197.13		$381.57		$2,578.70		100134

		2/1/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,163.00		80		$807.72		$585.00		$3,555.72		$518.26		$4,073.98		100142

		2/1/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/15/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,357.00		80		$248.39		$0.00		$2,605.39		$414.47		$3,019.86		DD

		2/15/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/27/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,818.00		0		$350.36		$0.00		$2,168.36		$205.14		$2,373.50		DD

		3/15/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,150.00		80		$552.58		$0.00		$2,702.58		$416.19		$3,118.77		DD

		3/29/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($26.94)		($26.94)

		3/29/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,743.00		80		$528.28		$350.00		$2,621.28		$408.51		$3,029.79		DD

		4/12/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($4.29)		($4.29)

		4/12/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,984.00		80		$498.85		$40.00		$2,522.85		$399.20		$2,922.05		DD

		4/26/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,572.00		80		$459.58		$360.00		$2,391.58		$382.71		$2,774.29		DD

		5/10/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,116.00		80		$538.09		$0.00		$2,654.09		$407.12		$3,061.21		DD

		5/24/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,189.00		80		$727.90		$372.00		$3,288.90		$466.07		$3,754.97		DD

		6/7/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,038.00		80		$517.62		$30.00		$2,585.62		$400.76		$2,986.38		DD

		6/21/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$813.00		50		$129.49		$360.00		$1,302.49		$221.33		$1,523.82		DD

		7/5/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,741.00		77		$196.39		$30.00		$1,967.39		$337.29		$2,304.68		DD

		7/19/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,771.00		77		$223.34		$0.00		$1,994.34		$339.80		$2,334.14		DD

		8/2/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,854.00		80		$332.88		$399.96		$2,586.84		$400.86		$2,987.70		DD

		8/16/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,514.00		80		$409.93		$50.00		$2,973.93		$436.81		$3,410.74		DD

		8/30/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,865.00		80		$335.64		$400.00		$2,600.64		$402.14		$3,002.78		DD

		9/13/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,047.00		80		$285.45		$0.00		$2,332.45		$377.23		$2,709.68		DD

		9/27/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,156.00		80		$407.93		$400.00		$2,963.93		$435.88		$3,399.81		DD

		10/11/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,362.00		80		$372.17		$50.00		$2,784.17		$402.81		$3,186.98		DD

		10/25/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,713.00		80		$294.39		$375.00		$2,382.39		$342.79		$2,725.18		DD

		11/8/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,266.00		80		$348.29		$50.00		$2,664.29		$364.35		$3,028.64		DD

		11/22/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,688.00		80		$294.41		$400.00		$2,382.41		$342.80		$2,725.21		DD

		12/6/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,794.00		80		$236.83		$30.00		$2,060.83		$318.20		$2,379.03		DD

		12/20/19		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,194.00		80		$330.41		$50.00		$2,574.41		$357.48		$2,931.89		DD

		1/3/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,644.00		80		$424.28		$0.00		$3,068.28		$463.99		$3,532.27		DD

		1/17/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,313.00		80		$296.41		$100.00		$2,709.41		$399.19		$3,108.60		DD

		1/31/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($170.82)		($170.82)

		1/31/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,268.00		80		$270.45		$0.00		$2,538.45		$380.34		$2,918.79		DD

		2/14/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,050.00		80		$231.55		$50.00		$2,331.55		$307.51		$2,639.06		DD

		2/28/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,798.00		80		$186.44		$50.00		$2,034.44		$284.10		$2,318.54		DD

		3/13/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,264.00		80		$269.86		$50.00		$2,583.86		$327.38		$2,911.24		DD

		3/27/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$235.29		$235.29

		3/27/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$2,055.52		79		$279.48		$35.00		$2,370.00		$331.19		$2,701.19		DD

		3/27/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$1.65		$1.65

		3/27/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($249.00)		($249.00)

		4/10/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.12		$0.12

		4/10/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,088.32		40		$111.68		$0.00		$1,200.00		$167.69		$1,367.69		DD

		4/10/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($18.24)		($18.24)

		4/24/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$500.08		18.38		$51.32		$0.00		$551.40		$76.46		$627.86		DD

		5/8/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$700.00		25.73		$71.83		$0.00		$771.83		$107.03		$878.86		DD

		5/22/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$435.34		16		$44.66		$0.00		$480.00		$66.56		$546.56		DD

		6/5/20		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$1,921.08		72		$238.92		$0.00		$2,160.00		$299.53		$2,459.53		DD

		Totals		Patricio A. Fernandez Borquez		$68,926.34		$2,615.11		$12,119.89		$4,617.00		$85,663.23		$12,475.35		$98,138.58

		9/13/19		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$621.00		35		$73.48		$0.00		$694.48		$138.92		$833.40		DD

		9/27/19		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,812.00		80		$266.92		$150.00		$2,228.92		$380.98		$2,609.90		DD

		10/11/19		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,810.00		80		$280.65		$215.00		$2,305.65		$388.56		$2,694.21		DD

		10/25/19		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,710.00		80		$211.96		$0.00		$1,921.96		$349.72		$2,271.68		DD

		11/8/19		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,840.00		80		$251.23		$50.00		$2,141.23		$359.47		$2,500.70		DD

		11/22/19		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,959.00		80		$266.26		$0.00		$2,225.26		$367.26		$2,592.52		DD

		12/6/19		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,463.00		80		$171.69		$0.00		$1,634.69		$312.42		$1,947.11		DD

		12/17/19		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,871.00		80		$247.07		$0.00		$2,118.07		$357.30		$2,475.37		100191

		1/3/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$684.00		36		$79.45		$0.00		$763.45		$147.74		$911.19		DD

		1/31/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($82.56)		($82.56)

		1/31/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,508.00		80		$162.62		$12.00		$1,682.62		$310.86		$1,993.48		DD

		2/14/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,885.00		80		$199.33		$35.00		$2,119.33		$302.31		$2,421.64		DD

		2/28/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,960.00		80		$206.49		$0.00		$2,166.49		$306.26		$2,472.75		DD

		3/13/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,120.00		80		$122.18		$0.00		$1,242.18		$221.48		$1,463.66		DD

		3/27/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$185.20		$185.20

		3/27/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($140.12)		($140.12)

		3/27/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,731.29		84		$203.71		$0.00		$1,935.00		$297.81		$2,232.81		DD

		3/27/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.94		$0.94

		4/10/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/10/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.09		$0.09

		4/10/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($13.68)		($13.68)

		4/10/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$812.03		40		$87.97		$0.00		$900.00		$139.82		$1,039.82		DD

		4/24/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$500.02		24.63		$54.16		$0.00		$554.18		$88.09		$642.27		DD

		5/8/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$700.08		34.48		$75.83		$0.00		$775.91		$123.34		$899.25		DD

		5/22/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$812.03		40		$87.97		$0.00		$900.00		$143.06		$1,043.06		DD

		6/5/20		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$1,471.80		72.5		$159.45		$0.00		$1,631.25		$259.31		$1,890.56		DD

		Totals		Raul Benjamin Hirales Cuevas		$26,270.25		$1,246.61		$3,208.42		$462.00		$29,940.67		$4,961.42		$34,902.09

		11/23/18		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,798.00		80		$277.79		$0.00		$3,075.79		$469.97		$3,545.76		DD

		12/7/18		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,610.00		70		$355.43		$0.00		$1,965.43		$338.20		$2,303.63		DD

		12/21/18		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,599.00		80		$603.90		$0.00		$3,202.90		$475.28		$3,678.18		DD

		1/4/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/4/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,058.00		46.5		$207.11		$0.00		$1,265.11		$220.58		$1,485.69		DD

		1/18/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,776.42		80		$198.58		$0.00		$1,975.00		$359.23		$2,334.23		DD

		1/18/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$198.58		0		$17.05		$0.00		$215.63		$21.69		$237.32		DD

		1/18/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		1/18/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/1/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$3,000.00		80		$743.48		$0.00		$3,743.48		$535.94		$4,279.42		DD

		2/15/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,537.00		80		$263.84		$0.00		$2,800.84		$425.49		$3,226.33		DD

		2/27/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		2/27/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,662.00		0		$574.87		$0.00		$3,236.87		$306.22		$3,543.09		DD

		3/15/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,662.00		80		$627.89		$0.00		$3,289.89		$471.76		$3,761.65		DD

		3/15/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		3/29/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($33.77)		($33.77)

		3/29/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,700.00		80		$637.35		$0.00		$3,337.35		$476.26		$3,813.61		DD

		3/29/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/12/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($4.76)		($4.76)

		4/12/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,262.00		80		$538.00		$0.00		$2,800.00		$425.42		$3,225.42		DD

		4/12/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		($0.01)		$0.01		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00

		4/26/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,262.00		80		$538.00		$0.00		$2,800.00		$420.66		$3,220.66		DD

		5/10/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,162.00		80		$638.00		$0.00		$2,800.00		$420.66		$3,220.66		DD

		5/24/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,300.00		80		$537.94		$0.00		$2,837.94		$424.18		$3,262.12		DD

		6/7/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,950.00		78		$780.00		$0.00		$2,730.00		$410.15		$3,140.15		DD

		6/21/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,992.00		78		$519.93		$20.00		$3,531.93		$484.64		$4,016.57		DD

		7/5/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,732.00		70		$191.57		$30.00		$1,953.57		$321.96		$2,275.53		DD

		7/19/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,647.00		68		$204.64		$65.00		$1,916.64		$314.51		$2,231.15		DD

		8/2/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,862.00		80		$483.97		($0.06)		$3,345.91		$471.37		$3,817.28		DD

		8/16/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,362.00		80		$372.16		$50.00		$2,784.16		$419.19		$3,203.35		DD

		8/30/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$3,300.00		80		$605.24		$50.00		$3,955.24		$503.04		$4,458.28		DD

		9/13/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,350.00		80		$356.76		$0.00		$2,706.76		$367.61		$3,074.37		DD

		9/27/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,950.00		80		$505.84		$0.00		$3,455.84		$424.91		$3,880.75		DD

		10/11/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$3,180.00		80		$580.40		$70.00		$3,830.40		$453.57		$4,283.97		DD

		10/25/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,335.00		80		$362.96		$40.00		$2,737.96		$369.99		$3,107.95		DD

		11/8/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,950.00		80		$518.27		$50.00		$3,518.27		$429.69		$3,947.96		DD

		11/22/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,837.00		80		$239.66		$0.00		$2,076.66		$319.41		$2,396.07		DD

		12/6/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,150.00		80		$307.92		$0.00		$2,457.92		$348.57		$2,806.49		DD

		12/20/19		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,887.00		80		$490.18		$0.00		$3,377.18		$418.89		$3,796.07		DD

		1/3/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,622.00		80		$418.81		$0.00		$3,040.81		$461.27		$3,502.08		DD

		1/17/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,958.00		58		$390.66		$0.00		$3,348.66		$408.94		$3,757.60		DD

		1/31/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($155.16)		($155.16)

		1/31/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$3,255.00		80		$463.84		$12.00		$3,730.84		$470.05		$4,200.89		DD

		2/14/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,578.00		80		$317.90		$0.00		$2,895.90		$351.93		$3,247.83		DD

		2/28/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$3,486.00		80		$498.60		$0.00		$3,984.60		$436.26		$4,420.86		DD

		3/13/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,310.00		80		$269.15		$0.00		$2,579.15		$327.02		$2,906.17		DD

		3/27/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$229.39		$229.39

		3/27/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($312.14)		($312.14)

		3/27/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$2.05		$2.05

		3/27/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$2,511.87		87		$384.13		$0.00		$2,896.00		$391.29		$3,287.29		DD

		4/10/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,162.00		40		$118.00		$0.00		$1,280.00		$175.13		$1,455.13		DD

		4/10/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($19.46)		($19.46)

		4/10/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.12		$0.12

		4/10/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/24/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$500.25		17.22		$50.79		$0.00		$551.04		$74.32		$625.36		DD

		5/8/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$700.11		24.1		$71.09		$0.00		$771.20		$104.01		$875.21		DD

		5/22/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$1,583.23		54.5		$160.77		$0.00		$1,744.00		$235.21		$1,979.21		DD

		6/5/20		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$3,661.13		109.5		$633.27		$0.00		$4,294.40		$518.95		$4,813.35		DD

		Totals		Roberto Hiralez Colin		$97,398.59		$2,960.82		$17,055.68		$387.00		$114,841.27		$15,526.53		$130,367.80

		3/13/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$720.00		40		$73.74		$0.00		$793.74		$127.41		$921.15		100202

		3/27/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($37.74)		($37.74)

		3/27/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$1,588.31		84		$174.69		$0.00		$1,763.00		$292.40		$2,055.40		100205

		3/27/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.25		$0.25

		3/27/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$52.19		$52.19

		4/10/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$738.36		40		$81.64		$0.00		$820.00		$137.30		$957.30		100208

		4/10/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		($12.46)		($12.46)

		4/10/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$0.09		$0.09

		4/10/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$0.00		0		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		$16.84		$16.84

		4/24/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$500.23		27.1		$55.32		$0.00		$555.55		$96.05		$651.60		100211

		5/8/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$700.06		37.92		$77.40		$0.00		$777.46		$134.39		$911.85		100215

		5/22/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$300.00		16.25		$33.17		$0.00		$333.17		$57.61		$390.78		100218

		6/5/20		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$886.03		48		$97.97		$0.00		$984.00		$170.11		$1,154.11		100221

		Totals		Roberto Lopez Hernandez		$5,432.99		$293.27		$593.93		$0.00		$6,026.92		$1,034.44		$7,061.36



		Date		Name		Net Amt		Hours		Taxes
Withheld		Total
Deductions		Total
Pay		Employer
Taxes		Total
Cost		Check
Num

		 		Totals		$1,423,702.40		59,572.83		$247,115.60		$79,224.32		$1,750,042.32		$261,778.09		$2,011,820.41		 

				SUMMS 		$2,841,971.81		117,852.39		$489,997.86		$155,382.62		$3,469,179.09		$518,130.52		$3,987,309.61

				Claudia Penunuri		$48,252.38		4,400.00		$   9,324.58		$   1,000.00		$   58,576.96		$   5,739.60		$   64,316.56

				Minus Claudia Penunuri Salary		$2,793,719.43		$113,452.39		$480,673.28		$154,382.62		$3,410,602.13		$512,390.92		$3,922,993.05












































HI Ashley,
I am guessing that even when the questionnaire request only the employees that work in Seattle, I
need to provide you with all the work done in all cities?
Please confirm.

Mercedes De Armas
MERCEDES ACCOUNTING & ASSOCIATES LLC
12360 NE 8th St Suite 150
BELLEVUE, WA 98005
425.747.0953
From: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov> 
Sent: 06/22/2020 4:20 PM
To: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Cc: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Subject: RE: Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards Investigation
Hello Mercedes,
I am writing because you missed the previous deadline of June 11th without letting us know in
advance that you could not meet that deadline, and then you requested a new due date of June 18,
2020 (which we granted as a final extension) which has now also passed. We have yet to receive
anything from you, even though this information was originally due on June 1, 2020. Please note
that we will be sending a subpoena for the outstanding information.
Sincerely,
Ashley Harrison
Investigator
City of Seattle, Office of Labor Standards
O: 206-386-1930 | ashley.harrison@seattle.gov

Pronouns: she/her/hers

From: Harrison, Ashley 
Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 11:59 AM
To: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Cc: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Subject: RE: Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards Investigation
Hello Mercedes,
Thank you for this update. It is important to note that if you cannot meet a deadline set by OLS, you
must contact us to discuss an adjustment before the deadline, not after.

In this instance, we will accept your proposal of Thursday, June 18th by 5:00 PM as a final deadline
for this information. Please make sure that the response includes all of the requested information.
Sincerely,
Ashley Harrison

Investigator
City of Seattle, Office of Labor Standards
O: 206-386-1930 | ashley.harrison@seattle.gov

Facebook | Twitter
Pronouns: she/her/hers

Stay up to date with COVID-19 updates and public health
City of Seattle Community Resources

mailto:Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov
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mailto:Daron.Williams@seattle.gov
http://www.seattle.gov/laborstandards
mailto:ashley.harrison@seattle.gov
mailto:Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com
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http://www.seattle.gov/laborstandards
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https://protect2.fireeye.com/v1/url?k=e5871a31-bb378714-e5873281-86c89b3c9da5-2cbd47f6d3f1cb07&q=1&e=e495b338-3bb5-495a-b488-d99de23ec2ed&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FSeattleLaborStandards%2F
https://twitter.com/OLS_SEA
http://www.seattle.gov/covid-19


Public Health: Seattle & King County
This communication is for information only and is not to provide legal advice, create an agency decision, or establish an
attorney-client relationship between OLS and the recipient. Any responses to specific questions are based on the facts as we
understand them, and are not intended to apply to any other situations. If you need legal advice, please consult an attorney.
This message is subject to disclosure according to the Washington Public Records Act (RCW 42.56)

From: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 9:34 AM
To: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Cc: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Subject: FW: Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards Investigation

CAUTION: External Email

Hi Ashley.
I am back at the office tomorrow. We started working on the reports requested last week and we
will be able to email you all the documents no later than this Thursday by 5pm.
Thank you for your help on this matter.

Mercedes De Armas
MERCEDES ACCOUNTING & ASSOCIATES LLC
12360 NE 8th St Suite 150
BELLEVUE, WA 98005
425.747.0953
From: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov> 
Sent: 06/01/2020 2:10 PM
To: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Cc: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Subject: RE: Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards Investigation
Good afternoon, Mercedes:
Thanks for your email acknowledging receipt of the Notice of Investigation and related documents. I
hope that this finds you safe and well, and it’s good to hear that your staff can return soon.
Going forward, please copy my co-investigator Daron Williams (Daron.Williams@seattle.gov, cc’d
here) on any emails related to this matter. He is also listed in the Notice of Investigation you
received.

I can grant an extension to 5:00 PM on Thursday, June 11th based on when the mailed documents
reached you. I’ve made note that you are responding on behalf of Baja Concrete USA Corp.; we will
deliver any future documents to you electronically at this address.
I’d also like to note that named parties are not removed upon request, and we do not intend to
modify the Notice of Investigation at this time. If we determine in the course of the investigation
that a respondent does not need to be listed, we will remove them when appropriate.
Should you have further questions, please let me know.
Sincerely,
Ashley Harrison

Investigator
City of Seattle, Office of Labor Standards
O: 206-386-1930 | ashley.harrison@seattle.gov

Facebook | Twitter
Pronouns: she/her/hers

https://www.kingcounty.gov/depts/health/communicable-diseases/disease-control/novel-coronavirus.aspx
mailto:Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com
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https://twitter.com/OLS_SEA


Stay up to date with COVID-19 updates and public health
City of Seattle Community Resources
Public Health: Seattle & King County

This communication is for information only and is not to provide legal advice, create an agency decision, or establish an
attorney-client relationship between OLS and the recipient. Any responses to specific questions are based on the facts as we
understand them, and are not intended to apply to any other situations. If you need legal advice, please consult an attorney.
This message is subject to disclosure according to the Washington Public Records Act (RCW 42.56)

From: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 1, 2020 1:23 PM
To: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Subject: Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards Investigation

CAUTION: External Email

Hi Ashley,
We received your letter Thursday Last week and notice today that deadline for the questionnaire is

June 1st, 2020. The letter is address to Roberto Contreras who we do not know who he is, and Carlos
Penunuri is not part of the Corporation neither. The only correct name is Claudia Penunuri and letter
should be address to her. The address on the letter is correct.
Should I expect a new letter with the corrections made?. Today is my day off and I will not be
available. My schedule is booked a week in advance and I will be able to start working on the
documents requested for the investigation Tuesday next week.
My business has been very much affected by COVID19 and the good news is that the rest of my staff
is coming back to work this week.
Thank you!

Mercedes De Armas
MERCEDES ACCOUNTING & ASSOCIATES LLC
12360 NE 8th St Suite 150
BELLEVUE, WA 98005
425.747.0953

http://www.seattle.gov/covid-19
https://www.kingcounty.gov/depts/health/communicable-diseases/disease-control/novel-coronavirus.aspx
mailto:Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com
mailto:Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12/7/2020 email correspondence  

from Mercedes De Armas  

to OLS’ Ashley Harrison and Daron Williams 

 

EXHIBIT E  
TO DECLARATION OF LORNA S. SYLVESTER 



From: Mercedes De Armas
To: Williams, Daron
Cc: Harrison, Ashley
Subject: FW: BCUSAC Interview
Date: Monday, December 7, 2020 2:12:32 PM
Attachments: BCUSA Deductions and Contributions Detail.pdf

Baja Concrete LTD Canada INVOICE 055.pdf

CAUTION: External Email

Daron,
Following answers to your questions:

1.-  Per attached Report you can see  deductions are either payroll advances or personal items purchased by the
company credit card and deducted in  the employee paycheck per their request.  Some employees run out of funds
and request the supervisor personal help with shoes, flight tickets, etc and the supervisor is using the company credit
card for this type of payroll advances.  We do not have any complaints from any employee regarding the deductions.
The use of the company credit card to purchase items for employees is discontinue. Currently the company is giving
Payroll advances and Loans to employees if they qualify.  Company policy does not include benefits for any living
costs.

2.- There are no paystubs for Antonio Machado since the company started business.  He is no an employee of the
company.

3.- Roberto Soto works for a Canadian Company name Baja Concrete LTD.  Attached an Invoice.  Roberto Soto is
not an employee of Baja Concrete USA.

I had to work over the weekend to make sure I search all documents.

Please let me know if any questions,

Mercedes De Armas
MERCEDES ACCOUNTING & ASSOCIATES LLC
12360 NE 8th St Suite 150
BELLEVUE, WA 98005
425.747.0953

-----Original Message-----
From: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Sent: 11/17/2020 5:38 PM
To: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Cc: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Subject: RE: BCUSAC Interview

Hello Mercedes,

We were looking to interview you today, per my last e-mail, but did not hear from you. We still have some
questions (and document requests) we would like you to answer. Instead of trying to coordinate an interview please
just answer the following questions below and submit the requested items.

1. We noticed several different types of deductions on employees paystubs from 2017-2020. Do you have any

mailto:Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com
mailto:Daron.Williams@seattle.gov
mailto:Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov
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Baja Concrete LTD


12736 SW 133RD ST


EDMONTON  AB T5Y-2Z7


780-835-6423


Invoice # 055


Sold  To: Shipped to


Company: Baja Concrete ltd Baja Concrete USA Corp. DATE: 05/08/20


Address: 35- 4202 139 ave


Edmonton AB T5Y-2Z7 33186


HOURS AMOUNT


3,000.00$       


SUBTOTAL  3,000.00$       


-                  


OTHER  -                  


TOTAL  3000 US


12736 SW 133 RD st Miami FL


DESCRIPTION RATE


Construction Consulting   via zell







signed deduction authorization forms from employees giving you authorization to make those deductions? If so,
please submit them.

2. Please submit any records of payments (paystubs) made to Antonio Machado from 2017-2020.

3. You mentioned that Robert Soto Contreras was an independent contractor in the documents you provided. Please
submit documents relating to Mr. Contreras Independent Contractor status (for example W-9 documents and/or
written contracts).

4. Also please provide records of payments (paystubs) made to Roberto Soto Contreras.

Submit this information by November 24th. If you do not respond to the questions and produce the information by
the deadline of November 24th, we will move forward with our investigation and take it as you have chosen not to
answer the questions or submit the information requested.

If you have any questions about this e-mail please let us know ASAP.

Thanks,

Daron Williams
Senior Investigator
City of Seattle | Office of Labor Standards
810 Third Avenue, Suite 375
Seattle, WA 98104-1627
206-733-9969
Daron.Williams@seattle.gov

-----Original Message-----
From: Williams, Daron
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 12:43 PM
To: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Cc: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Subject: RE: BCUSAC Interview

Hello Mercedes,

All is well with us, thanks for asking. I hope all is well with and your family as well.

Per your email on 9/30 stating "let's coordinate the telephone conference date next week," we e-mailed the very next
week on 10/7 to help set-up the date, but did not hear from you. However, if you are ready to interview now that
works for us. Does Tuesday (11/17) at either 11:15am or 3pm work for you? Please let us know ASAP and we can
calendar that and send an invite.

Hope to hear from you soon.

Thanks,

Daron Williams
Senior Investigator
City of Seattle | Office of Labor Standards
810 Third Avenue, Suite 375
Seattle, WA 98104-1627
206-733-9969
Daron.Williams@seattle.gov

-----Original Message-----



From: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 11:58 AM
To: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Cc: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Subject: FW: BCUSAC Interview

CAUTION: External Email

Hi Daron, Ashley,

I am ready for the interview if it is still necessary.  I can also answer any question for Claudia Penunuri.  She is
currently traveling or you can email her.

As you know I requested this interview after Oct 15th. Due to my brother passing away by the end of October, I
have not been available and I have not received correspondence from you or Ashley and also no phone calls.

Hope you are all safe and well.

Thank you for your understanding!

Mercedes De Armas
MERCEDES ACCOUNTING & ASSOCIATES LLC
12360 NE 8th St Suite 150
BELLEVUE, WA 98005
425.747.0953

-----Original Message-----
From: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Sent: 10/07/2020 5:14 PM
To: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Cc: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Subject: RE: BCUSAC Document Requested for 10/01/2020

Hello Mercedes,

I'm just following up from my previous e-mail regarding scheduling an interview with you. Do you have some
availability on October 12th or 13th?

This interview should take about one hour, but it could go a little longer depending on any follow-up questions we
may have. If feasible, we can conduct this interview via webex video chat or it could be done via a conference call
for which we can supply the call-in number.

Please let us know by October 9th (Friday), thanks.

Daron Williams
Senior Investigator
City of Seattle | Office of Labor Standards
810 Third Avenue, Suite 375
Seattle, WA 98104-1627
206-733-9969
Daron.Williams@seattle.gov

-----Original Message-----
From: Williams, Daron



Sent: Thursday, October 01, 2020 3:33 PM
To: 'Mercedes De Armas' <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Cc: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Subject: RE: BCUSAC Document Requested for 10/01/2020

Hello Mercedes,

Thank you for providing this information, we will be in touch next week to coordinate a time to interview.

Thanks,

Daron Williams
Senior Investigator
City of Seattle | Office of Labor Standards
810 Third Avenue, Suite 375
Seattle, WA 98104-1627
206-733-9969
Daron.Williams@seattle.gov

-----Original Message-----
From: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 01, 2020 11:10 AM
To: Williams, Daron <Daron.Williams@seattle.gov>
Cc: Harrison, Ashley <Ashley.Harrison@seattle.gov>
Subject: FW: BCUSAC Document Requested for 10/01/2020

CAUTION: External Email

Daron,
Attached the information requested

Mercedes De Armas
MERCEDES ACCOUNTING & ASSOCIATES LLC
12360 NE 8th St Suite 150
BELLEVUE, WA 98005
425.747.0953

-----Original Message-----
From: Payroll <Payroll@mercedesaccounting.com>
Sent: 09/30/2020 4:07 PM
To: Mercedes De Armas <Mercedes@mercedesaccounting.com>
Subject: BCUSAC Document Requested for 10/01/2020

Mercedes,

Attached you will find the information requested from Seattle Department of Labor.

Information attached from the dates requested :

06/13/2020 to 09/01/2020

3 files with the Payroll Summaries



4 files with the Paystubs. Note: Month of July was divided on 2 files: 1st file from 07/01 to 07/21 and 2nd file
07/31/2020.

If you have any questions please let me know.

Saludos cordiales,

Payroll Department
Mercedes Accounting & Associates LLC
12360 NE 8th ST Suite 150
Bellevue WA 98005
Ph (425)7470953
Fax (425)7474481


	Insert from: "LSS Decl. EX. B - Excerpts from Baja 30b6 (Mercedes de Armas).pdf"
	LSS Decl Slip Sheets Exh B
	LSS Decl EX B - Excerpts from 2022 0426 30b6 Baja -De ArmasM_cond_Z
	LSS Decl EX B - De Armas 30(b)(6) Exhibit 2
	LSS Decl EX B - De Armas 30(b)(6) Exhibit 8

	Insert from: "LSS Decl. EX. D - FW_ Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards...(email)_ss.pdf"
	LSS Decl Slip Sheet Exh D
	Ex. D - FW_ Baja Concrete USA - Seattle Labor Standards...(email)


